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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

I  A w«v,.r 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Interim Comnii«io-cr 603-27M501 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Patricia M. Tilley

Director

May 17, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend the existing contract with Granite Young Men's Christian Association (YMCA)
(VC#154139), Manchester, NH to increase the number of healthcare providers referring
individuals with or at risk for chronic conditions such as diabetes, hypertension, and arthritis to
YMCA programs, with the aim of improving health outcomes, by exercising a renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $340,000 from $1,034,000 to $1,374,000 and extending the
completion date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24,2020, item #39,
amended on May 19,2021, item #24, and most recently amended on August 18,2021, item #20.

Funds are anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2024 and 2025, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide chronic disease
management programs to individuals' in-person and online. The Contractor will continue to
promote the in-person and virtual programming, and the schedule of classes, on its website and
continue to develop relationships with healthcare providers across the state to increase
awareness and referrals to these programs. Patients can be referred to the Contractor for
registration to attend in-person and/or virtual classes. In addition, the Contractor will continue to
train staff on the delivery of evidence based programs and provide mentorship and support Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring and Diabetes Prevention Programs in other organizations. The
Contractor will provide continuing education to healthcare providers to Improve referrals and
follow-up for individuals referred to the lifestyle programs.

In New Hampshire there are approximately 333,000 individuals with high blood pressure,
407.000 with prediabetes, 110,000 with diabetes, 276,000 with arthritis and 69,449 who may
benefit from the contract effective date through June 30, 2025.
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The partnership with the Contractor will continue to support the Department's efforts to
reduce the number of adults who develop diabetes and heart disease, increase the number of
adults who appropriately manage their diabetes, blood pressure and cholesterol levels, and
improve the quality of life for adults with arthritis. The Contractor will continue to collaborate with
public health agencies and health care and community or^ganizations to increase prevention
efforts for those at high risk for chronic diseases and to achieve better outcomes for individuals
liying with chronic diseases.

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services by:

•  Comparing baseline data to actual post-intervention data.

•  Collecting and reviewing regular quarterly and annual reporting.

•  Conducting monthly meetings.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for
two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals may not receive
referrals from their healthcare providers to evidence-based chronic disease prevention and
management services within their communities. In addition, individuals statewide will not have
access to the Contractor's expanded virtual class offerings.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: ALN #93.426 FAIN #NU58DP006515. ALN #93.945 FAIN
#NU58DP006448, and ALN #93.436 FAIN #NU58DP006836.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds vyill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

cS^
Lor^i A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Miseion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Fiscal Details

05-95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL.SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN 5VS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC

DISEASE (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased.

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc .
90017003 $25,000 $0 $25,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 $25,000 $0 $25,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 $175,000 SO $175,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 $175,000 so ■ $175,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 $150,000 so $150,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 $180,000 SO $180,000

2023 102^500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 $50,000 SO $50,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 $50,000 SO $50,000

Subtotal $830,000 $0 $830,000

05-95-090-904510-3228 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH 8i NUTRITION, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 SO. $50,000 $50,000

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 SO $50,000 $50,000

2025 074-500589
contracts for Prog

Svc
90017003 SO $50,000 $50,000

2025 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017002 SO $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $200,000 $200,000



Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $20,000: $0 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $20,000 $0 $20,000

Subtotal $64,000 $0 $64,000

05-95-90-904510-32270000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, ARTHRITIS (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2025 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90017717 $0 $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $0 $100,000 $100,000

05-9S-90-902010-56S90000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

(100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102:500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $0 SO $0

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $0 $0 $0

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080183 $20,000 $0 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080083 $20,000 $0 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90080183 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $100,000 $0 $100,000



Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-70450000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, WISEWOMAN (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 $0 $0 $0

2022 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 $20,000 $0 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 $20,000 $0 $20,000

Subtotal $40,000 $0 $40,000

05-95-90-904510-32260000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF FAMILY HEALTH & NUTRITION, WISEWOMAN (100% FF)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 SO $20,000 $20,000

2025 074-500589
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90070450 SO $20,000 $20,000

Subtotal $0 $40,000 $40,000

Total $1,034,000 $340,000 $1,374,000
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Community and Clinical Linkage Pilot contract is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Granite Young Men's Christian Association ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020 (Item #39), as amended on May 19, 2021 (Item #24), and as amended on August 18,
2021 (Item #20) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17. and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and
approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, jn consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,374,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit B Amendment #2, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B
Amendment #3, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-23 Budget, Amendment #3. The
Contractor shall:

3.1. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
in this contract, in compliance with the funding requirements listed in Section 1,
above.

3.2. Ensure the annual required match is in non-federal, -non-Department related
contributions either in cash, in-kind, or donated services'or equipment related to
directly carrying out project activities and goals in Exhibit B - Amendment #3, Scope
of Services, and as approved by the Department.

3.3. Submit bi-annual reports of itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
December 15 and June 15, annually.

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 8, to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B - Amendment #3, Scope of Services,
in compliance with the funding requirements in Section 1, above.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 9, to read:

.

Granite Youno Men's Christian Association A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
4/28/2023

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 Page 1 of 4 Date
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9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with Exhibit B — Amendment #3, Scope of Services.

6. Add Exhibit C-16 Budget. Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7. Add Exhibit 0-17 Budget, Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit 0-18 Budget, Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit 0-19 Budget. Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit O-20 Budget. Amendment #3, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Add Exhibit 0-21 Budget, Amendment #3. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit 0-22 Budget, Amendment #3. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

13. Add Exhibit 0-23 Budget, Amendment #3, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

G—OS
fWS

Granite Young Men's Christian Associaiion a-s-i.j uomracior inniaib
^  4/28/2023

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 Page 2 of 4 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2023,>upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date \written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/9/2023

Date

■DocuSigned by:

kh. TiUcy
.9iHC83ec«BCcnica

Name: Patricia m. Tilley
Title: Director

4/28/2023

Date

Granite Young Men's Christian Association
—DocuSignad by:

hA(]jjJju ^luffeurji
sj3 Sheppard
Title: President and CEO

Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.2

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and.
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'DocuSlgned by:

5/9/2023

—DocuSignea by:

Dili
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Young Men's Christian Association A-S-1.2

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B. Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1 .The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
chronic diseases.

1.2.The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
days.

1.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with public health departments, health care
providers and community non-health care providers to ensure individuals living
with chronic diseases have access to a variety of prevention and treatment
options within their communities.

1.5.The Contractor shall develop and expand upon the existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in its Diabetes Prevention Program
(DPP): Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports (DSMES); as well
as community programs and resources that provide an array of services to
individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High Cholesterol,
including but not' limited to, the Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring (BPSM)
program.

1.6.The Contractor shall mentor:and.'support startup of including but not limited to;

1.6.1. Additional statewide BPSM programs.

1.6.2. Additional DPP.

1.6.3. Additional DSMES programs

1.6.4. Programs under the Granite YMCA umbrella hub that will be outside
of the Granite YMCA locations

T.T.The Contractor shall collaborate with community and clinical resources to
develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities
and resources available to address gaps in services and needs of individuals
within each county. The Contractor shall:

1.7.1. Specify objectives of the Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan;

1.7.2. Identify a iead agency responsible for each activity identified in the
plan; and'

1.7.3. Collaborate with the Department to determine evaluation metrics of the
Community-Clinical Action Plan.

1.8.The Contractor shall update and submit the Community-Clinical Linkage Action
Plan to the Department for review and approval within thirty (30) days of the
Contract Amendment effective date.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
4/28/2023

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03 ^ Page 1 of 14 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.9. The Contractor shall implement the Department-approved Community-Clinical
Linkage Action Plan in each county, statewide, in order to improve health
outcomes for individuals with high blood pressure, high cholesterol,
prediabetes, diabetes, and arthritis. The Contractor shall:

1.9.1. Begin implementation in Hillsborough County, and

1.9.2. Expand Virtual Program and Hybrid program options in Coos County
and Rural NH.

1.10. The Contractor shall utilize strategies to implement the Community-Clinical
Linkages Pilot Program, which include, but are not limited to:

1.10.1. Learning about the organizations ■ and resources within the
communities and clinical sectors to implement evidence-based
approaches and interventions through community-clinical linkage
responsive to the target population's needs, including:

1.10.1.1. Qualitative methods including but not limited to focus
groups; and

1.10.1.2. Quantitative methods including but not limited to
Geographic Information Systems data.

1.10.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community and clinical
sectors, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.10.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-health care settings.

1.10.2.2. Employers.

1.10.2.3. Prisons and jails.

1.10.2.4. Faith-based organizations.

1.10.2.5. Community centers.

1.10.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

1.10.2.7. Nonprofit organizations.

1.10.2.8. Hospitals.

1.10.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.

1.10.2.10. Rural clinics.

1.10.2.11. Oncologists.

1.10.2.12. Primary care physicians.

1.10.2.13. Insurance agencies including Medicaid.

1.10.2.14. Senior centers.

1.10.2.15. Parks and recreation programs. ^ds
I ais

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
4/28/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.10.3. Soliciting the opinions, interests, concerns, and priorities of diverse key
stakeholders from both community and clinical sectors in order to:

1.10.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
stakeholders: and

1.10.3.2. Develop consensus and support for the linkages.

1.10.4. Evaluating both process and outcomes in order to understand what
creates an effective linkage.

1.11. The Contractor shall complete all necessary strategies to ensure successful
linkages between community and clinical services to individuals with chronic
health conditions.

1.12. The Contractor shall repeat all necessary strategies, as approved by the
Department, in each county until all counties have successful community-
clinical linkages.

1.13. The Contractor shall work with the Department, on an on-going basis, to
build a Community-Clinical Action Plan to strengthen community-clinical
linkages.

- 1.14. The Contractor shall improve access to and participation in American
Diabetes Association (ADA)-recognized / Association of Diabetes Care and
Education Specialists (ADCES)-accredited DSMES programs and programs in
underserved areas.

1.15. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who have prediabetes to the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)-recognized lifestyle change programs,
which may include, but is not limited to, the DPP.

1.16. The Contractor shall implement systems that facilitate systematic referrals
of. adults with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabetes, diabetes,
and/or arthritis issues to community programs and resources in order to
improve health outcomes.

1.17. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to extend
the goals of the clinical sector, into community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.17.1. - Focus on long-term relationship-based support for individuals to make
small, sustainable lifestyle changes that have dramatic effects on
health outcomes; and

1.17.2. Reduce the preventative health care gap by working in close
' partnership with the Department, local public health departments and

multi-sector national and local partners to meet the individual needs of
communities.

1.17.3. Engage community partnerships to: /—

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials ^
4/28/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.17.3.1. Identify individuals at risk;

1.17.3.2. Meet the specific needs of the individuals served; and

■  1.17.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to program enrollment.

1.18. The Contractor shall implement an integrated community approach
involving partnerships and collaboration with and among clinicians, public
health departments, schools and employers. The Contractor shall:

1.18.1. Collaborate with community health care providers and organizations
to integrate community-based strategies that assist individuals to
utilize the resources to manage, delay or prevent the development of
chronic conditions and to assist with improving healthy behaviors;

1.18.2. Create and strengthen clinic-to-community linkages that enable health
care providers to refer patients to evidence-based chronic disease
prevention and management programs within the community:

1.18.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for referring patients to
preventive services, disease management services, and community-
based organizations that provide evidence-based programming; and

1.18.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members
and non-members who are referred to the program through the
network of community partners and referral sources.

1.19. The Contractor shall develop a matrix identifying each stakeholder group
and the existing connections.

1.20. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potential stakeholders to:

1.20.1. Provide education on the DPP, BPSM, AAEBISand DSMES programs;
and

1.20.2. Discuss stakeholders' potential role within the Contractor's chronic
disease programs.

1.21. The Contractor shall utilize best practices to conduct outreach to health care
providers, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.21.1. Physicians.

1.21.2. Nurses.

1.21.3. Physician Assistants.

1.21.4. Nurse Practitioners.

1.21.5. Diabetes Educators.

1.21.6. Dentists.

1.21.7. Health Educators.

,/U.S
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.21.8. Dieticians.

1.21.9. Pharmacists.

1.21.10. Behavioral Specialists.

1.21.11. Chiropractors.

1.21.12. Patient Navigators.

1.21.13. Acupuncturists.

1.21.14.0ncologists.

1.21.15. Cardiologists.

1.22. The Contractor shall provide direct referrals to participating community
partners for individuals who meet lifestyle change programs' qualification
criteria resulting from the screening tool or blood test. The Contractor shall:

1.22.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to
display in provider offices;

1.22.2. Attend health fairs that include glucose screenings for individuals at
high risk of developing diabetes; and

1.22.3. Provide free glucose screenings to individuals "at high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to members.

1.23. The Contractor shall ensure take-a-ways from regularly scheduled
meetings with health care providers include, but are not limited to:

1.23.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
management programs.

1.23.2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabetes
patients into the program.

1.23.3. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
care providers.

1.23.4. The option to utilize a referral coordinator.

1.23.5. The recommendation that providers formalize the partnership through
an agreement, subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include:

1.24.1. Paper and electronic referral forms shared with referring patients;

1.24.2. Instructions for patients; and

1.24.3. A completed patient consent form that allows the provider to share
patient contact information directly with the Contractor, in accordance
with Exhibit K of this contract.

-DS

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.25. The Contractor shall collaborate with providers to determine if a
retrospective data query and/or electronic medical record database is needed
in order to:

1.25.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and ,

1.25.2. Mail and/or email outreach materials to inform individuals of the DPP

1.26. the Contractor shall request health care providers include its DPP as a
referral option in the providers' electronic health record systems.

1.27. The Contractor shall request providers who do not have an electronic health
record system or cannot use the system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.28. The Contractor shall ensure its referral system is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibit I, .Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement, of this contract.

1.29. The Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.29.1. Progress updates.

1.29.2. Feedback on patients.

1.29.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.30. The Contractor shall determine what the provider intends to do with the
documentation, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.30.1. Scan information into patients' records.

1.30.2. Enter information into electronic health records.

1.31. The Contractor shall inform providers that:

1.31.1. The participant enrollment process is ongoing with programs starting
frequently: and

1.31.2. The current schedule of programs is available by contacting the
. Contractor.

1.32. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibits I and K of this contract.

1.33. The Contractor shall determine:

1.33.1. Program fees;

1.33.2. Availability of financial assistance;

1.33.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and
DS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.33.4. The types of ongoing communication that will be utilized with health
care providers.

1.34. The Contractor shall maintain frequent and consistent communication with
community providers to build community partner relationships, including
through follow-up activities that include, but are not limited to, sending:

1.34.1. Thank You notes, via mail or email.

■1.34.2. DPP and DSMES participant health care provider progress updates
including aggregate data only, via email.

1.34.3. Program updates, via email.

1.35. The Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to community
providers.

1.36. The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes is updated.

1.37. The Contractor shall notify providers of the status of referrals, including, but
not limited to, whether a patient is enrolled into the program, the class start date
and class location information.

1.38. The Contractor shall invite health care providers who have referred patients
to the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

1.39. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners and-
participants to create awareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach strategies include, but are not limited to:

1.39.1. Publishing articles in local newspapers.

1.39.2. Marketing on the Contractor's website.

1.39.3. Sending letters to patients from health care providers.

1.39.4. Conducting presentations at community health care providers.

1.40. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation Plan to the
Department for approval within thirty (30) days of the Contract Amendment
effective date.

1.41. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Business Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Contract Amendment effective date, that includes;

1.41.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.41.2. The methods of communication and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;

1.41.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and

/U.S
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.41.4. A list of partner organizations and individuals which may include, but
is not limited to;,

1.41.4.1. Technology platforms.

1.41.4.2. Bi-Directional Referral Platform

1.41.4.3. Third party billing agencies.

1.41.4.4. Licensed health care providers.

1.41.4.5. Members of the Community Advisory Board.

1.42. The Contractor shall ensure program staffing includes, but is not limited to:

1.42.1. A Program Director providing services under this contract for no less
than thirty (30) hours per week.

1.42.2. " An Administrative Assistant to support DPP Health Coaches, Heart
Healthy Ambassadors and Instructors for AAEBI Programs for no less
than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.43. The Contractor shall implement programs, statewide, through its "Y's
Without Walls Initiative" to build capacity through staff training to refer and
deliver evidence based programs^.

1.44. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease

prevention and management programs, which may include, but is not limited to
the following programs:

1.44.1. Medicare Diabetes Prevention Program.

1.44.2. Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support (DSMES)

1.44.3. Arthritis Appropriate Evidence-Based Interventions (AAEBI).

1.45. The Contractor shall assist healthcare organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who have arthritis to AAEBI for physical
activity and self-management education.

1.46. The Contractor shall implement and expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of programs, that include but not limited to:

1.46.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAP);

1.46.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED):

1.46.3. Enhance eFitness (EF);

1.46.4. Fit Strong!

1.46.5. Walk With Ease (WWE) Group;

1.46.6. Arthritis Foundation Exercise Program (AFEP);

AlS1.46.7. Walk With Ease (WWE) Self-directed; and

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
4/28/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Commuhity-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

1.46.8. Tai Ji Quan; Moving for a better balance.

1.47. The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams listed in Subsection 1.21 to enhance community clinical
linkages.

1.48. The Contractor, shall expand all programming to WISEWOMAN
participants, which includes but not limited to:

1.48.1. DPP;

1.48.2. BPSM;

1.48.3. Walk with Ease;

1.48.4. Enhance Fitness; and

1.48.5. YUSA's Healthy Weight Loss Program.

1.49. The Contractor shall build new partnerships with health systems, statewide,
in order to expand all programming to WISEWOMAN participants.

1.50. The Contractor shall provide training and education on all current programs
and referrals to the healthcare teams involved in the WISEWOMAN program.

1.51. The Contractor shall collaborate with healthcare organizations to increase
bi-directional referral processes and systems to improve coordination of care.

1.52. The Contractor shall participate in monthly in-person, virtual and/or
conference call meetings with the Department to review contract performance
related to, but not limited to:

1.52.1. Activities.

1.52.2. Challenges.

1.52.3. Progress.

1.52.4. Evaluation updates such as enrollment numbers

1.52.5. Budget.

1.53. The Contractor shall work directly with the three Managed Care Organizations
in the state of New Hampshire on working towards coverage for the DPP,
BPSM, and DSMES.

1.54. The Contractor shall work directly with private insurance companies such as
Cigna and Harvard Pilgrim to work towards achieving coverage for DPP, and
BPSM.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1.The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the-|otealth

Ks
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

.  Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3.The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. the Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no later than
thirty (30) days after each quarter-end date that ensure recruitment, referral and
enrollment into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not limited
to:

3.1.1. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior
quarter.

3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter,
approved by the Department, including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2.The Contractor shall submit an updated Work Plan including the baseline and
target numbers for the performance indicators in Section 4, Performance
Measures, to the Department within thirty (30) days of the Contract Amendment
Effective Date.

3.3.The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports including aggregate
data only for each Performance Indicator in Section 4, Performance Measures,
to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after each quarter-end date.

3.4.The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report and updated Work
Plan to the Department no later than thirty (30) days prior to the end of each
State Fiscal Year that must include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. ̂ Total number of participants enrolled in all chronic disease programs
as a result of clinical and in-house referrals.

3.4.2. Aggregate data demonstrating each program's success that may
include, but is not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Participant weight loss.

3.4.2.2. Program attendance.

3.4.2.3. Participant retention rate.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendrnent #3

3.4.2.4. Documentation verifying ongoing CDC recognition for the
DPP..

3.4.2.5. Documentation verifying DSMES accreditation through
ADCES.

3.5: The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report to the Department by
July 30th, 2023, that includes, but is not limited to:

3.5.1. The aggregate data specified in Subsection 3.4, above.

3.5.2. Enrollment numbers for each chronic disease program.

3.5.3. Program completion rates.

4. Performance Measures

4.1.The Contractor shall submit the baseline, target and actual performance
indicators to the Department on an annual basis no later than thirty (30) days
after each State Fiscal Year end date, in order for the Department to measure
contracted services. Performance indicators include:

4.1.1. Number of new accredited/recognized DSMES programs or locations;

4.1.2. Numberof DSMES encounters;

4.1.3. Number and proportion of patients' served within healthcare
organizations with systems to identify individuals with prediabetes and
referred to DDPs;

4.1.4. Number of DPP enrollees and/or completers;

4.1.5. Number and proportion of patients within health systems with high
blood pressure and/or high cholesterol referred to an evidence-based
lifestyle program;

4.1.6. If community health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the number of
CHW engaged in linkage to or delivery of DSMES. DPP and evidence-
based programs for the management of high blood pressure and/or
high cholesterol;

4.1.7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharrnacists and/or
pharmacies engaged in community-clinical linkage work;

4.1.8. Number of new startups mentored offering BPSM programs;

4.1.9. Number of new startups mentored offering DPP;

4.1.10. Numberof seniorsreached to enroll in chronic disease prevention and
management programs;

4.1.11. Number of healthcare members trained to enhance community-clinical
linkages;

4.1.12. Number of new staff trained to deliver AAEBI programs;

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials " i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

4.1.13. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered;

4.1.14. Number of participants attending AAEBI programs;

4.1.15. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled in Chronic Disease
Programs; and

4.1.16. Number of WISEWOMAN participants enrolled as a member and their
usage.

4.2.The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3:The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share'data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting frorn Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply"with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3.Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases,, research reports and other
materials , prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The

-  preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State.of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

•OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #3

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3;3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4.Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1.The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable—to the

AlS
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Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract), shal.Lterrninate. provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-16 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART^1 -AOS

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

CoT\tractor Uame- The Granite'Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for: HearrO/sease . .

Budget Period July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024 .

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Cohtractor Share/ Match

1, Salarv & Waqes $25,000 $7,500

2. Frinqe Benefits ■ $800 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot t)e applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

5.ta) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

S.tb) Supplies - Lab .$0 $0

5.fc) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

S.tdt Supplies • Medical $0 $0

5.fe) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 -  $0

7. Software $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Markelinq/ Communications
$0 ' 50

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininq $2,200 '  - $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Granite Y Memberships ' •  • .$0 $7,500

scholarships.. $22,000 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) - $0 $0

9. Subrecipienl Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total indirect Costs $0 ' $0

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 8 Date.
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Exhibit C-17 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for: Heart 0/sease . ■ . '

Budget Period Ju/y t, 2024-June 30,-2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable).0.00% .

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Wages $25,000 $7,500

2. Fringe Benefits S800 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot t>e applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 ■  $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacv $0 $0

5.(dt Supplies - Medical $0 $0

5.{e) Supplies Office $0 $0
-

6. Travel $0 $0

7. Software $0 .  $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$0 ■  I $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 32.200 $0
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please spec/A') SO $7,500

Other (please specify)' $22,000 $0
Other (please specify) $0 $0
Other (please specify). $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 -  - - ' so

Total Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs •  ' $0 $0

TOTAL '  $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials.

Page 2 of 8 Date



OocuSign Envelope 10: &3l5A7F6-06CF-46OS-fi9lE-15l59OE889AC

Exhibit C-18 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for: Diabetes ■

Budget Period July 1, 2023-June 30. 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Waqes $25,000 $7,500

2. Frinqe Benefits $800 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

•  $0 $0

S.fal Supplies - Educational $0 $0

S.fb) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

S.fdl Supplies - Medical . $0 $0

S.fel- Supplies Office .  ~ $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $0

7. Software $0 $0

8. fa) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$0 $0

8. fb) Other - Education and Training $2,200 $0
8. fc) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) V  ' $0 $7,500

Other (please specify) $22,000 $0
Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs •  $0 $0

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-19 Budget Sheet RFP.2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01 -AOS

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for: Diatjetes

Budget Period July 1, 2024-June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match.

1. Salary & Wages $25,000 S7.500

2. Fringe Benefits S800 SO

3. Consultants $0 . SO

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix iV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 so

5.(a) SuDDlies - EducaUonal SO $0

5:(b) Supplies - Lab so $0

5.(c) SuDDlies - Pharmacy .  • so $0

S.fdi SuDolies • Medical $0 so

5.(ei SuDDlies Office $0 $0

6. Travel so so

7. Software $0 so

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
so $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training S2.200 so
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

. Other (please specify) $0 S7.500

Other (please specify) $22,000 SO

Other (please specify) SO so
Other (please specify) $0 $0

.

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 •so

Total Direct Costs $50,000 S15,000

Total indirect Costs SO . so

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Contractor Initials
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Exhibit C-20 Budget Sheet
RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART^1-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Conlractor Uame: the Granite Young Men's Christian Association ■

Budget Request for: Arthr/f/s

Budget Period July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024 • . . .

indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Wages $25,000 $7,500

2. Fringe Benefits $800 $0

3. Consultants $0 $0

4. Equipment .
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

'  SO '  $0

S.fat SuDolies - Educational $0 $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab •  $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

5.fd^ Supplies • Medical $0 $0

S.fe) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $0

7. Software . $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
■ $0 $0

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $2,200 .  $0

8. (c) Other - Other fspecifv below)

Other (please specif/) $0 ' $7,500

Other (please specif/) $22,000 $0

Other (please specif/) .  $0 $0

Other.(please specif/) .  $0 $0

9. Subreclplent Contracts '  $0 $0
.

TotalDlrect Costs $50,000 $15,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 .  $0

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Page 5 of 8 Ddte
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Exhibit C-21 Budget Sheet
RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comf^ete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name. The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Budget Request for:'Arfhr/t/s

Budget Period July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025

indirect Cost Rate (if appiicable) 0.00%

Line item Program Cost ■ Funded by'DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Saiarv & Wages $25,000 $7,500

2. Fringe Benefits $800 $0

3. Consultants $0 •  $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot tie applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

S.fa) SuoDlies • Educational $0 $0

S.fbf SuDolies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) SuDolies - Pharmacv $0 $0

5.fd^ SuDolies - Medical $0 $0

S.fel SuDDlies Office $0 $0

6. Travel •$0 $0

7. Software $0 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$0 .  • $0

8. (b) Other - EducaUon and Training -  $2,200 $0

8. (c) Other - Other (soecify below)
, Other (please soecifv) $0 $7,500

Other (please specify) $22:000 $0

Other (please specify) ■ $0 $0

Other (please specify) •  $0 $0

9. Subrecioient Contracts ■  $0 .  $0

Totai Direct Costs $50,000 $15,000

Totai indirect Costs $0 $0

TOTAL $50,000 $15,000

Page 6 of 8 DatG

Contractor lnitials_

4/28/2023
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Exhibit C-22 Budget Sheet
RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A03

New Mampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name:.77ie Granfte Young Men's Christian Association
Budget Request for: Wisewoman

Budget Period,July 1, 2023'June 30, 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Wages $0 $3,000

2. Fringe Benefits $0 $0

3. Consultants . $0 $0

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$0 $0

S.fa) Supplies • Educational $0 SO

S.fbt Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0 $0

S.fdl Supplies - Medical so SO

5.(e) Supplies Office $0 $0

6. Travel $0 $0

7. Software 85.000 $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications
$0 $3,000

8. fb) Other - Education and Training SO $0

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

scholarships $0 SO

Other (please specify) ' -• S15.000 SO

Other (please specify) $0 $0

Other (please specifv) - $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $20,000 $6,000

Total Indirect Costs $0 SO

TOTAL $20,000 $6,000

Page 7 of 8 D3te

Contractor lnitials_

4/28/2023
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Exhibit C-23 Budget Sheet RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01 -AOS

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

ContractoTUame-.TheGranileYoungMen'sChristianAssociation
Budget Request for: l^sewoman

Budget Period July 1,2024-June 30,2025 ~ .

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Waqes •  $0 • $3,000

2. Frinqe Benefits $0 $0

3. Consultants $0 SO

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to

equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and

Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

;  $0 - $0

5.(a1 Supplies - Educational $0 so

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0

5.(c1 Supplies - Pharmacy $0 so

S.fdt Supplies • Medical so $0

5.(e1 Supplies Office so $0

6. Travel so $0

7. Software S5.000 - $0

8. (a) Other - Markelinq/ Communications
so $3,000

8. (b) Other - Education and Training . . . so so

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) .

- Other (please specify) $15,000 $0
, Other (please specify) so $0

Other (please specify) •  • so $0
Other (please specify) $0 $0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0 $0

Total Direct Costs S20.000 $6,000

Total indirect Costs so $0

TOTAL $20,000 $6,000

Page 8 of 8 Date

Contractor Initials.

4/28/2023
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctar)' ofSlale of the State ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that Till: GRANITE YOUNG MEN'S

CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

Mav 09. 1896. 1 further certify that all fees and documents "required by the Secrctaiy of State's ofllce have been received and is in

good standing as far as this ofllce is concerned, •

Business ID: 61724

Certificate Number: 0006225517

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxcd

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 8th dav of Mav A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Kathy Kittle of The Granite Young Men's Christian Association do hereby certify that:

1. I am the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of The Granite Young Men's Christian Association.

2. That the President and Chief Executive Officer is authorized on behalf of this company to enter

into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem
necessary, desirable or appropriate, and Michele Sheppard is the duly elected President and
Chief Executive Officer of this company.

3. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate
as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and that they
have full authority to bind the company and that this authorization shall remain valid for thirty (30)
days from the date of this certificate.

Name: Kathy Kj0(e Date
Title: CFO _
Company Name: The Granite Young Men's Christian Association



Client#: 502000 GRANIYMC

ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMAJOnrYYY)

5/25/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USi Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford, NH 03110

855 874-0123

NAME*^^ Linda Jaeger, CIC
855 874-0123 f-OJ.W:

InnBPM- linda.jaeger@usi.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJCS

INSURER A: ̂Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

The Granite YMCA

• 670 N. Commerical St., Suite 103

Manchester, NH 03101

INSURER B : Granite State Healthcare & Human Svc WC NONAIC

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
indicated: notwithstanding any REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSR

SUBR

ave_ POLICY NUMBER
POUCY EFF

(mm/dd/yyyy)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

PHPK2557788 06/01/2023 06/01/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE

,._NTED ,
:a occurrence)

MED EXP (Af^y one person)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE

POLICY

OTHER;

LOC
PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY PHPK2557791 }6/01/2023 06/01/2024
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accideni)

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

PHUB865168 06/01/2023 06/01/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

X RETENTION $$1 OK
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE (—71
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? | N I
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

HCHS20230000574

3A States: NH

01/01/2023 01/01/2024 V PER
A STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L, EACH ACCIDENT

E.L, DISEASE - £A EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

$1,000.000

$100,000

$5,000

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

$3,000,000

i1,000,000

$5.000.000

$5.000.000

$1.000.000

$1.000.000

Professional

Liability

PHPK2557788 36/01/2023 06/01/2024 $1,000,000 Ea. Incident

$3,000,000 Aggregate

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)

Additional Insured Status is provided only when required by a written contract.

CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept., of Health & Human Services

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S40172111/M40171371

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
AZLZP
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The Granite YMCA

Mission Statement

Approved by the Board of Trustees at the
November 25, 2014 Board Meeting

The Granite YMCA creates a community where all are welcome
and builds a healthy spirit, mind and body based on the values of
caring, honesty, respect and responsibility.
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Hession & Pare, re
CERTIFIliD PUnLIC ACCOUNTANTS

(,2 Siaik Siicci, MandicsU'r. New l iainpsluiv 03101
(m-M^0-5A77 TAX 0U3-6fN-0IV7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees

The Granite YMCA

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Granite YMCA (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of May 31, 2022, and
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The Granite YMCA as of May 31, 2022, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of The Granite YMCA and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or eiTor.
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Board of Trustees

The Granite YMCA

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The
Granite YMCA's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that
the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,-but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The Granite YMCA's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accountirig estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The Granite YMCA's ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
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Board ofTrustees

The Granite YMCA

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and
certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited The Granite YMCA's 2021 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report
dated October 19, 20.21. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented
herein as of and for the year ended June 30,2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with
the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Manchester, New Hampshire ■ / / 1/
October 20, 2022 j
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of Mny 31, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total cuiTcnl assets

Investments, at fair value

Long-term pledges receivable, less current portion
Work in progress

Property, plant and equipment, net
Cash surrender value of life insurance policy

Beneficial interest in trusts

Total assets

2022 2021

s  7,781,472 $  5,098,834

45;902 43.400

394,944 . 2,037,484

100,793 139,701

237,874 -154,605

8,560,985 7,474,024

14,732,557 15,421.940

259,912 160,550

248,026 •

16,001,946 13,613,162

22,170 -

2,322;308 1,866,612

S 42,147,904 $ 38,536,288

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Grant obligation

Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamorlizcd
deferred financing costs

Long-term interest rate swap

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Undcsignatcd
Board-designated

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Restricted by purpose or time
Restricted in perpetuity

Total with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

9.373,701

13,408,047

6.692,573

20,100,620

6,240,809

S  423,232 $  499,020

417,529 272,345

3,365,720 2,799,687

608,130 -.

437,488 2,531,763

5,252,099 6,102,815

4,029,410 3,830,855

92,192 198,939

10,132.609

10,483,860

6.884.345

17,368,205

4,695,321

12,673,583 11,035,474

32.774,203 ,  28,403,679

$ 42.147,904 $ 38,536,288

Sec notes to financial statements.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Vcnr Ended Mny 31, 2022

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Opcraltng activities

Public support
S  710,532Annual campaign income $  710,532 S

Government subsidies 2,181,243 2,412,085 4,593,328

Gram income 450.454 104,641 555,095

In-kind contributions 148,099 •
148,099

United Way allocation 239,902 -

239,902

Net assets released from restrictions - operating activities 1.734.156 (1.734,156) ■

Total public support 5.464,386 782,570 <;.246,956

Revenue

Program and camp fees 12,719,754
-

12,719,754

Membership dues 4,275.756 -
4,275,756

Less financial assistance (1.336.227) (t.336.227)

Net program, camp fees & membership dues 15,659,283 •

15,659,283

Merchandise sales 151,393 . .151,393

Rental income 206,547 -

206,547

Investment income, endowment appropriation - 382,432 382,432

Total revenue 16,017,223 382.432 16,399.655

Total public support and revenue 21.481,609 1,165,002 22.646,61 1

Expenses

Program services
14,440,955Youth development 14,440.955 •

Healthy living 3.951,219 •

3,951,219

Social responsibility 952,226 •

952.226

Total program services , 19,344,400 -

19.344,400

Supporting services
431.628Fundraising 431,628 •

Management 1.141,916
-

1,141.916

Total supporting services 1,573,544 ■
1,573,544

Total expenses 20,917,944
-

20,917,944

Increase in net assets from operations 563,665 1.165.002 1,728,667

Non-operating activities
(204,692)Net assets released from restrictions • capital expenditures 204,692 "

Contributions for capital assets -
404,644 404,644

Government grants for capital assets 150,039 150.039

Contribution for endowment - 92,569 92,569

Investment income, net of endowment appropriation (286,902) (951,209) (1.238.171)

Change in beneficial interest in trust, net of allowance 9,805 (68,753) (58,948)

Unrealized gain on carrying value of interest
'  106,747rate ssvap contract 106.747

Other (10.735) •
(10.735)

Total non-operating activities 23,607 (577,462) (553,855)

Increase in net assets before acquisition 587.272 587,540 1,174,812

Income from acquisition 2,145.143 1,050,569 3,195,712

Increase in net assets 2,732.415 1,638,109 4,370,524

Net assets, beginning of year 17,368.205 1 1,035,474 28.403.679

Net assets, end of year S 20,100.620 S 12.673.583 S 32.774.203

c notes to financial statements.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended May 31, 2021

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Operating activities
Public support

Annual campaign income
Government subsidies

Grant income

.  In-kind contributions

United Way allocation
Net assets released from restrictions • opctiiting activities

Total public support

Revenue

Program and camp fees
Membership dues

Less financial assistance

Net program, camp fees & membership dues

Merchandise sales

Rental income

Investment income, endossment appropriation
Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Expenses
Program scn'iccs
Youlli development

Healthy living

Social responsibility
Total program services

Supporting sciviccs
Fundraising
Management

Total supporting sci-viccs

Total expenses

(Decrease) increase in net assets from operations

Non-operating activities
Net assets released from restrictions • capital expenditures
Contributions for capital assets

Contribution for endowment

Investment income, net of endowment appropriation
Change in beneficial interest In trust, net of allowance
Unrealised gain on carrying value of interest

rale swap contract

Other

Total non-operating activities

increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

s $  727,880 $  .727,880
. 4,172,596 4.172,596
. 807,975 807,975

59,634 - 59,634

. 434,406 434,406

6.174,577 (6,174,577) •

6.234,211 (31.720) 6.202.491

6.567.769 . 6,567,769

2,825,621 - 2,825,621

(947.809) - (947.809)

8,445,581 -

8,445,581

39,702 . 39,702

201,520 - 201,520

2,517 311,900 314.417

8,689,320 311.900 9,001,220

14,923,531 280,180 15,203,711

9,632,404 9,632,404

3.086.477 - 3,086,477

1,108.548 - 1,108,548

13,827,429 - 13,827,429

334,219 334,219

942,670 -
942,670

1.276,889 -
1,276,889

15,104,318 15,104,318

(180,787) 280,180 99,393

117,500 (117,500)
. 284.159 284,159

. 28,585 28,585

1,292,948 1,493,305 2,786,253

-

301,257 301,257

76,149 . 76.149

1,889,821 - 1.889,821

3.376.418 1,989,806 5,366,224

3,195,631 2,269,986 5.465.617

14.172,574 8.765,488 22,938,062

$ 17,368.205 $11,035.474 $ 28.403.679

Sec notes to financial statements.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended May 31, 2022
(willi comparative totals for the Year Ended May 31, 2021)

Youth Healthy Social Total Program
Services Fundraisine Management

Total Support

Services 2022 2021

Expenses
Salaries $ 8,186,500 S  1.989.108 $ 495,877 S  10.671,485 $  279,526 S  613,130 $  892,656 S 11,564,141 $ 8,292,860

Benefits 884,874 230.700 74,107 1,189,681 31,257 79,290 110,547 1,300,228 897,702

Payroll ta.vcs 741,143 176,316 43,705 961,164 22,615 47,470 70,085 1,031,249 739.962

Total salaries and related

1

c.xpenses 9,812,517 2,396.124 613,689 12,822,330 333,398 739,890 1,073,288 13,895,618 9,930,524

Occupancy costs 1,501,583 654,152 71.048 - 2,226,783 7,652 85,870 93,522 2,320,305 1,690,889

Supplies 739,303 77.589 160,137 977,029 25,017 37,728 62,745 1,039,774 970,318

Contract services 266,338 65,188 26,400 357,926 13,826 114,471 128,297 486,223 283.985

Information technology 106,680 39,952 11,852 158,484 5,456 83,560 89,016 247,500 228.167

Insurance 174,110 47.295 13,536 234.941 227 3,472 3,699 238,640 184,019

Interest 128,157 49,426 42 177,625 19 294 313 177,938 164,026

Promotion and printing 168,812 109,441 166 278,419 22,894 1,171 24,065 302,484 149,594

Fair share dues 196,449 27,141 8,229 231,819 966 142 1,108 232,927 131,387

Telephone and postage 119.519 30.829 2,295 152,643 6,344 6.979 13,323 165,966 109,466

Conferences and training 112.635 33,941 4,969 151,545 7,034 14,696 21,730 173,275 68,669

Transportation 98,430 169 1,501 100,100
- - -

100,100 34,687

Legal and audit 40,828 13.383 4,536 58.747 - 31,982 31,982 90,729 31,026

Merchandise sales 71,529 6,026 - 77,555 - - - 77,555 21,188

Dues 14,035 1,928 328 16,291 3,254 2,314 5,568 21,859 14,217

2,890 1.243 . 4,133 5,541 - 5,541 9,674 669

Total ex^nscs before

► -

depreciation and amortization 13,553.815 3.553,827 918,728 18.026,370 431,628 1,122,569 1,554,197 19,580,567 I4.012.83I

887,140 397,392 33,498 1,318,030 - 19,347 19,347 1.337,377 1,091,487

Total expenses $ 14.440,955 S 3.951,219 S 952,226 $  19.344,400 S  431,628 S  1,141,916 $  1,573,544 5 20,917,944 $ 15,104.318

Sec notes to financial statements.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended May 31,2022 and 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Changes in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments
Unrealized (gain) on interest rale swap contract
Net realized and unrealized (gain) on beneficial interest
Contributions restricted for endowment

Contributions restricted for capital assets
Grants restricted for capital assets
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Pledges receivable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Work in progress

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of cash surrender value of life insurance policy

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows fiom financing activities
Cash contributions restricted for endowment

Cash contributions restricted for capital assets
Cash grants restricted for capital assets
Borrowing on grant obligations
Forgiveness of grant obligations
Borrowing on loans
Principal payments of loans
Principal payments of bond payable

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2022

4,370,524

1,337,377

1,077,503

(106,747)
(455,696)

(92,569)
(404,644)

(150,039)

1,642,540

(83,269)
(60,454)

69,396

2021

$ 5,465.617

1,091,487

(2,915,483)
(76,149)

(301.257)

(28,585)
(284,159)

(1,940,724)

4,979

(38,217)
274,255

472,462

7,709,955 1,724,226

(3,871,729) (2,936,193)

3,483,609 3,036,838

(248,026) -

(3,714,284) . (1.321.961)

(22,170) -

(4,372,600) (1,221,316)

92,569 ^ 28,585

404,644 284,159

150,039 -

650,230 •

'  (42,100) -

712,691 3,045,000

(2,455,288) (2,315,023)

(165,000) (160,000)

(652,215) 882,721

2,685,140 1,385,631

5,142,234 3.756,603

S 7,827,374 $ 5,142,234

See notes to financial statements.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (concluded)

For the Years Ended May 31, 2022 and 2021

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information

Interest paid in cash

Schedule of noncash investing and financing activities

Fair value of donated assets-

Debt to finance acquisition of assets

Debt assumed upon acquisition

Assets assumed upon acquisition -

Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection Program loan

2022 2021

$  177,937 $ 164,026

$  • 98,946 S 51,134

$  900,000

$ 2,051,947 $

$ 5,247,659 $

$ 2,145,600 $

See notes to financial statements.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Description of organization

The Granite YMCA (the "YMCA") creates a community where all are welcome, and
builds a healthy spirit, mind and body based on the values of caring, honesty, respect
and responsibility. This includes advancing our cause of strengthening community
through youth development, healthy living and social responsibility. The YMCA is
a powerful association of men, women and children committed to bringing about
lasting personal and social change. With a focus on nurturing the potential of every
child and teen, improving the nation's health and well-being and providing
opportunities to give back and support neighbors, the YMCA enables youth, adults,
families and communities to be healthy, confident, connected and secure.

Branches of The Granite YMCA include the YMCA of Downtown Manchester,
Concord Family YMCA, YMCA Allard Center in Goffstown, YMCA of Strafford
County in Rochester, YMCA of Greater Londonderry, YMCA of the Seacoast in
Portsmouth and YMCA Camping Services, which include Camp Foss and Camp Mi-
Te-Na.

Program activities

• Youth Development: The YMCA is committed to nurturing the potential of
every child and teen. We believe that all kids deserve the opportunity to
discover who they are and what they can achieve. That is why we help young
people cultivate the values, skills and relationships that lead to positive
behaviors, better health and educational achievement. The YMCA programs,
such as resident camps Mi-Te-Na and Foss and our wide variety of day camps,
offer a range of experiences that enrich cognitive, social,- physical and
emotional growth. (Examples of youth development programs: child care,
resident camps, traditional and specialty day camp programs, gymnastics,
swimming, teen center and other youth programming.)

• Healthy Living: The YMCA is a leading voice on health and well-being. We
bring families closer together, encourage good health and foster connections
through fitness, sports, fun and shared interests. As a result, people in our
community are receiving the support, guidance and resources they need to
achieve greater health in spirit, mind and body..This is particularly important
as our nation struggles with an obesity crisis, families struggle with work/life
balance and individuals search for personal fulfillment. (Examples of healthy
living programs: group wellness classes for youth and adults, programs for
cancer survivors, diabetes prevention, youth obesity programs, health
screening, yoga and other recreational activities and social groups.)
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS (concluded)

•  Social Responsibility: The YMGA believes in giving back and supporting our
neighbors. We have been listening and responding to our community s most
critical social needs. Programs such as the Support, Training and Adventure for
Youth program (STAY), START, STRIVE and Power Scholars programs are
designated to serve youth that may be "at risk" for a variety of reasons. The
STAY program works with middle school age youth within the school and
provides support, tutoring and adventure for youth. The START program is
located within two Manchester inner city school districts and provides a place
for school age children to go after school, at reduced rates, to participate in
structured academic activities and for daily, nutritious snacks. STRIVE serves
those middle school/high school students that have been suspended or expelled
from school; they come to the YMCA during the time they are not allowed in
school. Here they receive tutoring and life skills education. The Power Scholars
Academy is a six-week summer learning loss prevention program provided to
Manchester middle school students who are seeking enrichment and academic
' support to improve their school performance. These are examples of how we
deliver training, resources and support that empower our communities to affect
change, bridge gaps and overcome obstacles. We engage YMCA members,
participants and volunteers in activities that strengthen our community and
pave the way for future generations to thrive.

As part of our mission, our programs are accessible, affordable and open to all faiths,
backgrounds, abilities and income levels. We provide financial assistance to people
who otherwise may not have been able to afford to participate. .

Supporting services consist of the following:

•  Fundraising - includes costs associated with the annual Reach Out for Youth
and Families fundraising campaigns, capital campaign, grant writing and
special events which provide funding for YMCA financial assistance for
memberships, summer camp, child care and a host of other enriching activities.

• Management - provides necessary support services such as institutional
leadership, budget and accounting control, personnel administration, facility
planning, establishment of institutional policies, board liaison, information
technology coordination, public information services, and membership
services.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the YMCA have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis ofpresentation

The YMCA records resources for accounting and reporting purposes based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets available for use in general
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing
board has designated net assets for an operating reserve and board-designated
endowment from net assets without donor restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be
met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-
imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor ■ stipulates those
resources be maintained in perpetuity.

Gifts of long-lived assets and gifts of cash restricted for the acquisition of long-lived
assets are recognized as. revenue when the assets are placed in service. Donor-
imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was
restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Operating activities

Operating activities reflect all transactions increasing or decreasing net assets except
those items associated with long-term investment, such as contributions for
endowment and facilities and equipment, investment returns in excess of amounts
designated for current operations and changes in the fair value of the interest rate
swap.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent matters at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The YMCA has multiple revenue streams that are accounted for as reciprocal
exchange transactions, including membership and program fees, residence program
and related services, and government contract revenues.

Because the YMCA's performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration less
than one year, the YMCA has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in
FASB ASC 606-10-50-14(a), Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and
therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at
the end of the reporting period. There are no incremental costs of obtaining a contract
and no significant financing components.

Membershio dues and program fees: Membership dues and program fees consist of
amounts that families and individuals pay to participate in health, fitness, education
and recreation activities and programs. Members generally pay a onetime joining fee
plus monthly dues in advance. Memberships provide use of the recreation facilities,
access to free classes, programs, and activities, and discounts to fee-based programs.
The YMCA offers a variety of programs including family, child care, day camp,
resident camp, teen, scholastic, fitness, aquatics, health immigration, and
international services. Fee-based programs are available to the public. Program fees
for short duration programs of two months or less, such as aquatics classes, are
typically paid in advance at the time of registration. Program fees for longer duration
programs, such as fee-based childcare, are usually paid monthly in advance.
Cancellation provisions vary by program, but most transactions are cancellable with
15 to 30 days' notice. Refunds may be available for services not provided. Financial
assistance is available to members and program participants. Such financial
assistance is reflected as a reduction ot gross membership dues and program fees.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Membership dues and program fees are recognized ratably over the period the
membership or program service is provided on a straight-line basis in an amount that
reflects the consideration the YMCA expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. All the YMCA's revenue from contracts with customers are from
performance obligations satisfied over time. Prices are specific to a distinct
performance obligation and do not consist of multiple transactions. Membership
joining fees are ratably recognized over a one-year period from the membership start
date.

Membership dues and program fees paid to the YMCA in advance represent contract
liabilities and are recorded as other deferred revenue. Amounts billed but unpaid are
contract assets and recorded as account receivables.

Contributions and pledges

The YMCA records unconditional promises to give (pledges) as receivables and
contributions within the appropriate net asset category based on the existence or
absence of donor conditional promises to give. A conditional promise to give is a
contribution with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right to return.
The YMCA recognizes conditional promises to give when the measurable
performance or barrier imposed by the donor are substantially met or explicitly
waived by the donor.

Contributed materials and services

Contributions of donated materials and services are recorded at their fair value in the
period received. For the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, the YMCA received
donated materials of $98,946 and $51,134, respectively, relating to equipment,
supplies, furniture, and fixtures.

The YMCA recognizes contributions of services received if such services; (a) create
or enhance nonfmanciai assets, (b) require specialized skills, (c) are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and (d) would typically need to be purchased if
not contributed. For the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, the YMCA received
contributed services of $49,153 and $8,500, respectively.

The YMCA receives services from a large number of volunteers who give significant
amounts of their time to the programs of the YMCA. No amounts have been reflected
for these types of donated services, as there is no objective basis available to measure
the value of such services.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5315A7F6-96CF-46D8-891E-151590E889AC

-14-

THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Functional allocation of expenses

Expenses are charged directly to program, management or fundraising in genera!
categories based on specific identification. Indirect expenses have been allocated
based on full-time equivalent expenses and facility square footage usage.

Advert ising'costs

The YMCA expenses advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended May 31,
2022 and 2021, advertising costs were approximately $289,961 and $141,598,
respectively.

Income taxes

The YMCA has received a favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue
Service stating that it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (IRC), as an organization described in Section
501 (c)(3), except for income taxes pertaining to unrelated business income.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance requires tax effects
from uncertain tax positions to be recognized in the financial statements only if the
position is more likely than not to be sustained if the position were to be challenged

" by a taxing authority. Management has determined that.there are no material
uncertain positions that require recognition in the financial statements. Additionally,
no provision for income taxes is reflected in these financial statements. Interest and
penalties would be recognized as a tax expense; however, there is no interest or
penalties recognized in the statements of activities. The tax years after 2019 are still
open to audit for both federal and state purposes.

Cash and cash equivalents

The YMCA considers all liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. Cash allocated to the investment portfolio as part of
the YMCA's investment strategy is reported as investments.

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported in the statements of cash flows
consisted of the following at May 31;

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents 5 7,781,472 $ 5,098,834
Restricted cash 15^902 43,400

Total 7.-827.374 $5.142.234
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Concentration of credit risk

The YMCA maintains cash balances at certain financial institutions in excess of the
insurance limits provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The YMCA
has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The YMCA monitors the financial
stability of financial institutions regularly and management does not believe there is
significant credit risk associated with deposits in excess of federally insured amounts.
At May 31, 2022, the YMCA's uninsured cash balance totaled $7,459,319.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative financial instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities at their
fair value on the statement of financial position, with the changes in the fair value
reported in other changes in net assets without donor restrictions. The derivative
financial instrument is classified on the statement of financial position as interest rale
swap agreement.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount. Management determines
the coliectability by regularly evaluating individual receivables. Receivables are
written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable pi eviously
written off are recorded as revenue when received. Management believes that all
outstanding receivables are collectible; therefore, no allowance for uncollectible
receivables has been provided. The YMCA does not accrue interest on unpaid
accounts receivable. For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020
accounts receivable was $394,944, $2,037,484, and 96,760 respectively.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value and are based primarily on quoted market
prices or estimated fair value.

Property, plant and equipment

Investment in property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation, or at fair value if donated. Major additions and improvements in excess
of $5,000 are capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to

■  expense as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired
are removed from the accounts, and any gains or losses are reflected in the statement
of activities.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Building and renovations 20-40 years
Building and leasehold improvements 7—10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-7 years
Vehicles 3-10 years

Deferred revenue

Membership dues and program fees that are designated for or related to future years'
activities are defeiTed and recognized as revenue in the period in which they apply.
For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 deferred revenue was
$3,365,720, $2,799,687, and $2,327,225 respectively.

Subsequent events

Management has evaluated subsequent events and updated the change from LIBOR
to BSBY rate in Note 10, along with the disclosure in Note 19 of the move of the
YMCA office in August 2022. This evaluation is through October 20,2022, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued, and has not evaluated
subsequent events after that date.

Accounting pronouncement adopted

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers Topic
(606). This ASU supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605,
Revenue Recognition, and most industi^-specific guidance. The core principle of the
guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The YMCA
adopted this ASU on June 1, 2020.

The YMCA implemented ASU 2014-09 using a full retrospective method of
application. The adoption of ASU 2014-09 resulted in changes to the disclosure of
revenue. There were no material changes to the recognition or presentation of
revenue as a result of the application of ASU 2014-09. As a result, no cumulative
effect adjustment was recorded upon adoption.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Recent accounting pronouncement

In February 2016. the FASB issued (ASU) 2016-02, Leases. This ASU affects any
entity that enters into a lease, with some specified scope exemptions. The main
difference between previous GAAP and this ASU is the recognition of lease assets
and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under
previous GAAP. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021. The YMCA has not yet implemented this ASU
and is in the process of assessing the effect on their financial statements.

In September 2020, the FASB issued (ASU) 2020-07, Conlribiiied Nonfinancial
Assets. This ASU affects not-for-profit entities that receive contributed nonfinancial
assets. The amendment addresses presentation .and disclosure of contributed
nonfinancial assets. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15,2021.

Note 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting their use within one year of the balance sheet date comprise the
following:

2022 2021

7,781,472 $ 5,098,834

45,902 43,400

394,944 2,037,484

360,705 300,251

14,732,557 15,421,940

22,170 -

2.322,308 1.866.612

25,660,058 24,768,521

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Investments

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Beneficial interest in remainder trusts

Total financial assets

Less financial assets held to meet donor-imposed
restrictions:

Restricted cash (45,902) (43,400)
Pledges receivable (247,094) (251,811)
Donor-restricted endowment funds (8,039,984) (8,537,595)

LessTinancial assets not available within one year:

Cash surrender value of life insurance (22,170)
Beneficial interest in remainder trust (2,322,308) (1,866,612)
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY (concluded)

Less board-designated endowment fund (6.692,573) (6,884,345)

Amount available for general expenditures within
one year s s.290.027 s 7.184.758

The YMCA's endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowrhents and funds
designated by the Board as endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments
is restricted for'specific purposes, with the exception of the amounts available for
general use. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available for general

, expenditure.

The YMCA's board-designated endowment of $6,692,573 is subject to an annual
spending rate as described in Note 15. Although management does not intend to
spend from this board-designated endowment (other than amounts appropriated for
general expenditure as part of the Board's annual budget approval and
appropriation), these "amounts could be made available if necessary.

As part of their liquidity management plan, the YMCA maintains a revolving line of
credit of $750,000 to cover short tenn cash needs (Note 11). Occasionally, the Board
designates a portion of.any operating surplus to its operating reserve.

Note 4. PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Pledges receivable represent amounts due from donors for multi-year, unconditional
pledges. Pledges receivable are shown net of a discount on future collections.
Payments on the pledges are expected to be received as follows:

Promises to give,expected to be collected in
Less than one year
One to five years

Total pledges receivable

Less discount to present value
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges

Net pledges receivable
Less current portion

Long term pledges receivable, net

2022 2021

S 120,481 $ 156,654

273,272 .  178,418

393,753 335,072

(13,360) (17,868)
(19,688) (16,953)

360,705 300,251

(100,793) (139,701)

$ 259,912 $ 160,550 ■
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The FASB defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the YMCA's principal or most advantageous
market in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
date.

The standard establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires the YMCA to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be
used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets that the YMCA has the ability to access as of the
measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices,
such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in
markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can
be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect the YMCA's own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing an asset or liability.

In many cases, a valuation technique used to measure fair value includes inputs from
multiple levels of the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level of significant input
determines the placement of the entire fair value measurement in the hierarchy.

Investments measured at fair value at May 31, 2022 are summarized below: ■

Fair

Value (Level 11 (Level 2) (Level 3)

Valued on a recurring basis
Assets

Investments

Money market funds ' $ 1,097,541 $ 1,097,541 $ - $
U.S. treasury obligations 1,183,335 1,183,335
Fixed income 2,907,208 - 2,907,208
Equity 9,544,473 9,544.473
Beneficial interest in trusts 2.322,308 1 1 2,322,308

Total assets ^ 7.054.865 ^ 11-825.349 ^ 2,907,2(18 $ 2,322,308
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Liabilities

Interest rate swap in loss position S 92.192 ^ $  92.192 $

Total liabilities

Valued on a non-recurring basis
Pledges receivable ^ 360.705 I 1 $ 360.705

Investments measured at fair value at May 31, 2021 are summarized below:

Valued on a recurring basis
Assets

Investments

Money market funds
U.S. treasury obligations
Fixed income

Equity
Beneficial interest in trusts

Total assets

Liabilities

Interest rate swap in loss
position

Total liabilities

Valued on a non-recurring
basis

Pledges receivable

$

Fair

Value

129,961
1,786,128

2,118,243

11,387,608
1.866.612

(Level 1)

$  129,961
1,786,128

11,387,608

(Level 21 (Level 31

$  - $

2,118,243

:  1.866.612

$ 17.288.552 $ 13.303.697

$  198.939

$  198.939

\1 1.866.612

$  198.939 $

$ 300.251 1 $ 300.251

Fair values for investments are determined by reference to quoted market prices and
other relevant information generated by market transactions. The fair value of
pledges receivable is estimated at the present value of expected future cash flows.
The discount rate used was 5% and 4% for 2022 and 2021, respectively. The fair
value of Level 2 investments has been measured using quoted market prices of
similar assets and the fair value market approach, as determined by several factors,
including its credit rating relative to a corporate bond with similar maturity duration.
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Note 5. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTSXconcIuded)

The fair market value of the beneficial interest in trusts is based upon the present
value of the estimated future cash receipts from the trust's assets, considering a rate
of return on the assets in the trust, less management's allowance for possible future
principal reductions.

The YMCA uses a lending institution's proprietary models, which consider past,
present and future assumptions regarding market conditions to estimate the fair value
of the liability for the interest rate swap agreement. Annuities payable are primarily
valued using valuation models that consider assumptions about future market
conditions and actuarially determined payout periods.

Investment return at May 31 is summarized as follows:

2022 2021

Interest and dividends, net of fees S 221,764 $  185,188

Net realized gain 505,635 155,166

Net uiuealized (loss) gain (1,583,138) 2,760,316

Investment return, net of expenses (855,739) 3,100,670

Investment expenses 69,737 65,607

Total (loss) return on investments $ (786,002) $3,166,277
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Note 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment were comprised of the following at May 31:

2022 2021

Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Land

$ 26,490,861
6,537,566
2,004,115

$ 24,513,389
5,047,405

1,763,114

Less accumulated depreciation

35,032,542
19,030,596

31,323,908

17,710,746

Net investment in property, plant and
equipment $ 16,001,946 $ 13,613,162

Note 7. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUSTS

The YMCA is an iirevocable beneficiary of two charitable remainder trusts held by
a bank as trustee. These resources are neither in the possession of, nor under the
control of the YMCA. The terms of one trust provide for income of the trust to be
distributed to the current beneficiary. The second trust provides for income and
principal to be distributed to the current beneficiary based on an incremental rate
each year. Upon the beneficiaries' deaths, two trusts require the remaining principal
be distributed to charitable beneficiaries. Since the trustee is allowed to make
principal distributions to the current beneficiaries, management has established an
allowance to provide for this possibility. The fair value of the beneficial interest was
determined by applying the YMCA's percentage interest to the fair value of trust
assets as reported by the trustee and discounting this value by 20%.

2022 2021

Beneficial interest in trusts $ 2,154,935 $ 2,238,422
Allowance for principal distribution (430,987) (447,684)

Total S 1,723,948 $ 1.790,738
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Note 7. BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN TRUSTS (concluded)

The YMCA of the Seacoast is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at the
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation (the "Foundation")- Pursuant to the terms of
the resolution establishing this fimd, property contributed to the Foundation is held
as a separate fund designated for the benefit of the YMCA of the Seacoast. In
accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation m^es distributions from the
fund to the YMCA of the Seacoast. The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the
market value of the fund per year. The estimated value of ftiture distributions from
the fund is included in these financial statements as required by generally accepted
accounting principles; however, all property in the fund was contributed to the
Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the YMCA of the Seacoast.
On May 31, 2022, the market value of the fund's assets was approximately $85,067.

The Concord Family YMCA is the beneficiary of several irrevocable, perpetual trusts
managed by local, independent financial institutions. The Concord Family YMCA
received distributions from two trusts based on the income earned and annual
distributions made by the trust. The Concord Family YMCA also receives
distributions from a separate trust with a set annual distribution amount of $200. The
Concord Family YMCA's portion of the fair value of these trusts, which
approximates the present value of future benefits expected to be received, amounted
to $513,293 at May 31, 2022.

The Concord Family YMCA also receives discretionary distributions each year from
another trust. However, due to the fact that the trustee of this trust has the ability to
change beneficiaries, this trust is not included in the statement of financial position
as a beneficial interest in trust.

'  Note 8. FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS

The YMCA of the Seacoast is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at the
Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to the Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the benefit of
the YMCA of the Seacoast. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation
makes distributions from the funds to the YMCA of the Seacoast. The distributions
are approximately 4.0% of the market value of the funds per year. The funds are not
included in these financial statements, since all property in the funds was contributed
to the Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the YMCA of the
Seacoast. For the year ended May 31,2022, $3,892 was received from the funds. On
May 31, 2022, the market value of the funds' assets was approximately $107,226.
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Note 8. FUNDS HELD BY OTHERS (concluded)

The Concord Family YMCA is a beneficiary of a designated fund at the Foundation.
Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing this fund, property contributed to
the Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the benefit of the Concord
Family YMCA. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes
distributions from the fund to the Concord Family YMCA. The distributions are
approximately 4.2% of a trailing twenty quarter average of the fair market value of
the fund each year. The fund is not included in these financial statements since all
property in the fund was contributed to the Foundation to be held and administered
for the benefit of the Concord Family YMCA. For the year ended May 31,.2022,
$ 1,206 was received from the funds. On May 31,2022, the market value of the funds'
assets was approximately $33,226.

Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Bond and notes payable were as follows as of May 31:
2022 2021

Bond payable to Citizens Bank, N.A. in the original
amount of $3,800,000, in monthly sinking fund
installments, plus interest of 2.05% per annum through
October 2028, net of unamortized deferred financing
costs of $60,357 and $72,234 at May 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively. The bond is secured by certain
YMCA buildings. Reference is made to Note 10. $ 1,214,643 $ 1,367,766

Non-interest-bearing note payable to the City of
Manchester in annual installments of $13,000 due in
August each year, through October 2024. The note is
secured by real estate located in Manchester, NH. 39,000" 52,000

Note payable to the Strafford Economic Development
Corporation (SEDC) dated August 16, 2012 in the
original amount of $475,000. Monthly principal and
interest payments in the amount of $2,634 are required
through August 2027. The interest rate is 3% per
annum. The note is secured by substantially all of the
assets located in Rochester, NH. 278,635 301,515

Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority dated July 5,.2018 in the original
amount of $88,256. Monthly principal and interest
payments in the amount of $1,509 are required through
September 2022. The interest rate is 1% per annum.
The note is secured by property. 7,537 25,427
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Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority dated March 5,2019 in the original
amount of $83,106. Monthly principal and interest
payments in the amount of S1,421 are required through
June 2024. The interest rate is 1% per annum. The note

is secured by property. 35,147 51,715-

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated June 1, 2019 in
the original amount of $1,720,000. Monthly principal
and interest payments in the amount of $12,170 are
required through May 2024 with the remaining balance
due June 2029. The interest rate is 3.35% per annum.
The note is secured by substantially all of the assets in
Manchester, NH. 1,449,931 1,545,229

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated June 1, 2019
converted from drawn-down line of credit in the

original amount of $900,000. Monthly .principal and
interest payments in the amount of $6,359 are required
through May 2029 with the remaining balance due June
2029. The interest rate is 2.51% per annum. The note
is secured by the second mortgage for property located
in Manchester, NH. 818,654 873,366

Note payable to Citizens Bank dated March 16, 2021
in the original amount of $2,145,600 under the
Paycheck Protection Program. Under the terms of the
loan, it may be forgiven as long as the borrower uses
the proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll,
benefits, rent and utilities. On October 21, 2021, the
entire loan was forgiven in full. ~ 2,145,600

Mortgage note payable to TD Bank in the original
amount of $850,000. Monthly principal and interest
payments in the amount of $3,787 are required tl-nough
September 2027. The interest rate is 4.84% per annum.
The note is secured by Concord real estate. 435,162
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Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education
'  Facilities Authority in the original amount of $37,716.

Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount
of $645 are required through February 2023. The
interest rate is \% per annum. The note is secured by
property. 5,779

Note payable to New Hampshire Business Finance
Authority in the original amount of $375,000. Monthly
principal and interest payments in the amount of
$5,895 are required through January 2023. The interest
rate is 1 % per annum. The note is secured by property. 46,985

Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority in the original amount of $59,500.
Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount
of $ 1,0,17 are required through June 2027. The interest
rate is 1% per annum. The note is secured by property. 59,500

Non-interest bearing note payable to Liberty Energy in
the original amount of $50,000. Monthly payments in .
the amount of $595 are required through August 2024. 20,238

Note payable to New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority in the original amount of $ II 0,000.
Monthly principal and interest payments in the amount

• of $1,880 are required through August 2024. The
interest rate is 1% per annum. The note is secured by
property.

Total long-term debt and unamortized deferred
financing costs

Less current portion long-term debt

Long-term debt net of cunent portion and unamortized
deferred financing costs

4,466,898 .  6,362,618

(437,488) (2,531,763)

$ 4,029,410 $ 3,830,855
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Note 9. LONG-TERM DEBT (concluded)

Future annual maturities of the notes are as follows:

Year ending
Mav 31. Amount

2023 $  497,845
2024 461,799

2025 455,246

2026 437,778

2027 455,468

Thereafter 2,219,119
Unamortized deferred

financing costs r60.357)

Total S 4.466.898

The loan agreement contains certain financial and nonfinancial covenants.
Management has an ongoing analysis of covenant compliance. At May 31, 2022, the
YMCA was in compliance with the financial covenants.

Note ID. SERIES 2007 REVENUE BONDS

During 2007, the New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authorities (the
"Authority") sold $3,800,000 of its Revenue Bonds, Greater Manchester Family
YMCA Issue, Series 2007, and loaned the proceeds of the bonds to the YMCA to
finance certain improvements to the YMCA's facilities. The Series 2007 Bonds were
issued with a variable interest rate determined on a weekly basis. Prior to issuing the
Bonds, the YMCA entered into an interest rate swap agreement with Citizens Bank,
NA (the "Counterparty") for the life of the bond issue to hedge the interest rate risk
associated with the Series 2007 Bonds. The bonds mature in 2028 and can be repaid
at any time.

During 2009, a downgrading of the credit rating of the bank providing the letter-of-
credit occurred, which resulted in a significant increase of the weekly variable rate.
Since it became evident that the credit markets would not soon return to normalcy,
the YMCA elected to convert the Series 2007 Bonds from a weekly rate mode to a
iDank purchase mode. This new bank purchase mode created a rate period in which
the Series 2007 Bonds bear interest at the tax adjusted bank purchase rate of 68
percent of the sum of the adjusted period LIBOR (30 day) rate and 250 basis points.
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Note 10. SERIES 2007 REVENUE BONDS (concluded)

The bank purchase mode commenced on September 1, 2009 and expired on
November 30, 2021. It was further amended on September 12, 2022 through
September of 2023 with interest per annum equal to the product of (a) .79 multiplier
by the sum of (b) the sum of BSBY rate plus 2.16%. This expiration date inay be
extended by the bank and the YMCA has the option to convert back to the weekly
rate mode.

The Series 2007 Bond documents require the YMCA to comply with certain financial
covenants. As of May 31, 2022, the YMCA was in compliance with these covenants.

Note 11. REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

The YMCA has a revolving line of credit with Citizens Bank for $750,000. The line
of credit is used for operating cash flow purposes if needed. Any amounts drawn on
the line of credit are payable on demand with interest equal to one .month LIBOR
rate, plus a 2.25% interest margin under the LIBOR Advantage program. The interest
rate at May 31, 2022 was 3.16%. On September 21. 2022, the interest was amended
at a rate per annum equal to the BSBY rate for the interest period in effect for the
loan plus 2.25%. The line is secured by substantially all of the YMCA's non real
estate assets. At May 31, 2022 and 2021, there was no outstanding balance owed on
the line of credit.

The line of credit agreement contains certain financial and nonfmancial covenants.
Management has an ongoing analysis of covenant compliance. At May 31, 2022, the
YMCA was in compliance with the financial covenants.

Note 12. INTEREST RATE SWAP

During 2007, the YMCA entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the "swap
, agreement") with Citizens Bank NA (the "Counterparty") to hedge the interest rate
on the Series 2007 Bonds. Pursuant to the swap agreement, the initial notional
amount and amortization will match the par amount and amortization of the Series
2007 Bonds. Under the terms of the swap agreement, the YMCA will pay the fixed
rate of 3.75% on the notional amount and in exchange, the Counterparty will pay the
YMCA a variable rate on the notional amount based on the 67 percent oLone-month
LIBOR. The cost of the interest rale swap for the years ended May 31,2022 and 2021
was added to interest expense in the statement of functional expenses.

Any gain or loss in the value of the swap contract is recorded as an unrealized gain
or loss on the carrying amount value of the interest rate swap contract. For the years
ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, the YMCA had unrealized income on the carrying
value of the interest rate swap agreement of $106,747 and $76,149 respectively.
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Note 13. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT OBLIGATIONS

In September 2013, the Concord Family YMCA was awarded a Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG). According to the terms of the agreement, the
YMCA is a sub-recipient of a Community Development Finance Authority
Community Development Block Grant .through the County of Merrimack, New
Hampshire. The grant, amounting to $364,000, was used to repair and replace
components of the HVAG system in the firehouse building, which houses the
childcare center. This grant also requires that at least 51% of those individuals
benefiting from the funded renovations be members of low to moderate income
families. A portion of the grant obligation is forgiven for each year the Concord
Family YMCA complies with such participant-benefit conditions (at the annual rate
of 5% for the twenty years ending September 30, 2034). For the year ended May 31,
2022, grant obligations forgiven amounted to $18,200. The outstanding grant
obligation of $223,708 must be repaid to the County of Merrimack if the participant-
benefit conditions are not met.

In July 2017, the Concord Family YMCA was awarded another CDBG. According
to the terms of this agreement, the Concord Family YMCA is a sub-recipient of a
grant from the City of Concord, New Hampshire. The grant, amounting to $478,000,
was used to make improvements to the firehouse building, which houses the
childcare center. This grant also requires that at least 66% of those individuals
benefiting from the funded renovations be members of low to moderate income
families. A portion of the grant obligation is forgiven for each year the Concord
Family YMCA complies with such participant-benefit conditions (at the annual rate
of 5% for the twenty years ending June 30, 2038). For the year ended May 31,2022,
grant obligations forgiven amounted to $23,900. The outstanding grant obligation of
$384,422 must be repaid to the City of Concord, New Hampshire if the participant-
benefit conditions are not met.

The balance of these grant obligations at May 31, 2022 amounted to $608,130 and
have been classified as short-term due to the subjective nature of the obligations.
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Note 14. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net-assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following at May 31:

2022 2021

Net assets with donor restrictions;

Restricted for

Programs
Youth development $  1,342,876 $  149,028

Healthy living 153,134 22,840

Social responsibility 65,000 110,400

Fundraisers 233,464 '206,225
Capital expenditure 622,269 272,268

Time

Beneficial interest in trusts 2,211,869 1,766,038

Cumulative appreciation on
permanently, restricted investments 1,612,197 2,168,522

Endowments restricted in perpetuity 6,432,774 6,340,153 ■

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 12,673,583. $ 11,035,474

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose, by the occurrence of events specified by the donors, or by a
change in the restrictions specified by the donor. Those amounts released from
restrictions during the year ended May 31, 2022 are as follows:

Programs
Youth development $ 1,035,861
Healthy living ' 24,477
Social responsibility 213,985
Fundraisers 77,401

Capital expenditure 204,692
Time

Cumulative appreciation on
permanently restricted investments 382.432

Total net assets released from

donor restrictions , $ 1,938,848
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Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION

The YMCA's endowment consists of both donor-restricted endowment funds and,
funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments for the
following purposes:

•  Youth development

• Healthy living
•  Social responsibility

Net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the
Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Purpose of the endowment

The endowment fund is intended to provide for the operation and special programs
of the YMCA. In doing so, the endowment fund provides a secure, long-term source
of funds to establish or maintain programs that are consistent with the aim of the
YMCA.

Interpretation of relevant law

The state of New Hampshire has passed a version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). The Board of Trustees of the

^ YMCA has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the
YMCA retains in perpetuity (a) the original value of initial and subsequent gift
amounts donated to the endowment and (b) any accumulations to the endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the
time the accumulation is added.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the YMCA considers the following factors in making
a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

1. The duration and presei-vation of the fund
2. The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
3. General economic conditions

4. The possible effect of inflation and deflation
5. The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
6. Other resources of the'organization
7. The investment policies of the organization
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Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (continued)

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of May 31,2022:

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

. Donor restricted $ - $ 8,039,984 $ 8,039,984
Board designated 6.692.573 : 6.692.573

Total funds $ 6.692.573 S 8.039.984 14.732.557

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of May 31, 2021:

Without

Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Donor restricted $ - $ 8,537,595 $ 8,537,595
Board designated 6.884.345 __z 6.884.345

Total funds $6.884.345 £ 8:537.595 $ 15.421.940
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Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended May 31,2022 and 2021:
Without.

Donor ' With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets as of

May 31,2020 $ 5,591,397 $ 7,015,705 $12,607,102

Investment return

Investment income 77,372 107,816 185,188
Net realized and unrealized

gain 1.218.093 1.697.389 2.915.482

Total investment return 1,295,465 1,805,205 3,100,670

Endowment contributions - 28,585 28,585

Appropriation of endowment
assets for operations 12.517) 1311.900) (314,417)

Endowment net assets as of

May 31.2021 $ 6.884.345 S 8.537.595 $ 15.421.940
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Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (continued)

Investment return

Investment income

Net realized and unrealized

gain

Without

Donor

Restrictions

$  120,715

f474.53n

With Donor

Restrictions

$  93,689

(614,6171

Total

$  214,404

(1.089.148)

Total investment return (353,816) (520,928) (874,744)

Endowment contributions 10,137 10,238 20,375

Transfer upon acquisition of
Concord Family YMCA - 395,511 395,511

Appropriation of endowment
assets for operations - (227,225) (227,225)

Appropriation of endowment
assets for gift annuities - (3,300) (3,300)

Appropriation of endowment
not drawn 151.907 (151.9071

Endowment net assets as of

May 31.2022 S 6.692.573 8.039.984 % 14.732.557

Return objectives and risk parameters ^

The YMCA has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that
attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its
endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment
assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the
YMCA must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s), as well as board-
designated funds.
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Note 15. ENDOWMENT COMPOSITION (concluded)

Investment objective

Endowment funds are invested in a diversified portfolio, consisting primarily of fixed
income and equity mutual funds and other investments, which may .reflect varying
rates of return. The intended overall rate of return of the portfolio is a reasonable
"real" rate, consistent with the risk levels established by the investment committee.
The objective is that the minimum acceptable rate of return over a full market cycle
of 3 to 5 years is one that equals or exceeds the assumed spending rate plus the rate
of inflation.

Spending policy and how the investment objectives relate to spending policy

The YMCA's spending policy is currently 4% of the average total endowment value
over the trailing 5 years. In addition, the Board.may authorize up to 50% of the
amount by which the 5 year average net total return exceeds the 5 year average annual
CPI. These funds will be spent on programs submitted with the annual budget that is
approved by the Board of Trustees. The spending policy is implemented with the
intent not only to provide funds for the YMCA's immediate aims but also to preserve
and grow assets to meet future spending needs.

Measurement of investment performance against policy objectives will be computed
on a total return basis, net of management fees and transaction costs, and net of the
average annual spending amount. Total return is defined as dividend or interest
income, plus realized and unrealized capital appreciation or depreciation at fair
market value.

Funds with deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the
YMCA to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. Deficiencies of this nature that are
in excess of related restricted amounts are reported in net assets with donor
restrictions. As of May 31,2022 and 2021, there were no such amounts.
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Note 16. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROVIDED

The YMCA provides financial assistance, through contributions and other
fundraising, to help defray the costs of membership and program and other fees for
individuals with need. Membership dues and program fees are recorded net of such
assistance in the accompanying statements of activities. Such amounts were as
follows for the years ended May 31:

2022 2021

Program fees $ 12,719,754 $ 6,567,769

Less financial assistance provided (670,221) (696,170)

Program fees, net S 12,049,533 $ 5,871,599

Membership dues $ 4,275,756 $ 2,825,621

Less financial assistance provided (666,006) (251,639)

Membership'dues, net $ 3,609,750 $ 2,573,982

Note 17. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The YMCA participates in the YMCA Retirement Fund Retirement Plan, which is a
defined contribution, money purchase, church plan that is intended to satisfy the
qualification requirements of Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended and the YMCA Retirement Fund Tax-Deferred Savings Plan, which is a
retirement income account plan as defined in section 403(b)(9) of the code. Both
plans are sponsored by the Young Men's Christian Association Retirement Fund
("Fund"). The Fund is a not-for-profit, tax exempt pension fund incorporated in the
State of New York (1922), organized and operated for the purpose of providing
retirement and other benefits for employees of YMCA's throughout the United
States. The plans are operated as church pension plans. Participation is available to
all duly, organized and reorganized YMCA's and their eligible employees. As a
defined contribution plan, the Retirement Plan and Tax-Deferred Savings Plan have
no unfunded benefit obligations.

In accordance with their agreement, contributions for the YMCA Retirement Fund
Retirement Plan are a percentage of the participating employees' salary. These
amounts are paid by the YMCA. For the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, total
contributions charged to retirement costs aggregated $525,012 and $296,399,
respectively.

Contributions to the YMCA Retirement Fund Tax-Deferred Savings Plan are
withheld from employees' salaries and remitted to the YMCA Retirement Fund.
There is no matching employer contribution-to this plan.
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 18. RELATED PARTIES

The YMCA is a member association of the National Council of Young Men'
Christian Associations of the United States of America.. The YMCA is an
independent, autonomous organization, recognized as a member, but separate from
the National Council. The YMCA must meet annual certification requirements t
remain a member.

The YMCA pays dues to YMCA of the USA. For the years ended May 31, 2022 am I
2021, dues expense was $232,927 and $131,387, respectively.

Note 19. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The YMCA entered into a noncancelable lease agreement for office space with
related party in Manchester, New Hampshire that expired in June 2022. In Marc
2022 as per the lease agreement, written notice not to renew was given within thj
required 180 days prior to expiration. The YMCA was granted a monthly leaS'
through August 31, 2022. The YMCA entered into a new noncancelable leaS'
agreement for office space in Manchester, New Hampshire that expires in Augus
2027.

The YMCA leases equipment under operating leases which expire through Aprjl
2025. Jhe YMCA also leases 60 parking spaces at $75 per space, per month, with a
2% annual increase. During fiscal year 2015, the YMCA entered into an additional
lease to rent 30 parking spaces at $75 per space, per month, with a 3% annual
increase. Both parking lease agreements expire on May 31, 2025.

The minimum future commitments under the leases are as follows:

Year ending
Mav31, Amount

2023 $ 279,665

2024 256,012

2025 233,758

2026 81,207

2027 83,657

Thereafter 14.010

Total $ 948.309

For the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, rent expense for leased facilities an
equipment was approximately $231,910 and $237,956, respectively.

d
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THE GRANITE YMCA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The YMCA invests in various investment securities. Investment securities ar:
exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level
of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possibl
that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in-the near term ami
such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of
financial position.

The spread of COVID-19. had forced the YMCA to reduce program offering
specifically overnight camp which was canceled, the reduced capacity mandated for
day camp and childcare, and a significant reduction in memberships.

Note 21. ACQUISITION

On June 1, 2021, the YMCA acquired the Concord Family YMCA (th
"Organization") in Concord, New Hampshire. Upon the acquisition, the YMCi^
assumed all of the assets and liabilities of the Organization. As a result of this
acquisition, the YMCA recognized income from the acquisition of $3,195,712.
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BUSINCSS ADDRESS A

CURRENT TERM OF SERVICE

HOME ADDRESS AND

PHONE

SPOUSE'S NAME COMMITTEES A E-MAIL

FERRO. JIM (2021)

Ird Ttrni+

SECRETARY

Anorn«v/H«dtaior

Ferro Law B Madlatton Group

■Development Committee - Chair
■ Erecutlve Committee - Secretary

CLEW, ROB (202S)
3rd Tarm

CHAJR

Exac, Dir., Souincm NH
RadMoov CormAanu

'Eieculive Commltiee. Chair
'BulMIng & Grounds Comm.. Chair

B-Mall:

eOOOHAN, Merav (202S)

3rd Tom

■ YOS Advtsory Board
■ Board (^emance Committea/By-Lawi
Task Forte
■ )ED[ Commiuae
B-Mall:

COUGH, Ryan (2024)
2nd Torm
Bcny Dunn

B8S^^

■ Audit Commttea -Chair
* Finance Committee

E-Mail!

HOUSTON, Korry (202S)
3rd Torm ■ Beard GovcmarKe CommRtea

E-Mail:

KUHN, Davo (2024)
3rd Tarm

Retired

' Finance Commltiee

LEAHY, MATT (202S)
lal Tarn

PuUK Policy Mgr.
SOC. For Protection 01 NH
Foreils

'Concord Advisory Board

L0H8AHD1, 3o(in (2023)
3rd Tarm

cv ■Campino Services Advttory Board

E-Mail:

LUBELCZYK. Slava (2023)-.v

3rd Tarm

■ At-Large Evecuthre Committee
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BUSINESS ADDRESS B

CURRENT TERM OF SERVICE

HOME ADDRESS AND

PHONE

SPOUSE'S NAME COMMITTEES B E-MAIL

Al-LarRo Executive

Committee

NBTBenk

NH Presktenl/Halne

E-Mail:

MALLOY, DENNIS (202S}

1st Term

•YOS Advisory Board

•Flexible MembersNp Task Force

E-Mail:

HCQUADE. Sheryl (202S)

2nd Term

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Reolonal President Northern HE

ID Bank

Enterprise Bank, SVP
Commercial Lending

■fr-
E - M a II .

PLISKIN, Bob (202S)
tat Term

■K E-Ha II .

ROBINSON, Wayne (2023)

2nd Term

Al-Large Executive -
Committee Member
Internal Auddor

Manchester Boston Regional
Utport

' Board CovemarKe Committee - Chair
* At-Large Executive Committee Member

E-Mail:

ST. CLAIR, BRETT
(2024)
Itt Term
western Skyline Marketing
(k Communicallon

' YOC Advisory Board

E-Mail

TOHAS, MARGARET
(2023)
1st Term

Martnace ArctiRects

liiiiT
■YOC Advisory Board ■ Chair

E-Mail:

fU»», WILLIi^ -TUCK- Susan ' FinarKe Committee, Chair
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BUSINESS ADDRESS »

CURRENT TERM OF SERVICE

HOME ADDRESS AND -

PHONE

SPOUSE'S NAHC committees « E-MAIL

(2021)

3"* Tarm+

TREASURER

Anornev

wa<ue*of>. Starr & Paten. PlLC

* Investment Committee

■ Executive Comiruttee • Treasurer

E-Mail:

VeilLEUX. HENRY (2023)

1" Term

Partner

Sneehan PMnney Capital Group

■ ' Board Governance Comml

WALKER. JEREMY (2024)
2nd Term

Allornev

MCUne MKMIelOn

' Board Governance Committee

- rOT Advisory Board

E-Mail:

WARDMAN, KELLIE (202S)

2nd Term

Senior Consultant

* JEDI Committee

'Strategic Planning Committee

EX-OFFICIO HEMBERS-

TIERNEY. Sarah

(Term ends 12/2024) * TAC Advisory Board • Chair

MIllER, LAILA (2024)
Partners Bank,
VP - Hatkei Manager

' YOS Advisory Board - Chair

E-Mall^^^^^^^B

INOELICATO, DONNA
(Term Ends 12/2024)
Advertising B PR
Windham Independent Weekly

news

m *YGL Advisory Board - Chair

E-Mail;

LANCELLOm, JODl

Term Ends(12/2023)
Mental Health Advocate &

Educator

ACE CertJfted Master Trainer

Advance Cte

'YSC Advisory Board - Chair

E-Mail:
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BUSINESS ADDRESS A

CURRENT TERM OF SERVICE

HOME ADDRESS AND

PHONE

SPOUSE'S NAHE COMMITTEES B E-MAIL

CARBONNEAU, CARRIE
Tarai End*(12/2023)
CaratonRi

Dlraetor, Olenl Eipadanca

'TOT AdvtoXY Board - Chair

HENRY, HATT

Tarm Endi(11/2024)

'Camping S«rvicas Advttory Board - Chair

E-Mail:
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CINDY LAFONO

Career Overview
Results-focused in management professional offering 25 + years of progressive leadership
experience. Transforms high-potential staff into outstanding leaders v/ho demonstrate
the creativity and sawy that is critical to financial and operational success.

Core Competencies
Staff and Board Development Operations management
Supervision and training Results-orientated
Strategic Organizational Planning Mentoring and Coaching
Facility AAanagement Performance Evaluations

Professional Experience

Executive Director of Health Interventions June 2015 to current

Granite YMCA — Hew Hampshire
Oversee the Community to Clinical Linkage for the State of NH for not only the Granite
YMCA, but for all 13 Y's in NH. Our goal is support Health Equity increase Population
Health in all 10 counties in NH. Our Chronic Disease programs include LiveStrong at the Y
(evidence-based cancer survivor program), YMCA Diabetes Prevention Program, Diabetes
Self-Management Education 6t Support, Blood Pressure Monitoring Program, Arthritis
BiFalls Prevention Programs like Tai ji Quan/Moving for better balance. Enhance Fitness,
and Walk v/ith Ease Mood Lifters (behavior mental health program). My role ensures that
the highest standards and best practices for health and wellness are developed and
implemented across the association, with a focus on providing'opportunities that
facilitate and support growth in multiple dimensions of health for our members: physical,
mental, emotional, spiritual, social, and environmental. My role also assures that the Y is
building strong wellness staff and fostering strong relationships with and among members,
this also promotes a collaborative approach to personal health and community
partnerships and Involvement through health promotion, educational programming, and
service to our members and our community.

Executive Director Dec 2012 to June 2015

Manchester YMCA — Manchester, NH

Oversee the management of programs, facilities, volunteer and staff development,
financial development and collaborations with community agencies in meeting the
needs of its members and program participants. Lead daily operations of Urban
YMCA with a budget of 1.3 million serving 3500 units. Programs include Health &
Wellness, Membership, Aquatics, Sports, Teen Center, Child Care Center that
includes, 5 classroom Preschool prograrns, 4 after school locations, 2 indoor summer
camps. Directly supervises 7 FT staff/Directors and 60 part time Group Wellness
Instructors.

Assistant Branch Director / Senior Director Dec 2009 to Dec 2012

Granite YMCA — Manchester, NH
Served as Asst. Executive Director/ Senior Director of the YMCA with a 4 lane Indoor

Pool, 3 Preschool program with 55 children, 4 after school sites. Sports
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Department/Day Camp, and 3 Wellness centers. Full Responsibility for the YMCA of
Downtown Manchester program development, grant development for summer fit camp

. department, building and enhancing partnerships vAth local hospitals, community
health department, and Manchester schools.

Health & Wellness Director Oct 1999 to Dec 2009

Granite YMCA — Manchester, NH
Full responsibility of planning renovations of 6,000 square fitness center, with new
cardio and strength equipment, along with design of space for best use for members.
Assisted with the production of the monthly financials, management reports and board
packages. Over saw the 85 weekly group classes led by 100 volunteers and staff and
developed classes in the community for members to achieve well being in their

community.

Group ̂ ercise Coordinator/Director Oct 1994 to Oct1999
Granite YMCA — Manchester, NH
Served as Director of the Group Exercise program with over 65 classes weekly and 80
volunteer instructors. Designed each class to match the skill and learning levels of all

Participants, Cleaned and organized studio after each group fitness class.

Customer Service Oct 1994 to Oct 1996

AutoFair — Manchester, NH
Collected customer feedback and made process changes to exceed customer satisfaction
goals. Maintained up-to-date records at all times. Developed effective relationships with
all call center departments through clear communication. Worked with upper
management to ensure appropriate changes were made to improve customer
satisfaction.

Education

Training

Computer Programming/Accounting 1979

Charles H. McCann Technical School — North Adams, Mass

ADCES para Professional training 2022

ADCES Quality Control project manager 2022

Community Health Worker Training 2023
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Leanne Schoenfeld, RDN^ LD

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY:

Registered dietitian with diversified leadership skills in nutrition counseling and education for patients living
with chronic or terminal diseases and conditions. Demonstrated abilities to:

• Assess, diagnose, intei-vene, monitor & evaluate patient's or client's nutritional needs
• Document nutrition care

•  Collaborate with medical professionals on patient's needs
•  Foster a comfortable environment & develop positive rapport with patient or client

• Use resources available .

• Work well independently & in group settings

CREDENTIALS:

Registered Dietitian Nutritionist (RDN) February 2017
State of New Hampshire Licensed Dietitian (LD) March 2018

RELEVANT WORK EXPERIENCE:

Nutrition Program Coach, VMCA Allard Center, Goffstown, NH May 2018 - Present
•  Completed Certification for YMCA's Diabetes Prevention Program Lifestyle Coach - CDC
•  Lead YMCA's Diabetes Prevention Program
•  Create nutrition workshops & handouts to provide nutrition education for different age groups
•  Develop nutrition workshop descriptions

•  Provide One-oii-One Nutrition Counseling
•  Email communication with clients and supervisor
• Offer Ask-A-Dietilian - Discussion to advise members on their nutrition related questions

Keene State College Dietetic Internship, 18 Graduate Credits 2015 - 2016
• Clinical Rotation - Lakes Regional General Hospital - 440 hrs (55 days)

o Educated patients on modified sodium, fiber, cardiac, & diabetic diets

o Prpvidcd medical nutrition therapy for patients in hospital setting
o Screened, assessed, planned, implemented, & documented evidence-based tiutrition interventions

. for patients at varying levels of nutritional risk
o  Initiated-&calculated calorie counts on high risk patients
o Calculated patient nutrient needs.for oral intake, enteral feeding, & total parenteral nutrition
o Recommended oral supplements, tube feedings, & TPN solutions
o Utilized Nutrition Care Process for documenting notes
o Collaborated with other medical professionals to develop common goal for patients
o Conducted a Supplement Waste Study, collaborated with food service department, &

interviewed patients for feedback
o Developed & presented a case study on Mucositis using Google Slides

•  Food Service Rotation-200 hrs

o Served as Project Manager for Valentine's Day Lunch - Planned, marketed, implemented, &
evaluated meal project for 70 employees

o Monitored & documented temperatures for refrigerators, freezers, serving line, & dish machine
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o Developed & conducted an in-servicc for 15 kitchen & diet office employees on sanitation and
food safety

o Checked food supply inventory and ordered online
o Prepared equipment proposal for drop-in hot food wells
o Performed sanitation audit

o Operated tray/serving line, cold and hot food production, & dish room
• CommuDity Rotation - 400 hrs

o Conducted needs assessment, researched, & presented assigned nutrition education topics for
.  . various age groups

o Created handouts, .surveys, & visual aids
o Developed nutrition program' descriptions for incoming dietetic intents

•  Specialty-160 hrs
o Propped, transported, served, & supervised meals to children and teens paiticipating in Summer

Foods Service Program (SFSP)
o Collaborated with Food Service Director and Kitchen Manager
o Communicated with teachers and lead camp counselor

•  Independent Community Project - 120 hrs
o Assessed, researched, & created Fourth Grade Garden Lessons that were incorporated into the

curriculum

Emanuei Christian Preschool, Manchester, NH March 2015; March/April 2017
• Created presentations on hydration & whole grains
• Collaborated with registered dietitian (R-D) & communicated with classroom teacher

School Care Annual Wellness Retreat, Bedford, NH

• Assisted RD with workshop on Reading Food Labels for teachers

Concord Hospital, Concord, NH
•  Reviewed charts with RD & learned different fields for charting -

•  Evaluated drink supplements
• Discovered & experienced indirect calorimetry with metabolic cart

NH Food Bank/Cooking Matters Teen Program, Manchester, NH
•  Instructed a weekly nutrition topic & cooking experience for teens

Orthodontic Assistant, Moln Orthodontics, Manchester, NH ^ ^

•  Spearheaded all orthodontics for patients
Applied, adjusted, & removed braces
Educated patients on proper orthodontic care & dental hygiene
Performed sterilization &'disinfection procedures
Conducted digital photography & x-rays
Charted electronic medical records

Maintained dental equipment

Jan 2015

Nov-Dcc 2014

Summer 2014

July 1996-April 2008

EDUCATION;

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH

B.S., Nutrition Dietetics; Presidential Scholar

NHTI, Concord, NH
Diploma, Dental Assisting; Dean's list

2014-2015

1995-1996
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Cindy Lafond Association Director of

Healthy Living Initiatives
$78,048 48% $37,523

Leanne Schoenfeld Health Coach $31,250 80% $25,000
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVtSlON OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES

Lorl A. SbiMscnt HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
ComraluloDcr 603.27 M501. 1^00-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax: 603-371-4827 TDD Accen: 1-800-735-2964

Patrida M. Tllky www.dbhs.nh.gov
Dlrmor

July 30. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with The Granite Young Men's Christian Association (VC
#154139), Manchester, NH. to expand referrals to and participation in Chronic Disease Programs,
by Increasing the price limitation by $340,000 from $6^,000 to $1.0 W.OOO with no change to the
contract completion date of June 30. 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020. item #39.
and most recently amended vwth Governor and Council approval on May 19. 2021, Item #24.

Funds are available In the following accounts for State.Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal.years through the Budget OfTtce. if rieeded and justified.

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for the Department to expand linkages between community-
based providers and healthcare organizations to Improve health outcomes for individuals' with or
at risk for diabetes, hypertension, arthritis and cancer by increasing referrals to. and participation
in. evidence-based programs.

The Contractor will expand referrals to include the Contractor's physical activity program,
Livestrong. for individuals who have or have had cancer; and will expand the Community-Clinical
Linkages Program to Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the Nation
(WISEWOMAN) participants.

The Contractor, in addition to providing chronic disease management programs to
individuals In-person. will also Implement all programs online through a virtual platform, allowing
for statewide access. The Contractor will promote the in-person and virtual programming, and the
schedule of classes, on Its website. Primary Health Care providers can refer chronic disease
patients and/pr program candidates to the Contractor to register for In-persori and/or virtual
classes. In addition, the Contractor will train staff on the delivery of evidence based programs and
mentoring and supporting additional Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring and Diabetes Prevention
Programs. The Contractor will conduct outreach to seniors to increase enrollment In chronic

77u Dtparimenl of Health and Human Servicee'Mission is to join eomnwnilies ondfomilia
in providing opporluniiies (or to ochis\x health and independence.
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Kis ExceUertcy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorat)le Council

PaQS 2 of 3

disease prevention and management programs and provide continuing education to physicians
and healthcare teams to enhance community clinical linkages for individuals referred to the
lifestyle programs.

With the exception of overlap of individuals who have more than one (1) chronic disease,
approximately 333.0(X) individuals with high blood pressure. 407,000 with prediabetes. 110,000
with diabetes. 276,000 with arthritis and 69,449 who have or have had cancer may be served
from the contract effective date through June 30. 2023.

The Contractor will implement the plan for cancer survivors and LIvestrong program
participants Initially,'beginning in Coos County and rural New Hampshire, and offer virtual and in-
person programming in Hillsborough County for the Diabetes Prevention Program and Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring Program, allowing for statewide access.

Currently, the Contractor is developing and expanding referral systems and enrollment in
the Diabetes Prevention Programs; Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support; Blood
Pressure Self-Monitoring Program; Walk With Ease; Enhance Fitness; and the Arthritis
Foundation Aquatics Program. Additionally, the Contractor is creating referral systems with
Federally Qualified Health Centers, primary care clinics, hospitals and other community providers
including, but not limited to, community action programs.

The partnership with the Contractor supports the Department's efforts to reduce the
number of adults who develop diabetes and heart disease; increase the number of adults who
appropriately manage their diabetes, blood pressure and cholesterol levels; and improve the
quality of life for adults with cancer and/or arthritis. The Contractor will continue to collaborate with
public health agencies, health care and community (non-health care) sectors to increase
prevention efforts for those at high risk for chronic diseases and to .achieve better outcomes for
Individuals living with chronic diseases.

The Department will monitor contracted services by;

•  Comparing baseline data to actual post-intervention data.

■  Collecting and reviewing regular quarterly and annual reporting.

•  Conducting monthly meetings.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard. Contract Provisions, of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals may not receive
referrals from their primary health care providers for evidence-tjased chronic disease prevention
and management services within their communities. In addition, Individuals statewide will not have
access to the Contractor's expanded virtual class offerings. In the absence of these referrals and
class offerings, disease morbidity and mortality may continue to Increase, as will healthcare costs
to treat individuals with heart disease, diabetes, arthritis and cancer.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.426, FAIN NU58DP006515; CDFA #93:945, FAIN
NU58DP006446; CFDA #93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298 and CFDA #93.436, FAIN
NU58DP006836.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully Submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
Cornmissioner
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Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot
RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-02-A02

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

Fiscal Details

05-95-090^902010.12270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES. COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
"Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

$25,000 $0 $25,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

$25,000. $0 $25,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

.  Prog Svc
90017003

$175,000 , $0 $175,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

$175,000 $0 $175,000

2022 102-50.0731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

$50,000 $100,000 $150,000

2022

/

102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

300,000 $100,000 $180,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003

$50,000- $0 $50,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017002

$50,000 $0 $50,000

Subtotals $630,000 .  $200,000 $830,000

05-95.90-902010-70460000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES,
ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$24,000 $0 $24,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for'

Prog Svc
90017717

$20,000 $0 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017717

$20,000 $0 $20,000

Subtotals $64,000 $0 $64,000

Page 1 of 2
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05-95-90-902010.56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES,
COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080083

90060183

$0 ' $0 $0

2021 102--500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080083

90080183

$0. .  SO - $0

2022 102-500731 ■
Conlracts^for

Prog Svc
90080083

SO $60,000. $60,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080183

$0 $20,000 $20,000

2023 102-500731 ■
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080083

$0 $20,000 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080183

$0 $0 $0

Subtotals $0 $100,000 $100,000.

05-95-90-902010-70450000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES.
WISEWOMAN .

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title •

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc •
90070450

$0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450

SO $0 $0

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450

$0 $20,000 $20,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450

$0 $20,000 ■  $20,000

Subtotals $0 $40,000 $40,000

TOTALS $694,000 $340,000 $1,034,000

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

this Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Ciinical Linkage Piiot contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and .Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and The Granite Young Men's Christian Association ("the Contractor").'

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governbr and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020, (item #39), as amended on May 19, 2021, (item 24), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified iri the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the Contract, may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,034,000.

2. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment 1. Scope of Services, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B -
Amendment #2, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to. read:

1. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal Funds:

1.1. 80% Federal Funds to Improve the Health of Americans-Through Prevention and
Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke: as awarded on May 13. 2021 .
by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).'Prevention and Management
of Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH. CFDA #93.426, FAIN NU58DP006515;

1.2. 6% Federal Funds for Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control,
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion as awarded on

April 9, 2021 by the CDC. New Hampshire Public Health Approaches to Addressing
Arthritis, CFDA #93.945, FAIN NU58DP006448;

1.3. 10% Federal Funds for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State. Territorial
and Tribal Organizations as awarded on May 10. 2021 by the CDC, New Hampshire
Breast & Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive Cancer & Cancer Registry Programs. CFDA
#93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298; and

.  1.4. 4% Federal Funds for Well-Integrated Screening and Evaluation for Women Across the
Nation (WISEWOMAN) as awarded on June 28, 2021 by the CDC, New Hampshire .
WISEWOMAN, CFDA #93.436, FAIN NU58DP006836.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred,in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit, C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-15 Budget, Amendment #2. The
Contractor shall:

3.1. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
in this contract, in compliance with the funding requiremerits listed in Section 1,
above.

y—OS

■w
RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01 •A02 The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials v

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date 7/26/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5315A7F6-96CF-46D8-891E-151590E889AC

OocuSIgn Envelope ID: gAB9D2CB-D74D-4348-9D1&-977630C1672D

3.2. Ensure the annual required, match is in non-federal. non-Department related
contributions either in cash, in-kind, or donated services or equipment related to
directly carrying out project activities and goals in Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope
of Services, and as approved by the Department.

3.3. Submit bi-annual reports of Itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
December 15 and June 15, annually.

5. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 8, to read:

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope of Services,
in compliance with the funding requirements In Section 1, above.

6. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 9, to read:

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in
part in the event of non-compliance with Exhibit B - Amendment #2, Scope of Services.

7. "Modify Exhibit C-3 Budget. Amendment #1, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-3 Budget.
Amendrnent #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-7 Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-7 Budget, Amendrnent #2,
which is attached^hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-12 Budget. Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-13 Budget, Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-14 Budgk, Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-15 Budget, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

•D9
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect; This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF; the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
'  • ; Department of Health and Human Services

7/29/2021

Date

C—OoeuSlgnM by;
kh, TMt-y

<-M0FBMFS8FO4C«...

Name: Patricia m. Tilley
Title:

Di rector

7/26/2021

Date

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

DMuSigntd by;

I Piwi/ p6/fs
Ee73£1BF?CE&«B;-

Name: oavid Ports
Title:

President and CEO

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01-A02 The Granite Young Men's Christian Association
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

7/29/2021
.F0FMlCe2SO4AC...C
Doev9l«nt4 by:

Oate Name; rakhmina Rakhmatova
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01 •A02 The Granite Young Men's Christian Associallon
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
chronic diseases.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
■ days.

1.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with public health departments, health care
providers and community non^health care providers to ensure individuals living
with chronic diseases have access to a variety of prevention and treatment
options within their communities.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon the existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in its Diabetes Prevention Program
(DPP); Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports (DSMES);
Livestrong; as well as community programs and resources that provide an array
of services to individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High
Cholesterol, including but not limited to, the Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring.
(BPSM) prograrh.

1.6. The Contractor shall mentor and support startup of:

1.6.1. Additional statewide BPSM programs.

1.6.2. Additional DPP.

1.6.3. Additional Livestrong programs both virtually and in person.

1.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with community and clinical re^urces to
■ develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities
and resources available to address gaps in services and needs of individuals
within each county. The Contractor shall:

1.7.1. Specify objectives of the Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan; ,

1.7.2. Identify a lead agency responsible for each activity identified in the
plan; and

1.7.3. Collaborate with the Department to determine evaluation metrics of-the
Community-Clinical Action Plan.

1 ;8. The Contractor shall update and submit the Community-Clinical Linkage Action
Plan to the Department for review and approval withiri thirty (30) days of the
Contract Amendment effective date.

1.9. The Contractor shall implement the Department-approved Community-Clinical
Linkage Action Plan in each county, statewide, in order" to improve health

w
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
■Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

outcomes for individuals with high blood pressure, high cholesterol,
prediabetes. diabetes, cancer and arthritis. The Contractor shall:

1.9.1. Begin Implementation in Hillsborough County,'.and
1.9.2. Implement plan _ for cancer survivors and Livestrong program

participants beginning in Coos County and rural NH.

1.10. The Contractor shall utilize strategies to implement the Community-Clinical
Linkages'Pilot Program, which Include, but are not limited to:

1.10.1. Learning about the organizations and resources within the
communities and clinical sectors to implement evidence-based
approaches and inten/entions through community-clinical linkage
responsive to the target population's needs, including:

1.10.1.1. Qualitative methods including but not limited to focus
groups: and .

1.10.T2. Quantitative methods including , but not' limited to
Geographic Information Systems data.

1.10.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community and clinical
sectors, which may include, but are not limited to:

1.10.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-health care settings.

1.10.2.2. Employers.

1.10.2.3. Prisons and jails.

1.10.2.4. Faith-based organizations. ,

1.10.2.5. Community centers.

1.10.2.6. Volunteer organizations. . .
1.10.2.7. Nonprofit organizations.

1.10.2.8. Hospitals.

1.10.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.
1.10.2.10. Rural clinics.

1.10.2.11,. Oncologists.
1.10.2.12. Primary care physicians.

1.10.2.13. Cancer survivor support groups.

1.10.3. Soliciting the opinions; interests, concerns, and priorities of diverse key
■  stakeholders from both community and clinical sectors in order to:

1.10.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
stakeholders: and ^os

w
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.10.3.2. Develop consensus and support for the linkages.

1.10.4. Evaluating both process and outcomes in order to understand what
creates an effective linkage.

1.11. The Contractor shall complete all necessai^ strategies to ensure successful
linkages between community and clinical services to individuals with chronic
health conditions.

1.12. The Contractor shall repeat, all necessary strategies, as approved by the
Department, in each' county until all counties have successful community-
clinical linkages.

1.13." The Contractor shall work with the Department, on an on-going basis, to build
a Community-Clinical Action Plan to strengthen community-clinical linkages.

1.14. The Contractor shall improve access to and participation in American Diabetes
Association {ADA)-recognized / Association of Diabetes Care and Education

■  Specialists (ADCES)-accredited DSMES programs and Livestrong programs in
underserved areas.

i;i5. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who have prediabetes to the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)-recognized lifestyle change programs,
which may include, but is not limited to. the DPP.

1.16. The Contractor shall implement systems that facilitate systematic referrals of
adults with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabetes, diabetes,
and/or arthritis issues to community programs and resources in order to
improve health outcomes.

1.17. The Contractor shall assist health, care organizations and cancer centers to
implement a system that identifies and refers individuals who previously have
had, or currently have, cancer to the Livestrong program.

1.18. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to extend the
goals of the clinical sector into community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.18.1. Focus on long-term relationship-based support for individuals to make
small, sustainable lifestyle changes.that have dramatic effects on
health outcomes;

1.18.2. Reduce the preventative health care gap by working in close
partnership with the Department, local public health departments and
multi-sector national and local partners to meet the individual needs of
communities.

1.18.3. Engage community partnerships to:

1.18.3.1. Identify individuals at risk;

•1.18.3.2. Meet the specific needs of the individuals served

.  9e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #2

1.18.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to program enrollment.

1.19. The Contractor shall implement an integrated community approach involving
partnerships and collaboration with and among clinicians, public health
departments, schools and employers. The.Contractor shall:

1.19.1. Collaborate with community health care providers and organizations
to integrate community-based strategies that assist individuals to
utilize the resources to manage, delay or prevent the development, of
chronic conditions and to assist with improving healthy behaviors.

1.19.2. Create and strengthen clinic-to-community linkages that enable health
care providers to refer patients to evidence-based chronic disease"
prevention and management programs within the community.

1.19.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for referring patients .to
■ preventive services, disease management services, and community-
based organizations that provide evidence-based"programming.

1.19.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members
. and non-members who are referred to the program through the
network of community partners and referral sources

1.20; The Contractor shall develop a matrix identifying each stakeholder group and
the existing corinections.

1.21. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potential stakeholders to:

1.21.1. Provide education on the DPP, Livestrong,. BPSfyi and DSMES
. programs: and

1.21.2. Discuss stakeholders.' potential role within the Contractor's chronic
disease programs:

1.22. The Coritractor shall utilize best practices to conduct outreach to health care
providers, which may include, but is not limited to:

1.22.1. Physicians.

1.22.2. Nurses.

1.22.3. Physician Assistants.

1.22.4. Nurse Practitioners.

1.22.5. Diabetes Educators.

1.22.6. Dentists.

1.22.7. Health Educators.

1.22.8. Dieticians.

1.22.9. Pharmacists.

dp
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

' 1.22.10. Behavioral Specialists.

1.22.11.Chiropractors.

1.22.12.Patient Navigators. .

, 1.22.13. Acupuncturists.

1.22.14. Oncologists. _

1.23. The Contractor shall provide direct referrals to participating cohnmunity partners
for individuals who meet lifestyle change programs' qualification criteria
resulting from the screening tool or blood test. The Contractor shall;

1.23.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to
display in provider offices;

1.23.2. Attend health fairs that include glucose screenings for individuals at'
high risk of developing diabetes; and

T.23.3. Provide free glucose screenings to individuals at high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to members.

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure take-a-ways from regularly scheduled meetings
with health care providers include, but are not limited to:

1.24.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
management programs.

1.24;2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabeles'
. patients into the program.

'1.24.3. The benefits of the • Llvestrong program for cancer patients and
survivors.

•  1.24.4. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
care providers.

1.24.5. The option to utilize a referral coordinator.

1.24.6. Financial assistance available to eligible DPP and Llvestrong
participants based on income.

1.24.7. The recommendation that providers formalize the partnership through
an agreement, subcontractor Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)."

1.25. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include:

1.25.1. Paper and electronic referral forms shared with referring patients;

1.25.2. Instructions for patients; and

1.25.3. A completed patient consent form that allows the provider to share
patient contact information directly with the Contractor, in accordance
with Exhibit K of this contract. ^ds

\di>
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.26. The Contractor shall collaborate with providers to determine if a retrospective
data query and/or electronic medical record-database is needed in order to:

1.26.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and

1.26.2. Mail .and/or email outreach materials to inform individuals of the
Diabetes Prevention and Livestrong programs.

"  1.27. The Contractor shall request health care providers include its DPP as a referral
option in the providers' electronic health record systems.

1.28. The Contractor.shall request providers who do hot have an electronic health
.record system or cannot use the system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.29. The Contractor shall ensure its referral system is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibit I, Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

.  Business Associate Agreement, of this contract.

•  1.30. the Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.30.1. Progress updates.

1.30.2. Feedback on patients.

1.30.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.31. The Contractor shall determine what the provider intends to do with the
documentation, which may include, but is not limited to:

.1.31.1. Scan information into patients'records.

1.31.2. Enter information into electronic health records.

1.32. The Contractor shall inform providers that: .

1.32.1. The participant enrollment process Is ongoing with programs starting,
frequently; and

1.32.2: The current, schedule of programs is available by contacting the
Contractor. ,

1.33. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibits I and K of this contract.

1.34. The Contractor shall determine:

1.34.1. Program fees;

1.34.2. Availability of financial assistance:

1.34.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and
A • 0$
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pjlot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.34.4. The types of ongoing communication that will be utilized with health
care providers.

1.35. The Contractor shall maintain frequent and consistent communication with
Qonnmunity providers to build community partner relationships, including
through follow-up activities that include, but are not limited to, sending:
1.35.1. Thank You notes, via mail or email.

1.35.2. DPP and Livestrong participant health care provider progress updates
including aggregate data only, via email.

1.35.3. Program updates, via email.

1.36.' The Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to community
providers.

1.37. The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes is updated.

1.38. TheContractorshallnotifyprovidersofthestatusof referrals, including,-but not
limited to, whether a patient Is enrolled into the program, the class start date
and class location information.

I

1.39. The Contractor shall invite health care providers who have referred patients to
the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

1.40. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners and
■  participants to ■ create awareness of the program and to pfomdle the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach strategies include, but are not limited to:

1.40.1. Publishing articles in local newspapers.

1.40.2. Marketing on the Contractor's website.

1.40.3. Sending letters to patients from health care providers.

1.40.4. Conducting presentations at community health care providers.

1.41. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation Plan .to the Department
for approval within thirty (30) days of the Contract Amendment effective date.

1.42. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Business Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Contract Amendment effective date, that includes;
1.42.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.42.2. The methods of communication and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;

1.42.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and

1.42.4. A list of partner organizations and individuals which may include, but
is not limited to: jpp
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.42.'4.1. Technology platforms.

1.42.4.2. Third party billing agencies.

1.42.4.3. Licensed health care providers.

1.42.4.4. Members of the Community Advisory Board.

1.43. The Contractor shall" ensure program staffing includes, but is not limited to:

1.43.1. A Program Director providing services under this contract for no less
than thirty (30) hours per week.

1.43.2. An Administrative Assistant to support DPP Health Coaches for no
less than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.44. The Contractor shall implement programs, statewide, through its "Y's Without
■ WaHs Initiative" to build capacity through staff training to refer and deliver"
evidence based programs.

1.45. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease
prevention and management programs, which may include, but is not limited to
the following programs:

1.45.1. Medicare Diabetes Prevention Program.

1.45.2. Arthritis Appropriate Evidence-Based Interventions (AAEBI).

1.46. The Contractor shall assist healthcare organizations to implement a system
■  that identifies and refers individuals who have arthritis to AAEBI for physical

activity and self-management education.

1.47. The -Contractor shall implement and expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of'programs, that include:

1.47.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAP);

1.47.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED):

1.47.3.. Enhance eFitness (EF);

1.47.4. Fit Strong!;

1.47.5. Walk With Ease (WWE) Group;

1.47.6. Arthritis Foundation Exercise Program (AFEP); and

1.47.7. Walk" With Ease (WWE) Self-directed.

1.48.-The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams listed in Subsection, 1.22 to enhance community clinical
linkages.

1.49. The Contractor shall expand all programming to WISEWOMAN participants,
which includes:

The Granile Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

1.49.1. DPP; " ■

1.49.2. BPSM;

1.49.3. Walk with-Ease;

1.49.4. Enhance Fitness: and

1.49.5. YUSA's Healthy Weight Loss Program.

1.50. The Contractor shall build new partnerships with health systems, statewide, in
order to expand all programming to WISEWOMAN participants.

1.51. The Contractor shall provide training'and education on all current programs and
referrals to the healthcare teams involved in the WISEWOMAN program.

'1.52. The Contractor shall collaborate with healthcare organizations to increase bi
directional referral processes and systems to improve coordination of care.

' '1.53. The Contractor shall explore sustainability options for the Livestrong and other
chronic disease programs. The Contractor shall ensure;

1.53.1. A minimum of one hundred (100) individuals are enrolled in the
Livestrong program in State Fiscal Year 2022.

1.53.2. A minimum of fifty (50) additional individuals are enrolled in the
Livestrong program in Stale Fiscal Year 2023, resulting in a total of
one hundred fifty (150) enrollees in State Fiscal Year 2023.

■  1.54. The Contractor shall participate in monthly in-person, virtual and/or conference
call meetings with the Department to review contract performance related to.-
but not limited to:

1.54.1. Activities. .

1.54.2. Challenges.

1.54.3. Progress.

1.54.4. Budget.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health' Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health

■  Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidenlial data related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security'Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials ^
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

3.' Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no later than
thirty (30) days after each quarter-end date that ensure recruitment, referral
and enrollment into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not
limit^ to:
3.1.1. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior

quarter.

3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter,
approved by the Department, including; but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit an updated Work Plan including the baseline and
target numbers for the performance indicators in Section 4,- Performance
Measures, to the Department within thirty (30) days of the Contract Amendment
Effective Date.

3.3. The Contractor shall subrhit Quarterly Outcome Reports including aggregate
•data only for each Performance Indicator in Section 4, Performance Measures,
to the Department no later than thirty (30) days after each..quarter-end date. ̂

3.4. The Contractor shall,submit an Annual Evaluation Report-and updated Work
Plan to the Department no later than thirty,(30) days prior to the end of each
State Fis'cal Year that must include, but is not limited to:

3.4.1. Total number of participants enrolled In all chronic disease programs
as a result of clinical and in-house referrals.

3.4.2. Aggregate data demonstrating each program's success that may
Include, but is not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Participant weight loss.

3.4.2.2. Program attendance.

3.4.2.3. Participant retention rate.

3.4.2.4. Documentation verifying ongoing CDC recognition for the
DPP.

3:4.2.5. Documentation verifying DSMES accreditation through
APCES.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report to the Department by
July 30th, 2023,- that includes, but is not lirnited to:

3.5.1. The aggregate data specified in Subsection 3.4, above. ,—m

pf
The Graniie Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials ^
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

3.5.2. Enroilment numbers for each chronic disease program. ■

3.5.3. Program completion rates.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall submit .the baseline, target and actual performance
indicators to the Department on an annual basis no later than thirty (30) days
after each State Fiscal Year end date, In order for the Department to measure
contracted services. Performance indicators include:

4.1.1. Number of new accredited/recognized DSMES programs or locations;

4.1.2. Number of DSMES encounters;

.  4.1.3. Number and proportion of . patients served within healthcare
organizations with systems to identify individuals with prediabetes and
referred to DDPs;"

4.1.4. Number of DPP enroilees and/or completers;

4.1.5. Number and proportion of patients within health systems with high
blood pressure and/or high cholesterol referred to an evidence-based
lifestyle program;

4,1:6. If community health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the number of
CHW engaged in linkage to or delivery of DSMES, DPP and evidence-
based programs for the management of high blood pressure and/or
high cholesterol;

4.1.7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharmacists and/or
pharmacies engaged in community-clinical linkage work;

4.1.8. Number of new Livestrong programs offered virtually and/or in person;

4.1.9. Number of patients referred to Livestrong from health systems;

4.1.10. Number of Livestrong enroilees and completers:

4.1.11. Number of Livestrong enroilees who had positive outcomes between
pre/post test and what those outcomes were; ■

4.1.12. Number of new startups mentored offering BPSM programs;

4.1.13. Number .of new startups mentored offering DPP;

4.1.14. Number of seniors reached to enroll in chronic disease prevention and
management programs;

4.1.15. Number of healthcare members trained to enhance community-clinical
linkages;

4.1.16. Number of new staff trained to deliver AAEBI programs;

4 1 17. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered; ^ds'

w
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

4.1.18. Number of participants attending AAEBI programs; and

4.1.19. Number of WISEWOMAN participants'enrolled in Chronic Disease
Programs;

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3." The Contractor may be required to provide other key. data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a formal specified by the Departrrient.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Coritractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal

legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities

.  and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)
5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of

the language assistance services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed'under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with'funds provided in part by the State of New

"  Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution
or use.

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, Including, but not limited to:,

ST

5.3.3'.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories: .

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines

5.3.3,4, Posters.

5.3.3.5. •Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty
upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the
provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license
or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the
performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said
license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic of physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers', books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,

— DS

. W
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valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other
records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including, all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access,to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maxirnum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the-Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are

' disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

-09
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH OiWI
6O3-27US0I l-e0D«S2.U45EiL4S0l

¥ti: 603-271-4827 TDD AcecJi: l-MO-735-2964
v.dhhs.nb.gev

April12. 2021

His Exoellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with The Granrte Young
Men's Christian Association (VC#154139). Manchester. NH to expand the existing Community^
Clinical Linkages program, by increasing the price limitation by 5^.^00 ̂ om $350,000 to
$694,000 wilh.no change to the contract completion date of June 30. 2023 effective upon
Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was.approved by Governor and Council on June 24. 2020, (llor"
#39).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021 and are
antlclpaled to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023. upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between-state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.
05-95-090.902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF "fALTH AND HUMAN
SVS HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Claaa/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017003 $25,000 $0 $25,000

2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90017002 $25,000 $0 $25,000

2021
102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90017003 $50,000 $125,000 $175,000

2021 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017002 $50,000 $125,000 $175,000

Tht DtparlmtnlofHtollh o/id Human Sen-icn'Mitsion i$ to Join contmunilia <utd
in providing opportuniiia lor eiiiunt 10 achievt htaith and indtpendtnet.
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2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017003 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017002 $50,000 $30,000 $80,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
SeiSrices

90017003 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2023 102:500731
Contracts for

•  Program
Services

90017002 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Subiolol $350,000 . $280,000 $B30,00p

OS-95-090-902010-70460000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal
Year

Claae/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

.2020 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90017717 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731

Contracts for

Program
Services

90017717 $0 $24,000 $24,000

2022 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Sen/ices

90017717 $0 $20,000 $20,000

2023 102-500731

Contracts for
Program
Services

90017717 $0 $20,000 $20,000

Subtotai $0 $64,000 $64,000

Total $350,000 $344,000 $694,000

EXPLANATION

This re<|uest is Sole Source because the increase in price limitation exceeds 10% of the
original contract price limitation.

the purpose of this request is to expand upon the existing Community-Clinical Linkages
program by increasing referrals and participation in evidence-based arthritis approved physical
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activity programs. Inclusion of these new physical activity programs is expected to also improve
outcomes related to diabetes and heart disease.

The partnership with the Granite Young Men's Christian Association supports the
Department's efforts In reducing the number of adults who develop diabetes and heart disease,
and Increases the number of edulle who appropriately manage their diabetes, blood pressure and
cholesterol levels. The Contractor will continue to collaborate with public health, health care and
community (non-health care) sectors to achieve belter prevention for those at a high risk for
chronic diseases and treatment outcomes for individuals living with chronic diseases.

The Contractor will expand the existing diabetes and heart disease work by Implementing
programs, statewide, through the Without Walls Initiative to take chronic disease programs
outside of the YMCA buildings and into health care sites, churches or other community based
organizations. The Contractor will also build capacity through staff training to refer and deliver
evidence based programs; mentor and support additional statewide Blood Pressure Self-
Monitoring Programs; menlor and. support statewide Diabetes Prevention Programs; conduct
outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease prevention and management programs; and
provide continuing education for physicians and healthcare teams in order to enhance community
dinical linkages for individuals referred to the YMCA lifestyle programs.

Approximately 048.000 adults in New Hampshire (333,000 with high blood pressure,
407,000 with prediabetes, and 110,000 with diabetes) are eligible for services through this
contract, from the contract effective date through June 30. 2023.

The Contractor continues to be responsible for creating referral systems with Federally
Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs). primary care clinics, hospitals and other community
organizations, induding but not limited to community action plans' In New Hampshire.
Additionally, the Ccnlractor remains responsible for Increasing referrals and enrollment Into the
National Diabetes Prevenlion Program (NDPP); Diabetes Self-Management Education and
Support (DSMES); Self-fi/lonltoring Blood Pressure Program (SMBP); Walk Wilh Ease; Enhance
Fitness; and the Arthritis Foundation Aquatics Program, Initially, the Contractor will focus on
Hlllsborough County, offering virtual and limited in-person programming for !he;Natlonal Diabetes
Prevention Programs and Setf-Monitoring Blood Pressure programs that can reach adults.
BtatGwride. In future contract years, the Contractor will expand services to Rocklngham and
Strafford Counties.

The Department will continue to monrlor contracted sen/Ices utilizing baseline end target
performance indicators, comparing to actual numbers. Including:

•  Numt>er of new accredited/recognized Diabetes Self-Management Education and
Supports programs or locations;

•  Number of Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports encounters;

•  Number and proportion of patients served within healthcare organizations with
systems to identify individuals wilh prediabetes referred to National Diabetes
Prevention Programs;

•  Number of National Diabetes Prevention Programs enrollees/completers. and

•  Number and proportion of patients within health systems with high blood pressure
and/or high cholesterol referred to an evidence-based lifestyle program.

As referenced in Exhibit A Revisions to Standard Contract Revisions-of the original
contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
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conlingenl upon Batisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreemant of the parlies and
-Governor and Council approval. The Oepartmenl is not exercising Its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals in New Hampshire
will not receive referrals from their primary care providers for evidence-based chfonic disease
prevention and management services within their communities. In the absence of these referrals,
disease morbidity and mortality may continue to increase, as vrill costs of healthcare to treat
Individuals wilh heart disease and diabetes. ■

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA <*93.426, FAIN #NU58DP006515. and CDFA #93.945. FAIN
#NUi58DP006448.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorl A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Heart Disease and Diabetes CommunityClinlcal Linkage Pilot Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1') is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health ar>d Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Slate" or "Department") and The Granite
Young Men's Christian Association, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor'), a nonprofit corporation
with a place of business at 117 Market Street Manchester NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreemeni (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24, 2020. (Item tf29), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 17. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement, Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

.$594,000.

2. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B Amendment #1
Scope of Services, which is which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, in order
to update services' provided by the Contractor to include programs related to arthritis and heart
disease.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to read:

1.2 91% Federal funds to Improve the Health of Americans Through Prevention and
Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke; as awarded on May 13, 2020, by
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)i prevention and Management of
Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH, CFDS #93.426, FAIN NU58DPO06515; and

1.3 9% Federal Funds to Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control;
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion as awarded on

October 19. 2020, by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). New
Hampshire Public Health Approaches to Addressing Arthritis, CFDA #93.945, FAIN#
NU58DP006448.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Section 3. to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-11 Budget. Amendment #1. The
Contractor shall:

3.1. Provide the services in Exhibit 8. Scope of Services in compliance with funding
requirements listed in Section 1.

- ■ ■ (l
The Groniie Young Men's Chfislien Assodalion Amendmeni #1 Contractor Initials''-—

RFP-202a-DPHS-09-HEART.01-A0t Pago 1 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Clinical Linkage Pilot

•if.

3.2. Meet the in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 30% of the total funding
In this contract, in compliance with the funding requirements listed in Section 1.

3.3. Ensure the annual required match is in non-federal, non-Department related
contributions either In cash, in-kind, or donated services" or equipment related to
directly carrying out project activities and goals related Exhibit 0 Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, and as approved by the Department.

3.4. Submit bi-annual reports ol itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
December 15th and June 15th annually.

5. Modify Exhibit C-2 Budget, by replacing.In its entirety with Exhibit C-2 Budget. Amendment #1.
which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C.-3 Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-3 Budget. Amendment #1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Modify Exhibit C-6 Budget, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-6 Budget. Amendment #1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-9 Budget. Amendment #1, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Add Exhibit C-10 Budget. Amendment #1. which.is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
hereih.

10. Add Exhibit C-11 Budget, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

PC

RFP-2020-OPHS-09-HEART-01-A01 Page 2 of 4 Dale,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-Ciinical Linkage Pilot

All lernns and condiHons of the Conlract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

. State of New Hampshire'
Department of Health and Human Services

5/4/2021

Date

2
Title: Director, Division of Public Health Srvcs

4/22/2021

Date

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association

bMwS)flM« ky:

N^^f^TJavSTporti
Title: President and CEO

Tho Granite Young Men's Christian Assodalion Amendmenl 1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviev/ed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/4/2021 I
5iii P. no.

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the fvleeting on; (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;
Title:

The Granite Young Men's Christian Associalion Amendment ft\
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statemerit of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
•chronic diseases.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar
days.

1.4. . The Contractor shall collaborate with public health departments, health care
providers and community non-health care providers to ensure individuals living
with chronic diseases have access to a variety of prevention and treatment
options within their communities.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation in, the National Diabetes Prevention
Programs (NDPP), Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports
(DSMES), as well as community programs and resources that provide an array
of services to individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High

. Cholesterol, including but not limited to. the Bipod Pressure Self-Monitoring
program (BPSM) program. The Contractor shall:

1.5.1. Mentor and support startup of additional statewide BPSM programs.

1.5.2. Mentor and support startup of additional pPP.

1.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with community and clinical resources to
develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities
and resources available to address gaps in services and' needs of individuals
within each county. The Contractor shall:

1.6.1. Specify objectives of the Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan;

1.6.2. Identify a lead agency responsible for each activity identified in the
plan; and

1.6.3. Collaborate with the Deparlmenl to determine evaluation metrics of
the Community-Clinical Action Plan.

1.7. The Contractor shall submit the draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan
to the Department for final review and approval within thirty. (30) days of the
Contract and subsequent Contract Amendment effective dates.

1.8. The Contractor shall implement the approved Community-Clinical Linkage
Action Plan, upon Department approval, in each county, statewide, beginning
in Hillsborough County, in order to improve health outcomes for individuals with
high blood pressure, high cholesterol, prediabetes, diabetes and arthritis. The
Contractor shall:

The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Corttroclor lr\iliais
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #1

1.8.1. Utilize strategies to Implement the Community-Clinical Linkages Pilot
Program, which include, but are not limited to;

1.8.1.1. Learning about the organizations and resources within the
communities and clinical sectors to implement evidence-
based approaches and interventions through community-
ctinicai linkage responsive to the target population's needs,
including:

1.8.1.1.1. Qualitative methods including but not limited to
focus groups; and

1.8.1.1.2. Quantitative methods including but not limited
to Geographiclnformalion Systems data.

1.8.1.2. Identifying and engaging key stakeholders from community
and clinical sectors, which may include, but are not limited
to:

1.8.1.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-health care settings.

1.8.1.2.2. Employers.

1.8.1.2.3. Prisons and jails.

1.8.1.2.4. Faith-based organizations.

1.8.1.2.5. Community centers.

1.6.1.2.6. Volunteer organizations.

1.8.1.2.7. Nonprofit organizations.

1.8.1.2.8. Hospitals.

1.8.1.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.

1.8.1.2.10. Rural clinics.

1.8.1.3. Soliciting the opinions, interests, concerns, and priorities of
diverse key stakeholders from both community and clinical
sectors in order to:

1.8.1.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
stakeholders; and

1.8.1.3.2. Develop consensus and support for the
linkages.

1.8.1.4. Evaluating both process and outcomes In order to
understand what creates an effective linkage.

1.8.2. Complete-all necessary strategies to ensure- successful linkages
"between community and clinical services to individuals with chronic
health conditions. r""

.  . PP
The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Inltlats^—
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1.8.3. Repeat all necessary strategies, as approved by the Department, in
each county until all counties have successful community-clinical
linkages.

1.9. The Contractor shall work with the Department to build the framework of an
ongoing Community-Clinical Action Plan to strengthen community-clinical
linkages.

1-.10. The Contractor shall improve access to and participation in American Diabetes
Association (ADA)-recognized / Association of Diabetes Care and Education
Specialists {ADCES)-accredited DSMES programs in underserved areas.

.1.11. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who have prediabeles to the Centers for
Disease Control and .Prevention (CDC)-recogriized lifestyle change programs,
which may include, but Is not limited to, the National Diabetes Prevention
Program (NDPP).

1.12. The Contractor shall implement systems that facilitate systematic referrals of
adults with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabetes, diabetes,
and/or arthritis issues to community programs and resources in order to
improve health outcomes.

1.13. The Contractor shall serve as a partner to Health Care Providers to extend the
goals of the clinical sector into community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.13.1. Focus on long-term relationship-based support for individuals to make
small, sustainable lifestyle changes that have dramatic effects on
health outcomes;

1.13.2. Reduce Uhe prevenlative health -care gap by working In close
partnership with the Department, local public health departments and

•  rhulti-sector national and local partners to meet the individual needs
of communities..

1.13.3. Engage coirimunity partnerships to:

1.13.3.1. Identify individuals at risk;

1.13.3.2. Meet the specific needs of the individuals served; and

1.13.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to program enrollment.

1.14. The Contractor shall implement an Integrated community approach involving
partnerships and collaboration with and among clinicians, public health
departrhents, schools and employers. The Contractor shall:

1.14.1. Collaborate with community health care providers and organizations
to Integrate community-based strategies that assist individuals to
utilize the resources to manage,- delay or prevent the development of
chronic conditions and to assist with improving healthy behaviors!

[lThe Graniie Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #1

1.14.2. Create-and strengthen clinic-to-community linkages that enable
health care providers to refer patients to evidence-based chronic
disease prevention and management programs within the community.

1.14.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for referring patients to
preventive services and community-based organizations that provide
evidence-based programming.

1.14.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members

and non-members who are referred to the program through the
network of community partners and referral sources

1.15. The Contractor shall develop a matrix identifying each stakeholder group and
the existing connections.

1.16. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potential stakeholders to provide
education on the DPP as well as their potential role within the program.

1.17. The Contractor shall utilize best practices to conduct outreach to the health
care providers, who may Include, but not limited to:

1.17.1. Physicians, Nurses.

1.17.2. Physician Assistants.

1.17.3. Nurse Practitioners;

1.17.4. Diabetes Educators.

1.17.5. Dentists.

1.17.6. Health Educators.

1.17.7. Dieticians. • •

1.17.8. Pharmacists.

1.17.9. Behavioral Specialists.

1.17.10. Chiropractors.

1.17.11. Patient Navigators.

1.17.12. Acupuncturists.

1.18. The Contractor shall provide direct referrals to participating community partners
for individuals who meet life style change programs' qualification criteria
resulting from the screening tool or blood test. The Contractor shall:

1.18.1. Provide health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to
display in provider offices;

1.18.2. Attend health fairs that Include glucose screenings for individuals at
high risk of developing diabetes;

iiiia sv~—The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment #1

-• 1.18.3. Provide free glucose screenings to individuals at high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP to members.

1.19. The Contractor shall-ensure take-aways from regularly scheduled meetings*
with health care providers include, but are not limited to;

1.19.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes
management programs;

1.19.2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria for referring pre-diabetes
patients into the program;

1.19.3. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
care providers;

1.19.4. The option to utilize a referral coordinator;

1.19.5.. Financial assistance availability through the Granite Y for eligible DPP
participants based on income; and

1.19.6. The recommendation that providers formalize the partnership through
-  an agreement, subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU).

■  1.20. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include:

1.20.1. Paper referral forms shared with referring patients;

1.20.2. Instructions for patients; and

1.20.3. A completed patient consent form thai allows the provider to share
patient contact Information directly with the Granite Y. in accordance
with Exhibit K of this agreement.

1.21. The Contractor shall work with providers to determine if a retrospective data
query, and/or electronic medical record databases in order to:

■ 1.21.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and

1.21.2. Mail or email outreach materials to individuals to inform them of the
Granite Y's DPP.

1.22.- The Contractor shall request health care providers include the Granite Y as a
referral option in Ihe provider's electronic health record systenn.

1.23. The Contractor shall request providers.who do not have an electronic health
record system or cannot use the system for the purposes above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signature or stamp.

1.24. The Contractor shall ensure its referral system is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibit 1. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement.

The Granite Young Men's Christian AssociaUon Contractor Initials^
4/22/2021
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EXHIBIT B, Amendment

1.25. The Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communication to transfer documentation, which may Include, but is not limited
to:

1.25.1. Progress updates.

1.25.2. Feedback on patients.

1.25.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.26. The Contractor shall determine what the provider intends to do with the
documentation, which may include, but Is not limited to:

1.26.1. Scan information into patients' records.

1.26.2. Enter into electronic health records.

1.27. The Contractor shall inform providers that the participant enrollment process is
ongoing with programs starting often and patients can contact the Granite Y for
the current schedule.

1.28. The Contractor shall determine what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibit K of this agreement.

1.29. The Contractor shall determine:

1.29.1. Programfees;

•  1.29.2. Availability of financial assistance:

1.29.3. How patients qualify and enroll; and

1.29.4. The types of ongoing communication with health care providers..

1.30. The Contractor shall maintain frequent and consistent communication with
community providers to build community partner relationships.

1.31. The Contractor shall provide follovy-up with community providers, that includes:,

1.31.1. Thank You notes, via mail or email;

1.31.2. Granite Y's DPP participant health care provider progress updates
including aggregate data only, via email; and'

1.31.3. Program updates, via email.-

1.32. The'Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to-community
providers.

1.33. The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes is updated.

1.34. The Contractor shall notify providers of the status of referrals, whether a patient
is enrolled into the program and shall include the class start date and location
information.

..,5
idalsLll.The Granite Young Men's Christian Association Coniracior initials
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EXHIBIT 8, Amendment #1

1.35. The Conlraclor shall invite health care providers who have referred palienis to
the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

1.36. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners and
participants to create awareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outreach strategies include, bul are not limited to:

1.36.1. Articles in local newspapers.

1.36.2. Marketing on the Granite Y's website.

1.36.3. Letters to patients from health care providers.

1.36.4. Presentations at community health care providers.

1.37. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation Plan to the Department
no later than September 1. 2020.

1.38. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Business Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Contract effective date, that includes:

1.38.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.38.2. The methods of communication and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;-

1.38.3. The key activities to deliver (he program; and

1.38.4. A list of partner organizations and individuals which may include, but
is not limited to:

1.38.4.1. Technology platforms.

1.38.4.2. Third party billing agencies.

1.38.4.3. Licensed health care providers.

1.38.4.4. Members of the Community Advisory Board.

1.39. The Contractor shall ensure program staffing includes, bul is not limited to:

1.39.1. A Program Director providing services urider this contract for no less
than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.39.2. An Administrative Assistant who shall be hired no later than October
1, 2020, to support DPP Health Coaches for no less than fifteen (15)
hours per week.

1.40. The Contractor shall implement programs, statewide, through the "Y's Without
Walls Initiative" to build capacity through staff training to refer and deliver
evidence based programs. ^

1.41. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to seniors to enroll in chronic disease

prevention and management programs, including but not limited to the offering •.

The Graniie Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials
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of a Medicare Diabetes Prevention Program, and Arthritis Appropriate
Evidence-Based Interventions (AAEBI).

1.42. The Contractor shall.assist healthcare organizations to implement a system
that identifies and refers individuals who. have arthritis to AAEBI for physical
activity and self-management education.

1.43. The Contractor shall implement and .expand selections of AAEBI-approved
physical activity programs to build capacity through staff training for referral and
delivery of programs, that include:

1.43.1. Arthritis Foundation Aquatic Program (AFAP);

1.43.2. Active Living Everyday (ALED);

1.43.3. Enhance eFitness (EF);

1.43.4. Fit Strong!;

1.43.5. Walk With Ease (WWE) Group;

1.43.6. Arthritis Foundation Exercise Program (AFEP); and

1;43.7. Walk With Ease (WWE) Self-directed.

1.44. The Contractor shall provide continuing education for physicians and
healthcare teams iisted'in 1.17 to enhance community clinical linkages.

.  2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contraclor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K, DHHS information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with ail Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contraclor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no later than
thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter that ensure recruitment, referral
and enrollment into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not
limited to:

3.1.1. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior
quarter.

The Gfanile Young Men's Christian Association Conlfaclof Imiialsv
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3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter,
approved by the Department, Including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to completing requirements.

3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports of aggregate data only
for each Performance Measure In Section 4 below to the Department within
thirty (30) days of each quarter end date.-

3.3. The Contractor shall submit an updated work plan that includes baseline and"
■  target numbers to the Department within thirty (30) days of the required kick-
off meeting following the contract effective date and any amendments to this
Agreement.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Department will utilize the following tools to measure performance, which
shall be achieved annually and monitored on a monthly basis:

4.1.1. Monthly in-person, electronic and/or conference call meetings with
the Department to review contract performance related to, but not
limited to:

4.1.1.1. Activities.

4.1.1.2. Challenges.

4.1.1.3. Progress.

4.1.1.4. Budget.

4.1.2. Baseline and target numbers are submitted to the Department within
ninety (90) days of the contract effective, dale in order for the
Department to compare baseline and target performance indicators
to actuals. Target performance indicators include:

4.1.2.1. Number of ne\y accredited/recognized DSMES programs
or locations;

4.1.2.2. Number of DSMES encounters;

4:1.2.3. Number and proportion of patients servisd within healthcare
organizations with systems to identify individuals with
prediabetes and referred to NDDPs; •

4.1.2.4. Number of NDPP enrollees/completers and

4.1.2.5. Number and proportion of patients within health systems
with high blood pressure and/or high cholesterol referred to
an evidence-based lifestyle program.

' Tw-
The Greniie Young Men's Christian Association Contractor Initials^.—- •
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4.1.2.6. If community health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the
number of CHW engaged in linkage to or delivery of
DSMES, NDPP and evidence-based programs for the
management of high blood pressure and/or high
cholesterol.

4.1.2.7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharmacists
and/or pharmacies engaged in community-clinical linkage
work.

4.1.2.8. Number of new startups mentored offering BPSM
programs.

4.1.2.9. Number of new startups mentored offering DPP.

4.1.2.10.-Number of seniors reached to enroll in chronic disease

.  prevention and management programs.

4.1.2.11. Number of healthcare members trained to enhance

community-clinical linkages.

4.1.2.12. Number of new staff trained to deliver AAEBI programs.

4.1.2.13. Number and type of new AAEBI programs offered.

.  4.1.2.14. Number of participants attending AAEBI programs.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

4.4. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. , The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future stale'or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)-

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the language assistance services they \vill provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to jpnsure,

The Graniie Young Men's Chrislian Assodalion Contfodor initials L—
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meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of. New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required. e:g., the United Slates Department of Health and Human
Services.".

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior writter) approval from the Department.

5;4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shatt be In

P/'
The Granite Young Men's Christian Assoaalion Conlractor Initialsv
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conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses Incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance v/ith accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include-, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient
of services, which records shall include all records oif application and
eligibility (including, all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records'regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the Onited States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment,of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or "survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall

■ retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

5
Tho Granite Young'Men's Christian Association Contfactor initials
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DfVISWN OF PUBUCHEALTH SER VICES

29 HAZEII'DRJVe, CONCORD. NH 02301

603-27I-4501 I-80D4S2-2J4S CiL 4S0I
r»i:M3-271-4827 TOO.Acrai: I-800-739-2M4

*.8bhi.nh.gov

June 12. 2020

Hie Excellency. Governor Christopher f. Sununu
and the Honorable Council -

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oeparlment of Health and Human Ser^ces, Division of Public Health
Services, to- enter Into e contract, with The Granite Young Men's Christian Association (VC#
154139}. Manchester, New^Hampshire, In the amount of $350,000 to pilot a Heart Disease and
Diabetes CommunityTCiinical. Linkage program, with the option to renew for up to two (2)
addlbonal yeara, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2023. 100%
Federal Funds.

' Funds ere available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, and
ere' anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the. availability end
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, wHh the authority to adjust budget
tine items within the price llmHatlon and encumbrances between state Fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if rieeded and juatrfied.

05-95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION. OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNmr SERVICES. COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal .Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Numtier

Total
Amount

2O20 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 90017OO3 S25.0D0

2020 '102^500731 Contracts for .Program Services 90017002 - $25,000

2021 i 02.-500731 Contracts tor Program Services W17003'. $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 96017P02' $.50,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts'for PrograniServices 90017003 $50,000

2022. ' 102-500731 Conlracts for Program Senrices 90017002 $50,000.

■  2023 102-5007'31 Contracts for "Program Son^iccs .  90017003 $50,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017002 $50,000

Total $350,000
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Council -

Pege 2 of 3

EXPUNATIQN

The purpose of this request is to implement a ComrhunHy-Clintcei LinKeges program to
support connections between communrty and medical services to improve health outcomes for
Individuals with high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabates or diabetes by increasing
referrets to. and participation In. avidanoe-based programs.

-  In 20t8, for the first time in over e decade, heart disease became (he leading ceuee of
death In New Hampshire, and diabetes Is Ihe seventh leading cause of death. Additionally, from
2017 to 2016, New Hampshire saw an Increase In the prevalenoe of diabetes among adults. This
partnership with the Granite Young Men's Christian Association will support the Oepartmeni'e
efforts in reducing the nurnber of adutts who develop diabetes and heart disease, and increase
the number of adults who appropriately manage their diabetes, blood pressure and cholesterol
levels.- The Contractor will collaborate with public health, health care and community (norvheaith
cere) setiors to achieve better prevention (or those at a high risk for chronic diseases end
treatment outcomes for Individuals living with chronic diseases.'

The Contractor will develop and expand referral systems for participation in the Notlona)
Diabetes Prevention Programs (NOPP), Oiabetes Self^Managemenl Education and Support
(DSMES). Self-Monitoring Blood Pressure (SMBP) programs, as well as community programs
and resources that provide en array of senrices to assist individuals with preventing or managing
chronic disease.

Approximately 848,000 adults in New Hampshire (330.000 with high blood pressure.
407.000 wrth prediabetes. and'lio.opo with diabetes) are eligible to be served under this contract,
from the contract effective date through June 30, 2023.

-The Contractor will be responsible for creating referral systems with Federally Qualified
Health Centers (FQHCs). primary care clinics, hospitals and other community oroanlzalipns,
including but not limited to communKy ection plans in New Hampshire. Additionally, the Contractor
will be responsible for Increasing referrals end enrollment into the National Oiabetes Prevention
Programs, Self-Monitoring Blood Pressure'prograrns end Diabetes Self-Management Education
and Support programs. Inlttally. the Contractor will focus on Hilisborough County, offering in*
person and virtual programming for the. National Oiabetes Prevention Programs and Self-
Monitoring Blood Pressure prograrns that can reach adult's statewide. In future contract years, the
Contractor will expand to. Rockihgh'am and Strafford Counties.

The Oeparfrnent will monitor contracted &er\rices utilizing baseline arid target performance
indicators, comparing to actual numbers; Including:

•  Number of new eccredKedfrecognized Diabetes Self-Management Education and
Supports programs or locations;

•  Number of Diabetes Self-Managemant Education and Supports encounters;
•  Number and proportion of-patients served within healthcare organizations with

eystems to Identify individuals with prediabetes referred to National Diabetes
Prevention Programs;

•  Number of National Diabetes Prevention Programs enrolioea/completers. er>d
•  Number and proportion of patients wHhin health systems .with high blood pressure

and/or high cholesterol referred to an evidence-based lifestyle program.
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Hf3 Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was iposted on the Department's website from 3/2/2020 through
4/9/2020. The Department received one (1) rcsponse.ihat was reviewed end scored by a team of
qualified individuals. The Score Shoot is attached.

■  . Ac referenced in Exhibit A Revisions to Standard Contract Revisions of the attached
contract the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of 'services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
Governor end Council approval.

Should the Governor end Council not authorize this request. Individuals in New Hampshire
will not receive referrals, from their primary care providers for evidence^based chronic disease
prevention and management services within their communities. In.the absence of these referrals,
disease morbidity and mortality may continue to Increase, as will costs of healthcare to treat
individuals vn'th heart disease and diabetes.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds. CFDA #93 426. FAIN NU580P006515

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully subrhltted, .

Comrr

. Shiblnette-

Commissioner

Dtportptnl efHeoUS qpJ Hiimcn S<rvi<ti' Miuitft i$ M /»in raAmumlWJ ond fomiliti
irt providing epportnnUlu fv cclwit lo ocAiiu* A<oUA ond indtptndtntt.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operatioris

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Heart Disease and Diabetes Community-
CtinicaI'Linkago Pilot

RFP Name

■ RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART

■ REP Numt>er * Reviewer Names

Marisa La/a. Adnfiinislrator I

Bidder Name
Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points
2

•  Emify Bird. Program Planner III

Granite Young Men's Christian Association 700 637.S Lisa Gorman, Program specialist IV

2. , - 4
' EDen Chase-Lucard, Adminislrator 11

3.
Amy Bergquisi. Finance-Administrator
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form number P07(veriion 12/im0l9)

Subjcci; Heart Disease and Diabeies Comfnunity-Clinical Linkage Pilot {RFP-2020-DPHS-09-HEART-01)

Nai'ice: Thii •jreeriKrn end ell of eiiechmenu thjli become public upon eibmittion to Governor end
Rxecuiive Council for tpprovtl. Any infornvjiion ihii Is priv-aie. conrideiuisl or propricjery mon
be cirtrly idcniificd lo ibe igepcy end igreed tO-in wTiiiflf prior 10 litnii^ Ibc conireci.

acrecmcnt

The Sure of New Himpshite end the Cenriaeior hereby muiusliy otTM OS follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I Sine Agency Ni'me

NewHempshire Depertment of Health ir^d'Human Services

1.3 Comrictor Name

The Cfftniic Young Men's Christian Associaiion

1.2 Smc Agency Address

129 PIcaMni Street
Concord. KH 03)01-3857

1.4 Ccniricior Address

117 Market Strcci

Manchester NH 03101

1.3 Cortlracior Phone
Number

(60)) 782-2801

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-9020IO-

12270000

1.7 Completion Paic

June 30. 2023

1.8 Price Liinliailon

S3SO.OOO

1.9 Coniraciin|Ofnccr for Stale Agency

Naiiian 0. While; Oirccior

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-06)1

1.11 Coittracior Signature

Date: 4.11.20

(.12 Name and Title of Coniraeior Signatory

Davit) Puns. PfrtidemfCCO

1.1) Stair AgeneySignaivre

O"'-(e (V2JD

1.14 Name and Title of State Ageney Signaiory

1.13 Approval by the N.H. OepaniiKni of Admiriisiraiion, Oirition of Personnel (ifflpplicnblc)

By;- Director. On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney Oeijeral (Form, Substance and Esecoiion) (ifnpplicdble)

06/12/20

1.17 Approval by the Covcrr>o/and tac.ciitivc Coiineil (ifrtpp\i(nb\f)

C&C Hen number; G^:C Meeting Date:-

Page I of 4
Contracior IniiihlsOP

Dale 6-11*20
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2. SERVICES TO BC PERFORMED. Thr S<sie of New
HompshiVe. octing through the igcncy idcniirinl in block I.I
r'SidtC-), engages contractor ' Identilkd iri b)t>ck I.)
CContWtor'') to perform, and the Cohinctor shall pcrform.-thc
work or sole of goods, or both, ideniificd and morc-panicviirly
described-in iIk aiiachcd EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by refcrcfice |"Ser> icei"|.

3. EFFCCtlvC DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwiihsiindiog any prcviilon of this AgrccmerM (o the
eonmry. end subject to the approve) of the Governor and
Eeecuiivc Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifapplicoble.
this Agrccmcni. end all obligations of the panics hercnndcr. shall
become •effective on the date (Sc Governor and E.xecutive

CourKtl apprave this Agrecrneni as indieaied in. block 1.17.
unless no such approval isr<r)uircd. in which case the Agreement
Shall .becorTK cfTecilve on the date the Agreemertt is signed by
the State'Agency as shown in block. I.I 3 Corrective Dote").
3.2 If the Contractor commerKCS the Services prior to the
effective Date, oU'Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be pcrforrrtcd at the sole'n'sk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Acrecmeni dors not b<co<rK
elTcciive. the State sKall have no liabilit'y to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any cosis incumcd or Services performed.
Contractor must complete .all Servlcet by the Compleiidn Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional nature of agreement.
NotMithsianding any provision of this Agreement to the
cnntniy, a!) obligiiioos of (he State hcreunJer, including,
ivi.thout iifflitation, the continuance of piymenis hercunder. are
contingent upon (he availibiliiy and continued appropriaiion of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or c.teeutiv-e
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriniion or availability of funding for this Agreemeni and
the Scope for Ser^'ices provided in EXHIBIT B, in \vI>ole O' in'
part. In no event shall-the State be liable -for'any psymrnt.<;
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds, io the
event of a reduction or (crmiaatioii of appropriated funds, the
State sitall have the right lo lyiihliol.d payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have.the right to reduce or
lerminiie the Services under this Agreemeni .immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State thai! not be required to transfer fui\ds from any other
account Of source to the.Account.ideriiified in block 1.0 in the
citni funds In that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICEfFRICE LIMITATION/ .
PAYMENT,

y I The contract price, method ofpiymcni. and terms of payment
arc identified and more panicuiirjy iJrseribed in EXHIOlt C'
which is itvcorporatcd hercin.by reference.
S.2 The payment by (he State ofdve comrtci price shall be the
only.'and the complete rcimbursenieni to the Coniracior for all
eapenscs, of whatever nsiufc incumed by the Ceiniracior in the'
pcrformsncc hereof, and Shall be (he only and the complete

compensation to the Contraciorfonhe Services. The Sine shsll
have no liability lo the Contractor other- than the coniraci price.
3.3 The State reserves tlie right (o offset from ony oirtounis
' o(hcrwise-piyab]e to (he Contrector iinder ihi.e Agrccmciu those

liquidated ainoums required or permiiied by N.H. RSA S0:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any ether provision of I'aw.

■3.4 Noiwiihsiandtng ony provision in (his-Agreement lo the
coniraiy. and rtoiu-irhuinding une.vpecied circumstances, in no
event shall (he lotai of all payments authorized, or actually made
hercunder, e.vcrcd the Price Limitation set forth in block I.S.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR SVITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY,
6.1 In'connection w4ih the performance of (he Services, the

.Qoniracior shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
rcgulaiions. and orders of federal. Rate, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obiigaiion or duty.upon the
Conirxtor. including, but not'limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opponunity lavvs.' In addition, if this Agseemcni is-
funded in any pan-by monies of (he United States, the Comrictor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statuics. and with any rule.e, rtgulatcons arsd guidelines at the
State or .the United Sjates issue to implement these regulations.-
The Contractor shall also consply with all applicable iniellenuil
properly laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contracior shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for c'mpldyment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. ses. handicap, tcxua)
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to

' prevent suclidiKriminaiion.
6.3. The Comrtctoi egrccs to permit tlie State or United States
access to any oi'-ihc Cunirgctor's books, records and occounis lor'
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules', regulations
and orders, arn) the covenants, terms and eondiiions of this
Agreciiscnt.

7. personnel.
7.1-The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
ncccs.sary to perform the Services. The Contractor worrujiis (hat
all personnel engaged in the S.erviccs shall be qualified to

'perform the Servircs. and-shaU be'properly licensed and.
otherwise rtitilioriied to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing during the term of
this Agreemeui. and for a period of six (6) rnontlts afler the

' Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall riot hire, and
shall not permit a'ny subconjractor or other person, firm or
corporation witli «vhom it is crtgagcd in a combined effori'io'
perform (he Services to hire, any person who it a State employee
or oHiciil.. vrho is ma'terialiy involved in (he procurement,
admini.tiration or performance of'this-Agrccrnent. . This
prov'tsion shall sur\'ivc icrmihaiipn of this'Agreement. .
7.3 The ConitflciingOfTic<fspceifi?d in block 1.9. or his or her-
succcvsor. shall he the State's representative. In the event of any
dtspuic concerning (he inicrprciiiion of this Agreemeni. (he
•Cuntracting OHiccr's decision sliali he finar for the Stale..

PflfiC 2 of 4
Conirnclor tniiifils DP

Dale ^■n.ao
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEOteS.

fl. I Any one or more of ihc following ecu oi omitsiont of <he
Conirxior ihell conM'ivic an event or<defDulihcreunOcr|"Cvcni

ofOefaoli'):

8.1.1 fellurc to perform the Scrvkes uiiifectorily or on
crhedult:

8.1.2 failure loiubmii any report rrguired hereurtder: end/or
8.1.) failure lo perform any orher covenant, term or cortdin'on of
this Agreemeai.
8.7 Upon the oecurrcnce of any £veni ofOcfavli. ihc Siair may
like any one. or more, or all. of ihr followln|'Ktiont:
8.7.1 give (he Conirecior a Mrincn notice specifying the Ev<ni of
Defauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser speelficttion oft im'e. thirty (30) days from the
due of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is riot timely ciueO.
icrminaic this Agreement, en'ecllvc two (2) days afler giving the
Contractor rtotice of (erminaiion^

8.2.2 give (he Coniracioi a wriiien'notice specifying the Event of
Defaiik end suspending ail piynxmt to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thai the portion of the contract price
which ivoutd otherwise aecrue to ihe CoAiiacior during the '
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines thai the Contractor has cured the Event of Dcrauli

Shalt rtever be paid to (he Contractor:
1.2.3 give the Coniiaclor a wrilttn noiiee Specifyingthe Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations (he Stale may
owe to the Coniracior any dajnages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default: and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agrcemeitt as breached, terminate the
Agreement end pursue any of its remedies at jaw or inequity, c
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provision.e hereof ehcr-
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with -
rtgard.to (hit Event of Default, or any SkAsequeni Event of
Default. No cipress fiiivre to enforce any Event of Dcfantt'shall
be deemed a waiver of the. right of the State to enforce each and
all of the proosions-hereof upon any funhcr or other Event of
Default on the pan of the Coniracior.

9.TEHMINATI0N.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph g. the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement-for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice (o the Coniiaaor that
the Stele is e.tercismg its option to lermirute the AgrecmerK.
9.2 (n (he event'of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of ihe Services, the
Contracinr shall, at the .Stoic's discretion., deliver to the
Conincting OfTiecr. not later ihin riflecn(>3) days after the tUte
of icrminaitoft. 0 report ("'Tcfnilnotion Repon"! dvsvfibing in
detail all Services performed, end the contract price earned, to
and|lncluding the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. inoddiiinn, at (he Siaie'i discrciinn. iltc Coniroeior
shall, vviihin lidaysof.noticc of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for scr
Ag/eemeni.

the

10. DATA/ACCLSS/CONFlDEN'flALITV/

preservation.

10.1 As used in (his Agree nieni. the word ' doto"sholl mean all
Information and .things developed or ebiained during (he
perforrmnce of. or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Afrecmeni. including, but not limited to. all studies. repori.v
files, formufae. surveys, maps, charis. sound recordings, video
rccordmgt; pi.ctorbt rcproduetiOAi. drawings, analyses, graphic
ies>rcseniaiions. computer programv. computer printouts, notes,
letters, memorands. papers, and docvmems. all whether
finished or unfinished.
.10.2 All dsit and any propeny which has been received from

. Ihc State or purchased wiih-funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propenyofthr State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or.upon tcnnination
of this Agreement for any reajon.-
10.3 Confidcniialiiy ofdata shall be governed by.N.K. RSA
chapter 91-A or other e.slsiing law. DiKlosure ofdata requires
prior ̂ vriticii approval of the State.

11. CONTR/XCTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
pcrformancc'of this Agreement the Contractor is In all respects
an indepcfldeni contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor t>or any of its
officers, employees, ageats or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or re\'eivv anv hoicfits, vwwkers' compcnsaiionar
othrr. emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMCNT/DELeCATlONySUBCOiNTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or Otherwise irensfrr any
intCfCSl in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which'
shall be provided to the State at least fiflern (13) days prior lO
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of tills paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
a.vtignnieni. "Change of Control" nK-Bn.t (a) merger,
eonsolid.aiion. or a tronsaciion or series of related iransaciions in
which a third party, together with its efTiliaics. becomes the
direct or .indirect owi*r of fifty pcfteni (30%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interest.*, or combined voting
pov^tf of ihc Cowficior. or (b) the sale of all cjr subsianiiolly all
of the assets of (he Co.niraeior.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Coniractoi without prior wtiitcn notice and consent of the State.
The Stoic i.< entitled locoplcttofall subconiract.* and alignment
' agrcetnenis and shall not be bound by any.provisions contained

in a subconiraei or an e.ssignment agreement to u4iich it is not a
pony.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. OntesscMherwisc exempted bylaw,
the Contractor shall indemnify, and hold harmless the State.-ii.s
officers and employees, from and ig3in.et any and all claims,
liabilities and cost.* for any (lersonal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims assened against
the State, its ofTiren or employees. «tiieh arise out of(ot which -
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omission of the

or4

Conintcior Iniilals OP

Dmc 6-11-20
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Coniricior. or subconiraciors. irKluding bui noi limhcd'lo ihc
negligence, rccklctt or iMeniior«il conduci. The Soie <hall i>oi
be liable Cor any cMit irKurred by (he Comrector ifising under
ihi] poregraph I). Notwiihnendingihe foregoing.noiKingherein
coniaii^cd shall be deemed to cooiiriiute a uiiver of the sovereign
immwniiy of ihe Siaie. »bkh immuniiy is hereby reserved (O (he
S(ate. This co^tnahi in paragraph 1) shall Survive ihe
lerminaiion of (Ids Agrecmeni.

14. INSURAh'Ce.
14.1 i;h« Conlraeior shall. «• Its Mit eap<ru«. obiiln and
coniinueusly mainisirt' in force, and shall red«iirc nny
{ubcorttrtc<or or'atsignce lo obtain and main<ain in force, ihc
fotlo^ving Irvsurtnce:
14.1.1 comirtcrciil gctteral liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, deaih or properly darrtoge. in amounis of not
less thars Sl.000.000 per occtsrretKe and S2.000.000 aggregate
orexceLsipnd
14.1.2 special cause ofloucovcntge form coveting ail properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, irt an amouni not less than
!0*/ioflhe whole replocemenl value of ihe property.
14.2 The policies described insubfiarigriph-l4.l herein shall be
v\ policy forms and ertdorsemerus approved for use in (he Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Ocpsnmeni of Irtturartce. and
issued by iniuren licensed in the State of New Hampsliire.
14.3 The' Coniroaor shall furnish lo the'Conuaeling OfTicer
ideniificd in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a certiricaicCs} of
insurance for all insurance required utsder ihis Agreement.
Contractor sltall also furnishlo the ComractingOfTidcr idcniiricd
in block 1.0, or his or her successor, certificaie(s) of insurance
for all renewil(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
laicr than ten (10) days prior lo.ihc e.xpiration date of eacli
InstiiitKc policy.. The ccriiftcaicls) of insurance atxl any
rettctvals thereof shall be attached and are incorpotaied.hcrcin by
reference. .

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agrceirxnt. the Contractor agrees, certifies
and Morraitts that the Contractor it in compliance with or exempt
front, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A f it'orirrj'
Cooip*iisat'0>i"i.
15.2 To ihce.xient the Contractor is itibjcci to the requirement.*
of N.H. nSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall tnalitiaitt. and
requite ony suhconiractor or assignee to secure and tnainialn.
pjymcni ol" Workers' Cnnipcittaiipn irt conneciiixi with
activities which the person proposes to urvdcrtake puisoani lo this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Coniracltng Officer
idcittificcJ in block 1.9, or his or her tucvctwr, prauf of Wuriers'
Compensation'in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rencwal(s)' thereof, v^-hich shall be
aiiochrd and are incorportied herein by refererKC. The State
shoU not he responsible for payment of any Woricrs'
Compensation premiums or for any other cluim or betiefii for
Contractor, or ony subconiractor or employee of Contracio'.
which might arise under epplieahle .Sine of New Hampshire
Workers' Com|>easaiioo laws Itt corincetion with ihc
performance of the Servleei under this Agreetnetii.

Id. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto lo the other piny
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or givcn-ei (he time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid! irt a United States
Pott Office addressed to the panics at the addrcssei given in
blocks l'.2 and 1.4. herein.

17. AMENOM EN'T. Thii Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an insirumcni in mitlitg signed by the
porues hereto and only aflcr' approval of Stieh anKndmmi,
waiver or discharge hy (he Covemo' end Executive CowrKll of
the Stale of New Himpvhirc unless no Such approval is required
under the circumsiancci pursuant to State law. rule or policy.

18. CHOlCC'OrCAW AND FORUM! This AgrceriKnt shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in Kcordonce with (he.
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The xvording used in ihi.t Agrc'emcni is the wording
chosen by the panics to e.sprcss their mutusl intent, end no rule
of cottsiructiou shall be applied against or in favor of ony pany.
' Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall bc broughi and
maintained Irt New Hampshire Superior'Court which shall have
c.tclii.*ivc jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the eveni of a conflict
between the terms of this P*37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or oiuchmentt and amendment (hereof, the terms of the
P'37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A)shall control. .

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics liereto do not intend to
bciiefti any third pini.es .and this Agreement shall not be.
construed to confer ony such hcnc.ni.

Zl! headings. The headings ihrougliom the Agreemeni ore
for reference purposes only, and the words contained (herein
xhall irt no way be hckl to e.cplain. modify: amplify or aid in the
imrrpretaiien. construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22.' SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions SCI forth in the atiarheJ EXHIBIT A are iiicoiporaied
herein by reference.

2.L SEVCRABILIVV. Ii> the event any ofihe provisions ofihis
Agreement arc held by a court of compcirni jurisdiciion to be
contrary to any .uaie or federal law. the remaining provisions of
this Agreement tviil renuin in full force and cfTeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrtcmtni. which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of *vhi€h shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire igreetneni and
uitdersiinding between the parties, and supersedes oil prior
Dgreemenis and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Healih and Human Servlcoe
Heart Disease and Diabetes Community*Cllnical Linkage Pilot

EXHIBIT A-

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Porrn P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Effective Dale/Complellon of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional yeaf(s)
from (he Completion Date, oonlingeni upon satisfactory delivery of
services; available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. Assignment/Delegation/Subconiracts.' is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as fotlows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as ihe
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subconiractoi

compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with alj'subconlraclors. specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is Inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and lake corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide Ihc.State with
a list of all subconlraclors provided-for under this Agreement and notify
the Stale of any inadequate subcontractor performance.
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New Hampshire Oeparlment of Health end Human Services
Heart Disease and Diabetes Communliy-Cllnlcal Linkage Pilot

EXHIBITS

Scope of Services

1. Statement of W.ork

1.1 •. The Conlraclor shall provide services in this agreement to individuals living with
chronic diseases.-

-  1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to counties Statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall be calendar

<Jay5-

1.4. The Contractor shall collaborale-with public health departments; health care
providers and community non-health care providers to ensure.individuals living
with chronic diseases have-aricess to a variety of prevention ar>d treatment
options within their communities.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop and expand upon existing Community-Clinical
Linkages for referral to, and participation-In, the National Diabetes Prevention
Programs (NDPP), Diabetes Self-Management Education and Supports
(DSMES). as well as community programs and resourcesjhat provide an array
of $er>nces to individuals to assist with managing High Blood Pressure and High
Cholesterol, including but not limited to.-the Brood Pressure Self-Monitoring
program (BPSM).

1.6. The Contractor shall, collatwrate with community and clinical resources to.
develop a draft Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan that specifies activities,
and resources available to address gaps in services and needs of individuals
within each county. The Contractor shall:

1.6.1. Specify objectives of the Community-Clinical Linkage Action Plan;

1.6.2. Identify a lead agency responsible for each activily identified In the
plan; and

1.6.3. Collaborate with the Department to d'eter.mine evaluation metrics of
the Communiiy-Glinical Action Plan.

1.7. The Contractor shall subrnit the draft Communiiy-Ciinical Linkage Action Plan
to the pepartment for final review and approval within thirty. (30) .days of the
Contract effective dale.

1.8. The Contractor shall implement the approved. Community-Clinical-Linkage
-  Action P)an. upon Oeparlment approval, in each county,'statewide, beginning

in Hillsboro County, in .order to improve health outcomes'for individuals with-
high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pfediabetes and diabetes. The
Contractor shall:

•' 1.8.1. Utilize siraiegies to implemerit the Community-Clinical Linkages Pilot
Program, which include, but are not limited to:
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New Hampshire Oepartmont of HoaUh and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

'  1.6.1.1. Learning about the organizations and resources within the
communities and clinical sectors to Implement evidence-
based approaches and interventions through community-
clinical linkage responsive to the target popuiaUon's needs,

" Including:'

1.6.1.1. t. Qualitative methods including but not limited to
focus groups: and

1.6.1.V2. Quantitative methods including but not limited
to Geographicinformatioh Systems data. '

1.8.1.2. identifying end engaging key stakeholders from comrhunily'
. and clinical sectors, which may include, but are not limited

to; ■

1.6.1.2.1. Local pharmacies in non-healih' care settings.

1.6.1.2.2.. Employers.

1.8.1.2.3. Prisons and jails.

. 1.6.1.2.4. Faith-based orgariizations.

1.6.1.2.5. Community centers. •

1.8.1.2.6. Volunteer organizations,

1.8.1.2.7.. Nonprolit organizations.

1.6.1.2.8. Hospitals. .

1.6.1.2.9. Federally Qualified Health Centers.

1.8.1.2.10. -Rural clinics.

1.8.1.3. Soliciting (he opinions, interests, concerns, and priorities of
diverse key stakeholders from both community and clinical
sectors, in order to:

'1.8.1.3.1. Ensure linkages are relevant and meaningful to
stakeholders; and

1.6.1.3.2. Develop- consensus and support for (he
linkages.

1.8.1.4: Evaluating both process and outcomes in order to
understand what creates an effective linkage.

1.6.2. Complele ail necessary strategies to ensure successful linkages
between community and dinical services to individuals with chronic
health conditions.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B

1.6.3. Repeal alt.necessary sirategies, as approved by the Department. In
each couniy until all counties have successful communiry-ciinlcal
linkages.

1.9.. The Contractor shall work with the Oeparlmenl to build .lhe framework of an
ongoing" CommunUy-Clinlcal Action Plan to sirenglhen communily-dinical
linkages.

1.10. The Contractor shall improve access lo and partidpatioh in American Diabetes
. .Association (AOA)-recogni2ed / American Association for Diabetes Educators
(AAOE)-accrediled DSMES programs in urvierserved areas.

1.11. The Contractor shall assist health care organizations to Implement, a system
that Identifies and refers individuals who have prediabetes lo the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevenilon (CDCKecognlzed lifestyle-change programs.-
which may include, but is not limited to. the National Diabetes Prevention
Program (NDPP).

1.12. The .Contractor shall irnplemehl systems that facilitate systematic referrals of
adults wiih high blood pressure, high cholesterol, pre-diabetes. or' diabetes
issues lo community programs and resources in order, to improve health
outcomes.

1.13. The Contractor shall serve as a partner lo Health Care Providers to extend the
gbais of the clinical sector into community settings. The Contractor shall:

1.13.1. focus'on long-term relationship-based support for individuals to make
sm.all, sustainable lifestyle changes that have dramatic effecls on
health, outcomes;

1.13.2. Reduce the preventalive heaUh',.cdre gap by working, in close
partnership with the Department, local public health departments and
multt-seclor.national and local'partners to meet the individual-needs

©(.communities.

1.13.3. Engage communliV partnerships to:

1.13.3.1. -Identify individuals at risk;

-1.13.3.2. Mdel the specific needs of the individuals served: and.

1.1.3.3.3. Reduce potential barriers to prograrri enrollmenl. ,

1.14. The Conlrettor shall implement en integrated community approach involving
partnerships end collaboretion with and among- clinicians, public health
departments.-schools and employers. -The Contractor shall: •

1.14.1. Collaborate with community health cere providers and organizations
-u.. to- integrate-community-based strategies that assist'individuals to

ulijlze (he resources to manage, delay or prevent ihe development of-
chronic conditions and-to assisl with Improving healthy behaviors.
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EXHIBIT B

1.14.2. Create and strengthen clinic-to-communliy linkages that enable
health care providers (o refer patients to evidence-based chronic
disease prevention and managemeni programs within the oomnnunity.

1.14.3. Provide a simplified process to physicians for referring patients tc
preventive .services and community-bdsed organizations thai provide
evidence-based programming.

-  1.14.4. Provide diabetes prevention services that are available to members.
.. and non-members who are referred to the program through the

netv^fk of community partners and referral sources

1.15. The Contraclor shall develop a matrix identifying each stakeholder group and
the existing connections.

1.16. The Contractor shall schedule meetings with potenlial stakeholders to provide
education on the DPP as well as their potential role within the program.

1.17. The Contractor shall utilize best practices lo 'conduci outreach to the health
care providers, who may include, but not limited to:

1.17.1. Physicians. Nurses.

1.17.2. Physician Assistants.

1.17.3. Nurse Practiiioners.

1.17.4. plabeies Educators..

1.17.5. Dentists.

1.17.6. Health Educators.

1.17.7. Dieticians.

■  1.17.6. Pharmacists.

1.17.9., Behavioral Specialists.

1.17.10.' Chiropractors.

1.17.11. Palieril Navigators.

.. 1.17.12. Acupunctufisls.

1.16. The Contraclor ̂hall provide.direcl referrals to participating commu'nily partners
(or individuals who meet life style change programs' quatifiQdlion criteria
resuliing from the screening tool or blood test. The Contractor shall:

1.16.1. Provid.e health care providers with posters, flyers and brochures to
display in provider offices:

1.16.2. Altend health fairs that include glucose screenings for individuals at
high risk of-developing diabele.s;
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.  EXHIBITS

T.18.3. Provide free glucose screenings lo Individuals at high-risk of heart
disease or diabetes; and promote the DPP lo members.

1.19. The Contractor-shall ensure take-aways from regularly scheduled meetings
with hedjih care providers indudeVbut are not limited to:
1.19.1. The difference between diabetes prevention programs and diabetes

management programs:

1.19.2. The DPP diagnostic screening criteria fo^ referring pre-diabeies
.  patients into the program;

•  1.19.3. The simplified referral process to minimize the requirements of health
' care providers;

. 1.19.4. The option lo utilize a referral coordinator;

.  1.19.5. Financial assistance availability through the Gfaniie Y for eligible DPP
participants-.based on Income; and

1,19.6. The recommendalion that providers formalize the partnership through
an agreenient,' Subcontract or Memorandum of Understanding

.  (MOU).

1.20. The Contractor shall ensure health care provider referral practices include;

1.20.1. Paper referral forms shared with referring patients;

1.20.2. Instructions for palienls; and

1.20.3.- A completed patient, consent form that allows the provider to-'share
patient contact information directly wiih the Granite Y. in accordance
with Exhibit K of this agreement. . .

1.21: The Contractor shall work wiih providers to determine if a retrospective data
query electronic medical record-databases in order to:

1.21.1. Identify patients who meet program qualification criteria, and

1.21.2. Mail or email outreach i^aterials lo individuals to inform th^m of the
Granite Y's DPP.

1.22. The'Cpntractor shall request health care providers include the Granite Y as a
referral option in the provider's electronic health record system.

1.23. The Coniraclor shall request providers who do not have an electronic, health
record system or cpnriol use the system for the purpos.es above, use pre
printed referral forms that require only a provider signaiure or stamp.

1.24. The Contractor shall -ensure its referral, system Is HIPAA compliant, in
accordance with Exhibil I. Heallh insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Business Associate Agreement.

OP
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.  EXHIBIT B

1.25. The Contractor shall determine the provider's preferred secure method of
communicalion to transfer documentation, which may include, but is not limited
to:

1.25.1. Progress updates.

1.25.2. Feedback on paiienis.

1.25.3. Data requested by a provider.

1.26. The Contractor shall.determine whal the provider intends to do with the
• documentation, which may include; but is not limited .to:

1.26.1. Scan Inforrnationinlo patients'records.

1.26.2. Enter into, electronic health records.

1.27. The Cohtractor shall Inform providers that the participant enrollmenl process is
ongoing with programs.siarting often and patients can contact the Granite Y for
(he curreni schedule.

1.2'8. The Contractor shall determine .what secure and HIPAA compliant data
providers can share in accordance with Exhibit K of this agreement.

1.29. The Contractor shall deterrhine:

1.29.1. Program fees;

r.29.2. Availability offinancial assistance;

1.29.3. How pallents qualify and enroll; and

1.29.4. The types of ongoing "communication with health care providers.

1.30. The Contractor shall maintain (reque.ni and consistent communication with
community providers to build community partner relationships.

1.31. The Contractor shall provide follow-up wilh community providers, that Includes:
1.31.1, Thank You notes. Via mail or email; .

•. 1.31.2. Granite Y's DPP participant health care provider progress updates-
including aggregaie data only, via email; and '

1.31.3. Program updates, via email. •

.•1.32. The-Contractor shall provide current marketing materials to community-
providers.

1.33.- The Contractor shall send email notices to community providers when the
schedule of classes Is updated.

1.34. The Contractor shall notify providers of Ihe status of referrals, whether a patient
Is enrolled Into the program qnd shall include the class start date and location
Information.
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EXHIBIT 8

1.35. The Contractor shall invite heatlh care providers who have referred patients to
the program to participate on the Community Advisory Board.

'1.36. The Contractor shall conduct outreach with community partners arxl
partidpanls to create awareness of the program and to promote the
opportunities to participate in the program. The Contractor shall ensure
outra'ach strategies Include, but are not limited to;.

1.36.1. Articles m local newspapers.

1.36.2.- Marketing on the Granite Y's websiie..

1.36.3. 'Letters to patients from healih care providers.

1.36.4. Presentations at community health care providers.

1.37. The Contractor shall develop and submit an Evaluation Plan to.(he Oeparlment
nolater than September 1. 2020.

1.38. The Contractor shall develop and submit a Business Plan to the Department
within sixty (60) days of the Coniraci effective, date, that includes: >

1.38.1. The targeted community partners and stakeholders;

1.38.2. The methods of communication and outreach, including the type and
frequency of communication;,"

■  -1.38.3. The key activities to deliver the program; and..

1.38.4. A list of partner organizations and ind.ividuais which may include, but
is not lirhiied to;

•  1.38.4.1." Technology.plalforms.

1-.38.4.2-. Third party billing agencies.

1.38.4.3. Licensed health care providers.

1.38.4.4, Members of the Community Advisory Board.

1..39. The Contraclor shall ensure program staffing includes, but is not lirriited to:

1.39.1. A Program Director providing services under this contract for ho less
than twenty (20) hours per week.

1.39.2. . An Administrative Assistant who shall be hired no later than October
1, 2020. to support DPP Health Coaches for no less than Titteen (15)
hours per week.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and discJose Protected Health Information in
.compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Healih
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. and in
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EXHIBIT B

accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, whi^
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage ail confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with Exhibit K. DHHS Iriformalion Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits 0 through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports to the Department no .later than
thirty (30) days after'the end of each quarter that ensure recruitment, referral
and enrbilmeni into the chronic disease programs, which include, but are not
limited to:

3.1.1. A brief narrative of the work and activities performed during the prior
quarter.

3.1.2. A summary of work and activity plans for the upcoming quarter.'
approved by the Department. Including, but not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Challenges and/or barriers to compieling requirements.

. 3.1.2.2. Documented achievements.

3.1.2.3. Progress towards meeting the performance measures.

'3.2. • The Contractor shall submit Quarterly Outcome Reports of aggregate data only
for each Performance Measure in Section 4 betow to the Department within
thirty (30) days of each quarter end date.

4. Performance fifleasuros

4.1. The Department will utilize the following tools to measure performance, which
shall be.achieved annually and monitored on 8 mohlhjy basis: . .

4.1.1. Monthly in-pcrson. electronic and/or conference call meetings with
the Department to review contract performance related to. but not
limited to:

4.1.1.1. Activities.-

4.1.1.2. Chalicnges.

4..1.1.3. Progress.

4.1.1.4. Budget.

4.1.2. Baseline and target numbers are submitted to the Department within
ninety (90) days of the. coniracl effective date in order for the
Department to compare baseline and target performance indicators
to actuals. Target performance indicators include:
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EXHIBIT 8

4.1.2.1. Number ol new accredited/recognized OSMES programs
or locations:

4.1.2.2. Number of OSMES oncounlers:

4.1.2.3. Number end proportion of patients served within healthcare
orgartizaiions with systems to identify individuals with
prediabeies artd'referred to NDOPs;

4.1.2.4. Number of NOPP enrollees/completers and

4.1.2.1 Number and proportion of patients within health systems
with high blood pressure andfor high choiesterol.referred to
an ovidenco'based lifestyle program.

4.1.2.6. If community health worker (CHW) strategy selected, the
nijmber of CHW engaged in linkage to or delivery ol

'  DSMES. NDPP and evidence-based programs^ for the
management of high blood pressure* and/or high
cholesterol.

4.1.2.7. If pharmacy strategy selected, the number of pharmacists
and/or phaimacies engaged in community-clinical linkage
work.

4.2. The Contractor shall actively and-regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract mianagement. improve results and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

4.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and melrlcs to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service.

• data.

4.4. .Where applicable, the Corilractor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by thie Department.

5. Additional Terms

5.1.. Impacts Resulting frohi Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to Ihe extent future stale or federal.
•  legislation or coun orders may have, an Impaci on the Services-

described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreemeni so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

5.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a deldiled description ol
the language assisiance services they will provide to persons wiih
limited English proficiency end/or hearing impairmenl to* ensure
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EXHIBIT B

meaningful access to iheir'programs and/or services wilhirt ten (10)
days of the conlract effective date.' • •

S.3.. Credits and Copyright Ownership

5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other-
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following staiernenl. 'The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in pad' by the Stale of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or.
required, e.g., the United Stales Department of Health and Human
Services.'

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the .Oepadmenl before printing, production,
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced. Including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures.

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
conlract without prior written approval from' the Department.

5.4. Operation of-Facllltles: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or

^  duly upon Ihd contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the. services at such facility. If any governmeniai
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said'faciliiy
OT the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In corineclion with the-

.  foregoing requirements, the Coniraclor-hereby covenants and agrees
thai, during the term of this Conlract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, rcgutalions, and requiremenis of the State Office of the
Fire f^arshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in

RFP-2020-DPHS:09-HEART-01 ExNOII B Contfflaof tn)Uali DP
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EXHIBIT 8

conformance with local building and zoning codes,, by-laws and
regulations.

6. Records

6.1. The Conirattor shall keep records lhal include, but are nol limited to:

6.1.1. Books, records, documenis and oiner electronic or.physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and olher expenses incurred byihe
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, end all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly .reflect ell
such costs and expenses, and ■ which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limiiation. all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, reQuisitions for materials, inventones.
valuations of in-kind contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and
other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, ahendance or visit records for each recipient
of services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eli'glbiliiy for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
Invoices submitted to the Department to.obtain payment for. such
services.

6.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated represenlaiives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to ihe Coniraci for purposes of audil, examlnalion,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Coritract and upon payment of
the price lirriltation hereunder. the Coniraci and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obiigallons as. by the terms of the Contract are to be-
perforrried after the end of the lerm of ihis Coniraci and/or survive the
terminatron of the Contract) .shall terminale. provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure .Report the Oeparlmenl shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Coniraclor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amouril of such expenses as ate
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

OP
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded by:

ri.10b% Federal Fur^s lo Improve the Health of Americans Through
PrevenUon and Managemcnlof Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke;
as awarded on May 13. 2020. by the Ceniers for Disease Control and
•Prevention (CDC). Prevention end Management of Diabetes end Heart
Disease in NH. CFOA #93.426. FAIN NU58DP006515.

2. ' For the purposes oMhis Agreement:

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient. In
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Indirect Cost Rate of 0% applies in accordance with 2 CFR
§200.414.

2.3. ■ The Department has identified this Contract as N0N-R4D. in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment.of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved tine items, as specified in Exhibits C-1 Budget through Exhibit
C-8 Budget.

4. ■ The Contractor shall submit an invoice in"a form satisfactory to the Slate by the
fifteenth (15th") working day of the following month, \^ich.ideniifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Contractor shall ensure the invoice Is completed, dated and returned lo the
Departmenl ir* order lo initiate payment;

5. In lieu of hard copies, alt invoices may be assigned an electronic signature end
emailed tQ DPHSContractBimnQ@dhhs.nh.QOv. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services

■  129 Pleasant Street ' ' .
Concord. NH 03301

e. The Slate shall rhake payment lo the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and .if
sufficient funds are available, subject lo Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

7. The final invoiceshall.be due to the Stale no later than forty (40).days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37. General Provisions Block 1.7

.  Completion Dale.
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EXHIBIT C

0. The Conlraclor musl provide the services in Exhibit B. Scope of Services. In
compliance with funding.requlrements.

9. The Contractor agrees ihai funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in (he event o( non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhlbii B. Scope of-Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part. In the event
of non-compliance sMth any Federal or Stale law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided.- or if the said services or products have not been
sallsfactohly completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of. this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Forrm P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by whiten agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of Ihe Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
jusliried.

12. Audils"

12.1. The Coniraclor iS required to submit an annual audit to ihe Department
If any of (he following conditions exist;

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more ih
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

12.1.2. Condition B - The Coniraclor Is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000.000 or more.

12.1.3. Condiiion C • The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit en annual linancial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, (he Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an Independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department svithin 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted'in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Adminlstralive Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If "Condition B or Condiiion C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independenl CPA within 120
days after the close ol the Contractor's fiscal year.

OP
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EXHIBIT C

12.4. Any-Contractor thai receives an amount equal to or greater than.
S250.000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit ar^nual
finandai audits performed by an independent CPA if the bepartrrtenl'S'
risk assessment deterrhination indicates the Conlraclor is high-risk.

12.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract.' il is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-PREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor IdenlMied In Section 1.3 oJlho General Provlstons agrees to comply wiih the provisions ol
Sections 5151-5.160 of the Orug-Free WotVplace Aci ot 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0: 41
tJ.S.C. 701 et set).}, and Airiher agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as ider^Urte'd In Sections
1.11 and 1.i2of (he General Provisions execute ihefoiiowlngCerttficatjon:

ALTCRNATIVE I • FOR QRANTECS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certincaiion is legulred by the regulolions implemertiing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orup-Free
.t. Wortcplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Sublille O: 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.

1669 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1.990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691}. and require ceitiflcallon by grantees (end by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to (hvard. that they will maintain a drug-free woncplaec. Socllon 30i 7.630(c) oi the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-coniraciors) mat is a Stele
may elect to moke one certiFicaiion to the Oepadmertl in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certificdlion. The certificaio eel out below is a
malerial represenlolion of fact upon which reliarvce is placed when the agency owards the grant. False
certificstion or viobtion of the cenification shall bo grourxls for suspension of payments, suspension or
torrnination of grants, or govomment wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Hurnan Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH0330t.6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or wfll continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statamenl nolifyingempioyees that (he.unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use ol a controlled substarKc b prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the aclions thai will be taken against employees (or violation of such
prohiUlion;

t .2. . Establishing on ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2..1. The dangers of drug abuse in ihe workplace;
1.2.2. ' The granlee.'s policy of mointolning a drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any ovallable drug courvseling. rehabililotion. and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;-
1.3. Moking h a requlremenl that each employoo to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the ataiement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Nolifying the employee In the slatement required by paragraph (a) tf\al. as a condition of

employment under the grant. Ihe employao will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms oi the statement; and
1.4.2.' Notify the employer In writing othis or her corwlclion for a violaHon of a criminal drug

etaluto occurring In the workplace no later than.five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within (en calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagroph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise recefvirig oclusi notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees rnust provide nolice. including position title, to every grant
officer on whose groni activity Ihe convlcied employee was working, unless (he Federal ogency

OP
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hea dealgneted a central poinl lor the receipt of such r»otce$. Notice shall include (he
MeniincaUon numbe((s) of each Dtfecled grani;

1.6. Telling one of Ihe foflowing ocilonfl. vnihin 30 calendar deys of rocoivng notice undersubparagraph. V.4.2. wUh reipecl to any employee who Is so convicted
1.6.t. Tekino ppproprlale personnel adlon ogainsl such on employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rohabiiiiallon Act of 1973. as
amended; or'

1.6.2. Requiring Such employee lo psrtlcipele •■ilsfoctorily in b drug abuse essislsrKe or
rehabilitation program opproveo lor such purposes by a Federal. State, or locpl health,
law enforcement, or olher oppropHaie agency.

1.7. Making a good felih effort lo comlnue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of ppregraphs 1.1. t.2. 1.3. i.e. 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may tnscrt In Ihe space provided below the sito(s) (or the performance of work dorSo In
conrsectlon with the spacaHc grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city. cour\ty. state, tip code) (list each localion)

Check 0 If there ore workplaces on file lhal arc not identified here.

Vendor Name:

June 11. 2020 The Gionite YMCA

Dote Name: p^fts
Tllle: p/ejident/CEO
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CERTtFICATlON REGARDING LOBBYING

Tho Vendor ideniified In Section 1.3 ottho GonorolProviiioni egrets to comply with the provis'rons ct
Section 3l9clPublic Law 101>121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, ond
31 U.S.C. 13&2, end fudher agrees to have lha Contractor'i represerMative. as ideniified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Ger>eralProvlalons execute the foltowtng Certiricalipn:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EOUCATtON . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progiems (indicate oppllcable program covered):
'TemporaiY Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enf'orcemeni Program under Tiile IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under TiUe XX •
'Medicaid Progiem undarTilie XIX '
!CommunHy Services Block Gram under TlUe VI
'Child Care Dovelopmeni Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned cedirias. lo the best of his or her knowfedgo end belie', thai:

V No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or vUll be paid by or on behall of the undersigned, (o
ony person (or influencing or attempting to InfluerNce on officer or employee of ony agency, a Mombor
of Congress, an officer or employee of Corigress. or an employee of a Member of Congress .in
connacUon wfih iho awarding of any Federal conliact, conlinuaiion, renewal, amendment, or
modification ol ony Federal contract, gianl, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specir< mention
sub-grenlee or lub'Contra'clor).

2. If any funds Other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
.  influencing or anemptlng to Influahce an officer or employee of ony agency, a Member of Congress,

an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ol a Member of-Congress In connecOon with this
Federal conlracl. grant, loan. oi cooperative agreement (and by tpeclfic mention tub-graniee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall compteio and submit Standard Form LIL,. (Disclosure Form to
Repoti Lobbying, in accordance wilh Its instructions, atioched and IdcntKted os Standard Exhibit E>l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cedification be Incfuded in the award
document for sub'awaids al.sti tiers (including subcor\tracts. sub-grants, and contracts' under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that aD sub-recipients ahall certify and disclosa accordingly.

This certiricaiion Is a material representaliori of fad upon y^lch reliance was placed when Ihts.lrahsaclion
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisitq tor making or entering Into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who (ails'to file the required
cerliricarion'BhaU bo subject to acMI penally ol nolless than $10.000and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure..

Juno 11. 2020

Vendor Name:

.The Granite YMCA

Date Name: ̂  ^
Title: Ports

President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 ol the Cer>erel Provisions agrees lo comply with the provls>eA> of
Exocudva once of Ihe President. Exocuiivo Order 12&49 ar^d 4$ CFR Part 76 regarding Debarmer^t. .
Suspension, end Other Responsibility Mailers, and fvnher agrees to have the Conl/eclor's
representative, as idertlified in Sections l.ivand 1.12 of IheOenerol Provisions execute the foliowing
Certlf)catibf>: '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signlrtg end lubmliting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary pahiclpanl is providing the
certification set out below, •

2.' The inability of a person lo provide Ihe ceniftcalon required'below will not necessehJy result In denial
ol participation In this covered transaction, ti necessary, the prospective participant shaO submit on
explanation of why it canrtcl provide (he certincoiion. The certification or explanation wQ be
cor^sidered in connection with Iho NH Oepartmenl of Health ond Human Services' (OKHS)
deiermlnallon whether lo enler inlo this irartsaclion. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or on oxplanalion shall disquatify' such person from participation in
this Iransadion.

3. The certi^calion in (his clause is a material represenlation of laci upor> which reliance was placed
when OHHS delermlned lo enter into titis transaction. II ■! is later dolormined thai ihe prospectlva
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certlfication.'in addition lo other remedies
available to tho Federal Goverrvneni. OHHS may tormjnale this Iransadion for causa 0( default.

4. The prospectivo primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to Ihe DHHS agency lo
whom this proposal (contract) is tubmliied if ol any time the prospective primary panicipani teams
thai Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of chDoged
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered IrcnsDClion; 'debarred.' 'suipended.* 'ineligible,* 'tower tier covered
Irensaclion,* "jparticipant.* 'person,* 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.* 'proposal.'.and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the mear^ings set oul In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Execulrve Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See (he
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) thai, should iho
proposed'covered Iransadion be entered into, ii ahel) not knowingly enter inio any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineiigibie, or voiunlorily axduded
from participation In this covered Ironsoclion, ur^ess suthortied by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submltl'mg Ihis proposal lhal It will include Ihe
clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Deberment. Suspension. Ineliglbilily ertd Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Tianssctions.' provided by DHHS. wilhoul modification. In oil lower Her covered
transactions and In oil solicUolions tor lower tier covered (ransodloni.

6. A panicipani in o covorad t/ansBClion may rely upon a cenificalion of a prospective panicipani in a
lower t'ler covered IransocUon that it Is not debarred, cusponded. ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from Ihe covered iransaction. urtless it knows lhal Ihe cenificalion Is erroneous. A panicipani may
decide (he method and frequency by which It deiermlnfcs the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participont may. but Is' nol required lo, check ihe Nonprocutemeni Usl (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In Ihe foregoing sholl be construed lo requiro'eslablishmeni of a system o' records
In order lo render In good faith Ihe certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

.  OP
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informelion of fi porticipflni Is not requiied lo exceed ihat U nermally possessed by a prudent
person in Iho ordir)ery course of business deeSngs.

10. Except for trensoctions duihofieed under peregraph 6 of iheso inslrucdonc, if e participeni in o
covered tronsection knowfngly enters into e lo*«» tier covered t/onsection sMih 8 person Is
suspended, debarred, Inefiglble. or voluntarily excluded from parficlpation in this trsnsaciron. In
addiljon (o other remedies ovailable lo the Federol goverrwent, OHHS mey lermlnete this transaction
for cause or defauR.

PRIMAftY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary paticipent certifies to the best of Its RrwMedge and beiiel. lhal It and Its
principafs:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni. declared inetgiWe, or

voiuhtorOy excluded from covered transactions by any Federal deportment or agency;
11.2. have not wllhln a three-year period preeedV>g this proposaUconlrocl) been convicted of or had

a C^S iudgmeni rendered against them for commission of fraud or o criminal offense In
conne€lior> wllh obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, Slate or local)
transaction or a contract under o pubUctransaclion; violaiic^ of Federal or Stale antitrust
Btaiuias or commission of embezelemer*!, Iheft, forgery; bribery, falsificoiion or destruction ol
records, making false etatements. or receiving stolen property;

I,1.3. ore wl presently Indicted for otherWso criminally or clvlDy charged by a governmental entity
.(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this cortifcetion; and

II.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this opplicalion/preposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defauti.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify lo any of the slelements in this
certificalidn, such prospective, participant shati attach an explanation to this proposal (conlracl).

LOW^RTIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By elgning and submitting this lower lier proposal (contract), the pfospcclive lower Her participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. canines to the best of its knowledge and belief that it ond Us principals;
13.1. are rxjl presently debarr^, tyipended. proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

volunlarily excluded from participation in this tiansactlon by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where ihe prospecftve lower tier partic^eni is unable lo certify loany ollhe above, such

prospective poniclpani shall attach on explanation to ihis'proposal (conlracl).

14. The prospective lower tier partldpani further agrees by submitting this proposal (conlracl) that it will
Include this clause entitled •Certir<otion Regarding Debarment. Suspension, incl^ibBity. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower'Tier Covered Transactions.* wilhoul modifitjalion in all lower lier covered
transactions and In aH eolicitaiions lor lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

The Granite YMCA
June 11,2020

o5ie ! Name: David Ports
Title: Presldent/CEO
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■ CERTtFICATlON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL ̂NDISCRIfilNATlON. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

:  WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS ^

The Vendoi kJemified In Seclion 1.3 of the Generel Prowisioni agrees by signature ol the Cor^lroctor^s .
roproseniBlivo as Idonlired in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ol the Gonerpl Provisions, lo osKuteth# following
codiTication;

\/andor wlO comply, orxj wtti require any nubgrantees or subcontraclo's to compty. wiih any applicable .
feOerel nondlscilmlnation requirements, which may include:

. the Omnibus Crime Control er^d Safe Streets aci ol 1968 («2 U.S.C. Sociibr^ 37a9d) which prohlbils
rodplonie of federal funding under this statute from discriminaimg. either in employmenl practices or in
the delivery of services or benenia. on the basis ol race, color, retiglon, nailonai origin, end se*. The Act
requires certain redpienis to produca en Equal Empioymdni Opportunity Plan;
• iho Juvenile Justice Delinquency Provenildn Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section S672(b}) which odopis by
reference, the civil rights oblioalions of the Sefe Streets Act. Recipients ol laderai funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or ir^ the deliver of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, naitonai origin, and so*. The Act includes Equal
Employmenl OpportunHy Plan requirements;

• the Civil Righls Aci of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 20000. which prohibUs recipients ol federal financial . .
ossistance from dlscrWiinating on tho basis of race. coior. or national origin In any program or aciivlly):
• the RehabliiteUon Act oJ 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal fmandal
assistance from discriminaiing on tho basis ol disability. In regard to ompioyment ond the delivery ol
oarvlces or benefits, in ony program or adl^iy:

-tho Amoricons with OlsablUHes Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Soctioos 12l 31 -34). which prohibits
discrimineiion end ensures equal opportunity lor persons with disabiliiios in empioyrnent. Slate arK) local
government sorvlces. public cccommodaiions. commercial (ocililios. and transportation;
-ihoEducelion Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 168t. 1683. 1685-B6). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscrimlnation Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07}. which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of ege in programs or ociiviiias receiving Federal fmartcial essisionco. it does not includo
omployrhent discrimination: ^

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Oepertment of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U S. Dcpertmoni ol Justice Regulations - Nendiscfim«nation:.EQual Employmenl Opportunity; Policies
end Procedures): E*eculivo Order No. 13279 (equal proicctlonol the lows lor faith-based end community
orgoniiotions): Execuliva Order No..13559. which provide fundameniei principlos ond poicy-making
criteria lor partnerships wlih lailh-besed and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 30 (U .S. Oepertment of Justice Regulations - Equal Tioatmonl (or Faith-Based,
OrgeniraUons); ond Whistlobtower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Notional Defense Auitwiizotion
Act (NOAJ^) for Fiscal Yoor 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for .
Enhancement of Conlraci Employee VyhlslleWower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle'blowlr^g activities in connection with federal grants end contracts.

The certificaie 'set out below is a meieriei represematior* o' lact upon which reliance Is placed wl\en the
ogoncy owords the grant. False ceiiilication or violation of the ccrtillcalion shall bo grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or lorminalion ol grants; or govommeni wide suspehsion or
debarmenl.

Eihtb'l C OP
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in the oveni e Federal or State court or Federal or Stale edmlncstreilve agency makes a rmding of
discrlminaUon ofior e due process hearing on (ho grourxfs of race, color, religion, national origin, or eex
egainsi e recipiam of funds, the recipiertl win forword o copy of ihe finding (o ihe Offrce lor Civil Rights, to
the appKcobio' conlrocling agency or division within the Oepanment of HeaUh and Human Services, and -
to the Oepartmem of Heatth end Humen Services Office of <ho Ombudsman.

The Vertdor identified In Section 1.3 of the Ger^erot Provhions agrees by signature of the Convador's
representative oa Montified In.Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the Geners' Provisions, to evecute the following
cortlficetion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (conlraci) the Vendor agrees lo comply with the provisions
indicetod above.

Vendor Name:

June 11,2020 , The Gr.nil. YMCA
Oslo Name:

Title: David Ports
President/CEO
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C ♦ EnvironmenlBl Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Chi»dien Act of 1994
(Act), requires lhai smoking r^ol be perminod In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
eonlrected for by on enlily end used routinely or regularly lor the provision of health, day.core. educaliofl.
o< library services lo children under ihe age of 16. If the services are funded by Federal programs oiiher
directly or through Slate or local govemmenis. by Federal gram, contraci. loan, or loon guaraniee.- The
law does not apply lochildren's services provided in private residerices. facliHioi funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcold lunds. and portions of lociiiiios used lor inpalionl drug or alcohol ireatmoni. Failure
lo comply w<ih ihe previsions ol the law may reiull in Ihe imposition ol a civil monetary penalty of up lo
SIOOQ per day ond/or the imposition ol an admirwst'raiive compliance order on Ihc responsible coUry. •

The Vendor Identlfredin Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of Ihe Conlractor"!
representative es tdcntirrcd in Section t.t t and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo execute the loliowing
certificolion:

1. By Signing and submitting this coniracl. thc Vendor agrees lo.make reasonable efforts to comply with
at) epplicablo provisions ol Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pr<hChildrcn Act ol 1994.

Vertdor Name:

The Granile YMCA

June 11. 2020

Dole Name: Oavid Pods
PresWeni/CEO
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ANO ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Cohirecior identiHed In Section 1.3 ol ihe Cencrsi Provijions of me Agreement agrees to
comply wim the Hesllh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104*191 end
wilh (he Standards for Prlvacyand Security of Individually tdeniifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates.. As defined herein. 'Business
Acsoclale' shall mean the Contractor and subconlractors and agents of the Controcior thai
roceive.-use'or have access to protected health (niormalion under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Oepartmeni of Heatih end Human Services.

(1) Dofinltieos.

a. 'Breach' shell have the same meaning as ihe term 'Breach* in section 164.402 pf'Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has Itie meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

' c. 'Covered Enlilv* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code ol Federal Regutelions.

d. 'Oesignaied Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set*
.  ln45CFR Section 164.501.

a. 'OataAooreofliion" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f.- 'Health Cere Qaereiions' shell have the seme meaning es the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technotogy for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. Tlil0)<lll. Subtitle D. Port 1 & 2 of the Amisrfcan Rewvery end Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA* means Ihe Health Insurance Portability and Accooniabilily Act of 1996. Public Law
104*191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 end 164 and amendments thereto.

I. .•'indrv'tduer ahaU have the same meaning as the term'individuar In 45 CFR Section 160,103
and shall Include a person who qudllftes es e personal representative in accordance wilh 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

J. 'Prlvacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Informaiioh at 45 CFR Parts 160 end 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Oepdrtmer>t of'Heetlh end Human Services.

k. 'Protected Heatih Informalion* shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health-
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103. iimlied to the information created or received by .
Businoss Associate from or on behalf ol Covered Entity.

DP
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I. 'RBQuired bv Lew* shall have the seme meaning as the term 'required by law' In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secfetafv' shall mean (he Secreiary of the Department ot health and Human Services or
his/her desi'gnee.

n. 'Sflcuriiv Rule" shall mean (he Security Standards tor the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health tntormalion at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. end amendments thereto. ■

0. "Unsecured Protected Healih Information' means protected health Inlormalion that is not-
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information'unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a s.tahdards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. 'Qiher Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established-under 45 C.F.R. Pa/Is ISO. 162 and-164. as amended from time to time, ervl tha
HITECH .

■  Act..

(2) Bustnosa Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health InformaDon.-

a; Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or (ransmtl Protected Heailh
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate. Including but'not limited to all
ils directors, officers, erhployees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmll
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For (he propermanagement and administration of (he Business Associate;
it. As required by lavy, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below;'or
III. For data aggregation purposes for (he health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party,'. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI-wiJI be held conridentiatty and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for (he purpose for which' it was
disclos'ed to thO third party; and (!■) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security., end Breach Notificaiion
Rules of any breaches of the confidentidliiy of the PHI. to the exlonl ft has obta'med
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure iSxreasonably necessary to ■
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreemen), disclose any PHI in response lo a
request for disclosure on the basis that II is required by law, wiihout first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to (he disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief, if Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosir>g Ihe PHI until Covered EntKy has exhausted ell
remedies.

e. If (he Covered Entity notiftes the Business Associate (hat Covered Enilty has agreed to
'be bound by additional resthctions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shad be bound by such additional restrictions and shad not disclose PHI (n violation of
fiuch additional rastrictions end shell abide by any eddliionai sacuhly safeguards.'

(3) ObtlaaHon's and Activities of Bualnoss Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becorrtes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by Ihe Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health infornulton and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of (he Covered Entity.

b. The Business Assoo'ate shall immed'iately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
' aware of any of (he above situations. The risk assessment shall ir>clude. but not be
limited to:

0  The neiure and extent of the protected health information involved, including the -
types of identifiers and the likeiihood of re-identification:.

0 The unauthorized person used the protocted heallh informaiion or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the prelected heallh information was actually ecquired or viewed
0 The extent to which (he risk to the protected heallh informetion hes been

•  mitigated,

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach and Immediately report Ihe findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with ell sed'ions of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make ava'iieble all of iis internal policies end procedures, books
end records relating to (he use end disctosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by Ihe Business Associate on behalf of Covered Enliiy to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and Ihe Privacy end
Security Rule.

e. . Business Associate shall require all ol its business associates that receive, use or have'
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In vyrlting to adhere to (he same
restrictions end conditions on the use end disclosure of PHI conleined herein, includir^g
the duty to return or destroy the PHI es provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be cor^siderod a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business essoclale
agreements wHh Conlraclor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights ol er>forcement and Indemnincatlon from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and drsdosure of
protected heallh intormai'on.

f. Within Ttvo (5) business days of receipl ol a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make avellable during rtormal business hours at its offices ol)
records, bodkt. agreements, policies er\d procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered. Entity, for purposes of enal>ling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance wiih.ihe terms of the Agreement.

g. Wilhrn ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered EnUty, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individoal in order to meet the -
requiremenisunder ASCFR Section 16*.524.

h. Wlhin ten (10) business days ol receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. ■ Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI ood Information related to
such disclosures es would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual lor en accounting of disclosures ol PHI in accordarvce with 45 CFR Section
164.520.

j. Within ten (10) business days ol receivlr»g a wtinen request from Covered Entity for a
request for an eccountlng ol disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Enliiy nfwy require to fulfill its obligations
to provide en eccountlng of disclosures ynth respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In ihe event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting ol PHI
directly from'lhe Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)

. business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have Ihe
resporisibilily of responding to forwarded requests. However. If forwarding the
rndtvidual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Buslriess
Associate to violale HIPAA and Ihe Privacy and Security Rule..ihe Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity ql such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days ol lormlnalion of the Agreement, for arty reason, (he
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, ail PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with ihe
Agreement, end shall not retain any copies or back-up lapes of such PHI. If return or
desinjction is not feasible, or the disposllion of (he PHI has been otherwise agreed (o in
the Agreement. Business Assoclaie shall continue to extend the protections ol Ihe
Agreemeni'. to such PHI end limit further uses end disclosures.of such PHI to those
purposes (hat make the return or destruciion Inleasible. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Enlliy, in its sole discretion, requires thai the
Business Associate destroy any or sll PHI. the Business Ahoclate shall cenify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

<4) ObllQfltlens of Covored Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or (imitation(s) In its
Notice ol P'rrvacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.S20, to the extent thet stxh change or limiialion may aKeci Business Associate's
use or disclosure ol PHI.

b. Covered-Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocalion-
of permission provided to Covored Emily by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. •

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CF^ 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Causo.

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreemeni upon Covered
Entity's icnowtedge.of a breach by Business Associate of (he Business Associate .
Agreemeni set forth herein as Exhibil I. The Covered Entity may either Immedialety
terminate the Agreemeni or provide an opportunity for Business Assoc.iale to cure the
atleged breach within a timetreme specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mlscellancouo

e. Defmliions end Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defmed herein.
'  shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended

from time lo lime. A reference in the Agreemeni. as amended to include this Exhibit I.' to
a Section in tho Privacy and Security Rule means'the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree io take such aciiori as Is
'  necessary to emend the Agreemeni. from lime to time as is necessary for Covered

Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and stale lav/. ' '

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges thet it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parlies agree (hat any ambiguity In (ho Agreement shall be resolved
10 permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. lhe Privacy and Security Rule.
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e. SeofeQalion. If eny term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
porsonfs) or circumstance is hekf invalid, such invalidity shall noi effect-other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms end condillons of this Exhibli I ere declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use end disclosure of PHI, return or
deslrxjclion of PHI, extensions of the proiections of (he Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the ■
' etanderd terms and conditions (P-37)-, chall survive the termination of (he.Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the padios hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

The Granite YMCA
Depsrtmont ol Health ertd Human Services

The Stateie Slate Name Cklthe Conimcior ̂

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Narrie of Authorized Representative NarTK of Authorized Representative

'iite of Auihorlt'ed Representative Tiiieof,Title of Authori^d Representative Title of Authorized Representelive
.  1 1^/ June 11.2020 .

Date * Dale
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CgRTTFKSAnOH RfiQARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUMDINQ ACCOUWTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACTIFFATAICONIPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prirhe ewardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater then $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, tb reporl on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modjfications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA' repordng requirements, as of tho date of the award.
In Bcqofdance with 2'CFR-Pan 170 (Reporting Subeward end Cxocutiva Compensation Informabon). the
Department of Health end Human Services (OHMS) must report the folfowtng Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Nome of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding ogoncy
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants
5.' Program source
6.: Award dtle descrfptive of the purpose of the fundirtg action
7. Location of the entity
8. Prtnciple place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS d)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executjves If:

-  to.l: More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the'Federal government and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually, and

10:2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required dole by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the eward or aw^ amendment is made.
The Contractor'tdentified in Section 1^3 of the Gonoral Provi^ons agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Foder^ Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Public Law 109-282 end Public Low 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward end Executive Compensation Information), arid further agrees
to have the Contrector's representaUve, as identified in Sections t.11 end 1.12 of the General Prov'isions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined ebove to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services end to comply with a!) applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Aocountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

.Ju'nel 1,2020

Date Name;

President/CEO

David Ports
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 or the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
bdlow listed questions are trxKi end accurate.

.08-125-4674
1. The DUNS nufnl>er for your entity is:

2.. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1)60 percenter more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,

-  loans, grants. ouP:gmn(8. and/or cooperative sgrtements: end (2) $25,000,000 or more In ertnuel
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgronts, and/or
cooperative agraements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, slop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer (he foDowtng:

3. Does the public have access to information eboui the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(e) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934(15 U.S.C.76m(a), 78o(d))or section 6104 of the.lntemal Revenue Code of
4 086?

NO YES

If the answer to d3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer lo 03 above Is NO, please answer tho following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
' organization ore as follows:

Nome:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

AmounI:

DP
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The followinfl terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'ereach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized dteclosure.
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic, With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
184.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. ■ "Compuler Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Compuler Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Instilule of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential information' or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limiiallon, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

•Confidential Information also irvcludes any and all information owned or managed by •
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of Ihe Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Pfolected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal. Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensiiive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means (he Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incldenr means an act lhal polentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Us data, unwanted disnjplion or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent, tncidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
Of misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network thai is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network {designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential OHMS data.

8. 'Personal information' (or 'PI') means information v^ich can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 3S9-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule* shall mean the StarKfards (or Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the Uniled
Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided In the
definitlon.of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule* shall .mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured.Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or -indecipherabte to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Info/malion.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, mairitain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor.
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

OP

vs. Lajl updrto KVOOn# E*hlWl K Cont/aclarlfiftUh
OHHS Intormaiton

Securtry Pwii^Tmeni} e-tt<20
I o« 9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5315A7F6-96CF-46D8-«91E-151590E889AC

DocuSign Envelope ID; 9AB9O2CB-D74D-434S-9OtS-977630Ct672O

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
■  Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opponunily to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3/ II OHMS noirfies the Contractor that OHMS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
edditionet restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

' restrictions and rhust abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User rnust only be used pursuant to (he terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract. •

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. II. nflETHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests'the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4: Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidenbal
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be.used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

■  .5. File Hosting Services, also kno^ as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit

' Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certifiep ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. EryJ. User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private networtt (VPN) when
remotely transmirtng via an open wireless network.

9 Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's.moOlle Oevlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10 SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-fotders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour aulo-delelion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After'such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness end education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4.' The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The" Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currenlty-suppofted and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anll-spyware, and anti-mafware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusiorvdetection end firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation v/iih the State's
Chief Information OfTicer in the deieciion ot any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Conridentiai information on its systems (or Its
suthcontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of. such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written cenification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When-'no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
saniiizalion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800*68, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanilization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demoristrale data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where epplicable.
regulatory 'and professional standards for retention requiremenis wilt'be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, wilhin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of ConTidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3; Unless otherwise, specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor v^tl maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. .The Contractor wilt maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, iransrriit. or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contrector will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential • security events that can impact State of nh systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness aixf education for its End
Users in support of prelecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Stale of New Hampshire, the Oontrador vwll maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notification requireimenis.,

7. The Contractor will worfc with the Department to sign and compty with all applicable
State of New Hampshire end Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agre^enis as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 5ystem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will cxecuie a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will wort< with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the. Department and
Contractor to monitor for" any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreemenfby
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unless
prior express written consent Is obtained "from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from (he Contractor air costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and-telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach. -

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the levehand scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate adminislralive. technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentialily of the Confidential Data end to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Depanment of information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement a! hHps://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspect^ breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire networlc.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards' as . referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure,

b. safeguard this inforrriation at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devlcesymedia containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidenljal Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidenlial Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conndential , Information received under this Contract and individually
identiriabte data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.,- door locks, card keys,
blometric Identifiers, etc.).

. 9. onty duttxirized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally ideniifiabie Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes wtten in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as delermir^ed by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte inspeciions to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and security requirements provided in therein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal-regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security- Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's-compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2.. Determirie if personalty identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or p.37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incldenls
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

OP

vs. Last updelo 1009/18 • - ~E;8«/tK • Cowaaor irdlUts
OHHS liVonrtalion

Security Re^ulicnaenti 6-I1-20
Page I ol 9 Oata



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5315A7F6-96CF^6D8-891E-151590E889AC

OocuSign Envelope ID: gAB9D2CB-D74O-4348:gD1&-977630C1672D

New Hampshire Dapartmont of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS tnrormation Security Requirements

5.. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. rf so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate pi must be addressed and reported.' as
applicable. In accordance with nh RSa 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. OHHS Privacy Ofnccr:

DHHSPrivacyOfficcr@dhhs.nh.gov

8. OHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformationSecurityOfficc@dhhs.nh.gov
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